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NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the third Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Infopark 
Properties Limited will be held on Tuesday, September 10, 2024, at 2:00 p.m. (IST) at shorter 
notice through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Means to transact the following business: 

Ordinary Business: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of lhe Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon. 

2. To re-appoint Mr. Ritesh Sachdev (DIN: 08099511) as a Director of the Company, who retires 
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

Special Business: 

3. To consider and approve appointment of Mr. Venkat Rohan Chalsani as Director, 
liable to retire by rotation 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other appl icable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment 
thereof and any rules made thereunder, for the time being in force) (''the Act'') and 
Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

("SEBI Regulations''), as amended, and pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of 
Association of the Company and subject to such other approvals as may be required, 
Mr. Venkat Rohan Chalsani (DIN: 09128661), who was appointed as an Additional Director by 
the Board of Directors with effect from July 30, 2024 and is eligible for appointment as 
Director, liable to retire by rotation and in respect of whom the Board has proposed and 
received a notice in writing under Section 160 the Act, from a member (CPP Investment Board 
Private Holdings ( 4) Inc) proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby 
appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or any other person authorized by the 
Board be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as may be deemed necessary to give effect to this resolution." 
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4. To consider and approve alteration of Articles of Association of the Company: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution 
as Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all 
other - applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory 
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Companies 
(Incorporation) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to t ime, and the amended and restated 
shareholder agreement dated 24 June, 2022 executed between the Company, Tata Realty and 
Infrastructure Limited, CPP Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc, TRIL Infopark Limited 
(now merged with Company) and TRIL IT4 Private Limited, as amended from time to time, and 
subject to approvals, permissions and sanctions from the appropriate authority, if any, the 
approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded to substitute the following articles in existing 
set of Articles of Association of the Company as stated below: 

I. Article 2( el 

"the Shareholders Agreement" means the amended and restated shareholders agreement dated 
June 21 2022 and amended and restated with effect from April ~ 2022/ executed among CPP 
Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc., Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited, the Company, 
TRIL Infopark Limited and TRIL IT4 Private Limited, as amended from time to time including by 
the first amendment letter agreement dated March 21 2023 and the second amendment dated 
May 30, 2024. N 

II. Article 17HblC3l 

"Undertaking any expenditure (whether as a single transaction or a series of transactions) in any 
single category (except for capital expenditure) in excess of 110% (one hundred and ten percent) 
of the annual budgeted expenditure for such category in the Approved Annual Budget. 
Undertaking any capital expenditure (unless expressly and specifically included in the Approved 

Annual Budget) in a single or series of related transactions in excess JNR 200, 000, 000. 11 

Ill. Article 171CblC 4l 

"Undertaking aggregate expenditures in excess of 110% (one hundred and ten percent) of the 
aggregate annual budgeted expenditure (except for capital expenditure) in the Approved Annual 

Budget. Undertaking any capital expenditure (unless expressly and specifically included in the 
Approved Annual Budget) in a single or series of related transactions in excess INR 200/ 00~000. // 
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IV. Article 171CblC8l 

"Unless expressly and specifically included in the Business Plan and Approved Annual Budget 
undertaking any single transaction or series of related transactions involving acquisition of lan4 
assets or capital expenditure/ the value of which in each case/ exceeds INR 200, 000, 000. " 

V. Article 171(b)(19l 

''Approving the Leasing Parameters for the Company (including/ in each case/ any amendments/ 
modifications, addendum or additions to any of the then-existing Leasing Parameters) and unless 
approved in the Business Plan and the Approved Annual Budget any leasing (including renewal 
of a lease1 or amendment to any existing lease) that is a deviation from the Leasing Parameters." 

VI. Article 171(b)(20) 

"Unless expressly and specifically included in the Business Plan and the Approved Annual Budget 
approving: (a) any lease (including renewal of a lease/ or amendment to any existing lease) in 
relation to an area in excess of 100, 000 (one hundred thousand) sq. ft of the Net Leasable Area 
in the Property (including where the tenant has executed more than one lease for the area in 
excess of 100/000 (one hundred thousand) sq. ft. of the Net Leasable Area in the Prope~ a 
renewal or amendment of any one of the leases with such tenant) which is a deviation from the 
Leasing Parameters/ or (b) any lease for an additional area with a Tenant where (i) such additional 
area is in excess of 50,000 (fifty thousand) sq. ft. of the Net Leasable Area in the Property and 
(ii) along with the existing area leased by such Tenant exceeds 100,000 (one hundred thousand) 
sq. ft of the Net Leasable Area in the Property and (iii) which is a deviation from the Leasing 
Parameters. " 

VII. Article 171CblC32l 

"Unless expressly and specifically included in the Business Plan and Approved Annual Budget 
entering into, amending/ renewing/ waiving and enforcing rights under and/or terminating any 
contract (other than leases) with an annual value in excess of INR 200,000,000. " 

VIII.Article 171Cc)(i)(D) 

"the Investor Shareholder approves such Investor Reserved Matter by indicating 'Yes' against 
such Investor Reserved Matter in response to the form set forth in Exhibit E provided by the 
Company (which form describes with particularity the matter for which consent is being requested 
from the Investor Shareholder pursuant to this Section 171) and sends it over e-matl to the 
Compan~ or by providing its consent to an Investor Reserved Matter over an e-mail sent to the 
Company." 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to take all the 
requisite, incidental, consequential steps to implement the above resolution and to perform all 
such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, any 

question, query, or doubt that may arise in this regard, and to execute/publish all such notices, 
deeds, agreements, papers and writings as may be necessary and required for giving effect to 

this resolution." 

s. Ratification of Cost Auditor's Remuneration: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution 

as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended from time to time, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration up to Rs. 1,10,000/­

(Rupees One Lakh Ten Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses incurred 
in connection with the audit, payable to M/s. SBK & Associates, Cost Accountants, who are 

appointed by Board as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the 
Company, for the financial year 2024-25. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or any other person authorized by the Board 
be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be 
deemed necessary to give effect to this resolution." 

By order of the Board 

For Infopark Properties Limited 
0 

~~\,~7 
Arushi Singhal 
Company Secretary 

(ICSI Membership No.: A54516) 

Date: July 30, 2024 
Place: Chennai 

Registered Office: 

Hardy Tower, Ground Floor, Ramanujan 

Intellion Park, Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR), 
Taramani, Chennai - 600113 
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NOTES: 

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA'') has vide its General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 
May 5, 2020 in relation to "Clarification on holding of annual general meeting (AGM) through 
video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM)" read with General Circular No. 

14/ 2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/ 2020 dated April 13, 2020, General 
Circular No.39/2020 dated December 31, 2020, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 
14, 2021, General Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 05, 2022, and General Circular No. 9/2023 
dated September 25, 2023, in relation to "Clarification on passing of ordinary and special 
resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder" 
(collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars'') permitted the holding of the Annual General 
Meeting through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common 
venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and MCA 
Circulars, the third Annual General Meeting ("AGM'') of the Company is being held through 
VC / OAVM on Tuesday, September 10, 2024, at 2.00 p.m. (IST). The deemed venue for the 
Meeting will be "E Block, Valtas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai- 400033" 
where majority of members reside. 

2. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND 
AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 
SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH 
VC OR OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS 
BEEN DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS, THE 
FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE 
AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP AND 
ROUTE MAP OF AGM ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE. 

3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

4. Corporate Members intending to attend through their authorised representative, to attend the 
AGM are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) a certified copy of its Board or 
governing body Resolution / Authorization to the Company, authorising them to attend and 
vote through VC/OAVM on their behalf at the AGM. 

5. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act setting out material facts 
concerning the business under Item No. 3 to 5 of the Notice is annexed hereto. The relevant 
detai ls, pursuant to Secretarial Standards on General Meet ings issued by the Institute of 
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Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at 
this AGM are also annexed 

6. As per the provisions of Clause 3.B.IV. of the General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated 
May 5, 2020, the matter of Special Business as appearing at Item No. 3 to 5 of the 
accompanying Notice, is considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, forming part 
of this Notice. 

7. The Company shall provide to Members the required link to attend the AGM of the Company 
at the registered email address / at the email address of their authorized representative(s) 
before the meeting, which would facilitate the Members/Authorized Representatives, as the 
case may be, to attend the AGM via VC or OAVM. In case, any Member/Authorized 
Representative, as the case may be, need any assistance with using the technology, can 
contact the Company at following email id: tri lsec@tatarealty.in or call during the business 
hours at 022 6661 4444. 

8. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and 15 minutes 
after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting subject to conclusion of AGM, 
by clicking on the invitation link which has been provided separately while circulation of notice. 

9. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars Notice of the AGM along with the Annual 
Report for the Financial Year 2023-2024, is being sent by electronic mode to those Members 
whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. 

10. To support the 'Green Initiative', Members who have not yet registered their email addresses 
are requested to register the same with their Depository Participants ("DPs''). 

11. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, 
e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of nomination, power of attorney 
registration, Bank Mandate details, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held in electronic 
form and to the Registrar at www.kfintech.com in case the shares are held in physical form, 
quoting their folio no. 

12. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available 
for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered 

their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a 
Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he may 
submit the same in Form SH-14. Members are requested to submit the said form to their DP 
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in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA at www.kfintech .com in case 
the shares are held in physical form, quoting your folio no. 

13. The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the MCA under the Act requires the 

Company/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) to record additional details of Members, 
including their PAN details, e-mail address, bank details for payment of dividend etc. Members 

holding shares in physical form are requested to submit the filled in form to the Company at 

the registered office or to the Registrar in physical mode, after restoring normalcy or in 

electronic mode at www.kfintech.com, as per instructions mentioned in the form. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit the details to thei r respective DP 

only and not to the Company or RTA. 

14. Members who wish to inspect the relevant documents referred to in the Notice can send an 

email to trUsec@t;atareaJtv.in the conclusion of the Meeting. The Members who would like to 
express their views or ask questions during the AGM may raise the same at the meeting or 
send them in advance (mentioning their name and folio no./DP ID and Client ID), to the date 

of the AGM by email at trilsec@tatarealty.in. 

15. Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under 
Section 170 of the Act and Register of Contracts or arrangements in which Directors are 
interested, if any maintained under Section 189 of the Act wi ll be available electronically for 

inspection by the members during the AGM . Members who wish to inspect the same can send 
an email to trilsec@tatarealtv.in up to the conclusion of the Meeting. 

16. As the Company is not required to conduct e-voting, the voting at the meeting shall be 
conducted through show of hands (except for Item No. 2 & 3, for which voting will be 

conducted through poll), unless demand for a poll is made by any member in accordance with 

Section 109 of the Act. In case of a poll on any resolution at the AGM, Members are requested 
to convey their vote by e-mail. 

17. The voting at the meeting for business mentioned under Item no. 2 & 3 shall be conducted 
through Poll. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the Members shall case their vote on the 

resolution only by sending signed poll papers via email through their registered email 
addresses/ email address of authorized representative. The said email shall only be sent to 

the email id of scrutinizer i.e. secretarial@csdhanapal.com . Poll paper is being sent along 

with the notice of the AGM. 

18. The Company has appointed M/s. S. Dhanapal & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, 

as the scrutinizer to scrutinize the poll process in fair and transparent manner. 
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19. In case of joint shareholders, the polling paper shall be sent to the first named holder or in 
their absence to the joint holder attending the meeting as appearing in the chronological order 

in the folio and the Polling paper shall be in Form No. MGT.12. 

20. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this Notice 

By order of the Board 
For Infopark Properties Limited 

0 

~~~/ 
Arushi Singhal 
Company Secretary 
(ICSI Membership No.: A54516) 

Date: July 30, 2024 
Place: Chennai 

Registered Office: 

Hardy Tower, Ground Floor, Ramanujan 
Intellion Park, Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR), 
Taramani, Chennai - 600113 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory statement 
sets out all material facts relating to business mentioned under following Items of the 
accompanying notice: 

Item No. 2: 

The brief profile of Mr. Ritesh Sachdev (DIN: 08099511) in terms of Secretarial Standard- 2 on 
General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is provided in 
Annexure - A. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board recommends the proposed 
resolution set out in Item No. 2 of the accompanying notice for the approval of members by way 
of ordinary resolution. 

Except Mr. Ritesh Sachdev, none of the directors of the Company or Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
resolution set out in Item No. 2 of the accompanying notice 

Item No. 3: 

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Mr. Venkat Rohan Chalsani 
(DIN: 09128661), as an Additional Director of the Company effective July 30, 2024, pursuant to 
provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Rules framed thereunder 
and as per Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requi rements) Regulations, 
2015, as amended. Further, as per the provisions of Regulation 17(1C) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Chalsani shall hold the office till 
the next general meeting or three months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier. 

Accordingly, the Company has received the consent letter in Form DIR 2 from Mr. Chalsani to act 
as a Director of the Company. The Company has also received a declaration confirming that he is 
not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

The Company has, in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act, received a notice from a member (CPP 
Investment Board Private Holdings ( 4) Inc) proposing his candidature for the office of Director, 
liable to retire by rotation. 
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The brief profile of Mr. Chalsani and other details as required to be disclosed under Secretarial 
Standard - 2 on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, 
is annexed here as Annexure -A. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board recommends the proposed 
resolution set out in Item No. 3 of the accompanying notice for the approval of members by way 
of ordinary resolution. 

Except Mr. Venkat Rohan Chalsani, none of the directors of the Company or Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, 
in the resolution set out in Item No. 3 of the accompanying notice. 

Item No. 4: 

The Company vide first amendment letter agreement dated March 24, 2023, and the second 
amendment dated May 30, 2024, has amended the restated and amended Shareholders 

Agreement executed amongst Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited C'TRIL''), Infopark 
Properties Limited, CPP Investment Board Private Holdings ( 4) Inc (''CPP'') and TRIL Infopark 
Limited (now merged with Company) dated April 8, 2022, as amended further vide the first 
amendment agreement dated June 24, 2022 (''SHA''). 
In accordance with the said SHA, certain provisions of the SHA were incorporated into the Articles 
of Association of the Company. 

Considering that the Company has entered into an agreement to amend the SHA, the Company 
is required to make suitable amendments/additions/ substitution to exist ing clauses of Articles of 
Association of the Company. 

Accordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the Act, approval of the Members is being 
sought by way of Special Resolution, for amending the Articles of Association of the Company to 
reflect the new Articles as per the amended SHA. 

The draft of altered Articles of Association of the Company will be available for inspection through 
electronic mode during the office hours on all working days till the date of AGM and during the 
AGM. 

The Directors recommend the proposed resolution set out in Item No. 4 of the accompanying 
Notice, for the approval of the Members of the Company by way of a special resol ution. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial personnel(s) of the Company or their respective relatives 
is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item 
No. 4 of accompanying Notice. 
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Item No. 5: 

The Board of Directors based on recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company, at its 

meeting held on June 03, 2024, had appointed M/s. SBK & Associates, Cost Accountants, as Cost 
auditors of the Company for auditing the cost records of the Company for the financial year 

2024-25 at a remuneration not exceeding Rs. 1,10,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Ten Thousand Only) 
plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the ratification for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the 

Financial Year 2024-25 by way of an Ordinary Resolution is being sought from the members as 
set out at Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice. 

The Directors recommend the proposed resolution set out in Item No. 5 of the accompanying 
Notice, for the approval of the Members of the Company by way of an ordinary resolution. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial personnel(s) of the Company or their respective relatives 
is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item 
No. 5 of accompanying Notice. 

By order of the Board 

For Infopark Properties Limited 

h 

}'"'~~ 
Arushi Singhal 
Company Secretary 

(ICSI Membership No.: A54516) 

Date: July 30, 2024 

Place: Chennai 

Registered Office: 

Hardy Tower, Ground Floor, Ramanujan 

Intellion Park, Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR), 
Taramani, Chennai - 600113 
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Annexure-A 

Information pursuant to Secretarial Standard- 2 on General Meetings (SS-2) issued 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Appointment/ Re­
appointment/ fixation of remuneration of Directors 

Name 

Designation 

Age 

Qualification 

Experience 

Mr. Venkat Rohan Chalsani, 
DIN: 09128661 

Non - Executive Director 

36 years 

Mr. Ritesh Sachdev 
DIN: 08099511 

Non - Executive Director 

149 years 

MBA (Finance) from Indian Post-Graduate Diploma in Business 
Institute of Management, Calcutta, Management from Leeds Business 
Masters in Technology School and a bachelor's degree in 
(Nanoelectronics) and Bachelors in tivil engineering from B.I.E.l 
Technology (Electrical Engineering) Davanagere 
from the Indian Institute of 
Technology, Kharagpur 

Mr. Chalsani is a Director with the Mr. Sachdev's diverse career in 
CPP Investments' Real Estate tommercial Real Estate spans more 
Investments group in India. The ~han 20+ years both with 
Real Estate group in India focuses Developers and Service Providers 
on investments alongside top tier (International Property Consu ltin~ 

partners in key sectors such as Firms/IPC's). 

office, retail, industrial, residential 
and data centres. Mr. Sachdev brings with him deep 

understanding of Real Estate and is 
Prior to joining CPP Investments in acclaimed for fostering deep anc 

2016, he was at Paragon Partners, strategic relationships with both 
a South Asia-focused private equity Fortune 500 occupiers and IPCs 
and alternative investments across most markets in India_. 
business where he was responsible regionally within APAC and Globally. 
for investment coverage across Mr. Sachdev's last assignment was 
consumer technology, financial with Colliers International as Heac 
services and industrials sectors. He of Occupier Services, India & MD 
started his career with Barclays South India. Prior to joining Colliers, 
Capital (London / Singapore), he spent 14 years with Cushman & 
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Terms 
appointment 

Remuneration 
sought to be paid 

Nomura International (Hong Kong) Wakefield as MD, South India and 
and Kotak Investment Advisors MD for its Tenant Advisory Group. 
Limited (Mumbai) in fixed income Prior to his stint with Cushman & 
trading and corporate credit Wakefield and Colliers 
investing verticals. He is also a co- [nternational, Mr. Sachdev was also 

founder of Sportskeeda, a digitally associated with DLF Limited and the 
native global sports media Australian Trade Commission. 
platform . 

of As per the amended and restated Director liable to reti re by rotation 
shareholders agreement dated 
June 24, 2022 and amended and 
restated with effect from April 8, 
2022, executed among CPP 
Investment Board Private Holdings 
(4) Inc., Tata Realty and 
Infrastructure Limited, the 
Company, TRIL Infopark Limited 
and TRIL IT4 Private Limited, as 
amended from time to time 
including by the first amendment 
letter agreement dated March 24, 
2023 and the second amendment 
dated May 30, 2024 

NIL NIL 

Remuneration last NA 
drawn 

NA 

Date of first July 30, 2024 
appointment 

Shareholding in the NIL 
Company 

Relationship with NA 
KMP/Director 

November 02, 2021 

NIL 

NA 
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No. of Board NA 3 out of 6 
Meetings attended 
during FY 2023-24 

Other Directorship Directorship in the following Directorship in the followinc -
companies: companies: 

1. One Boat Club Constructions 1. Industrial Minerals anc 

and Real Estate Private Chemical Company Private 
Limited Limited 

2. Emine Realty Private Limited 

3. RMZ City Estates Private 2. Mikado Realtors Private 
Limited Limited 

4. Prahitha Constructions Private 
Limited 

5. RMZ One Paramount Private 

Limited 
6. Plutocrat Commercial Real 

Estate Private Limited 
7. RMZ Infinity (Chennai) Private 

Limited 

Membership/Chair Nil Nil 

manship of 
committees of the 
other Boards 

By order of the Boa rd 

For Infopark Properties Limited 

c. 

\~~~~ 
Arushi Singhal 
Company Secretary 

(ICSI Membership No.: A54516) 

Date: July 30, 2024 
Place: Chennai 

Registered Office: 

Hardy Tower, Ground Floor, Ramanujan 
Intellion Park, Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR), 
Taramani, Chennai - 600113 
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BOARD'S REPORT 
To the Members, 

The Directors are pleased to present the Annual Report ('the Report") of Infopark Properties 
Limited (the "Company" or "IPL'') along with the audited financial statements for the financia l 

year ended March 31, 2024. 

1. Financial Results 

Key highlights of financial performance for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, are 

summarized as under: 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

Standalone Standalone 
FY- 2023-24 FY - 2022-23 

(Restated)* 
Revenue 594.62 474.50 

Other income 18.98 11.25 

Total income 613.60 485.75 
Expenses 
Operating expenditure 154.34 157.12 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 163.86 171.40 

Total Expenses 318.20 328.52 
Profit/ (Loss) before finance cost and tax 295.40 157.22 
Finance cost 490.99 409.42 

(Loss) before tax (195.59) (252.20) 
Tax expense (66.19) (81.05) 

···-
(Loss) for the year (129.40) (171.15) 

Attributable to: 
Shareholders of the Company - -
Non-Controlling Interest - -

*The Company has restated the financial results for prior periods i.e. quarter and year ended 31 March 

2023 pursuant to the order by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chennal Bench, dated June 
21, 2023, attested true copy received by the Company on June 30, 2023 and filed with the ROC on July 
24, 2023, wherein the NCL T has approved the Scheme of Merger by Absorption (Merger') between 
TRIL Infopark Limited (Transferor Company) and Infopark Properties Umited (Transferee Company). 

2. Dividend 

In view of the loss incurred during the year under review, the Board of Directors of your 

Company do not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2023-24. 
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3. Transfer to Reserves 

Your directors did not recommend transferring any funds to the reserves of the Company. 

4. Industry Outlook and Future Prospects 

Commercial Real Estate 

In Chennai, the office stock increased by 5.7 million sq.ft. from 79.8 million sq.ft. to 85.S 
million sq. ft in CY 2022 and the same grew to 86.2 million sq. ft. by CY Ql 2023. The gross 

office absorption stood at 9.7 million sq.ft. in CY 2023, which was the highest ever in the city, 
and is followed by 1.8 million sq. ft .in Ql 2023. Overall vacancy rate in the city decreased 

from 20.1% to 17.9% in 2023. 

While grappling with monetary tightening and geopolitical challenges, the Indian economy 
showed signiAcant resilience in 2023. It is anticipated to exhibit similar resilience in 2024 led 
by strong domestic growth and sustained capital expenditure. Chennai will be increasingly 

preferred by occupiers on account of quality supply addition, presence of skilled talent, robust 
infrastructure and competitive costs. 

*Sources: CBRE Research, Media reports/ Press articles 

5. Company'~ Performance 

During FY 2023-24 the Company has generated total revenue of INR 613.60 Crores as against 
the previous year's revenue of INR 485.75 Crores. Expenditure incurred for FY 2023 - 24 was 

INR 809.19 crores as against INR 737.95 crores in the previous year resulting in Net loss of 
INR 129.40 crores as against Net loss of INR 171.15 crores in the previous year. 

State of the Company's Affairs: .. 

The Company is a subsidiary of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited, and is in the domain 
of design, development and management of commercial assets. The Processing Zone of 

Ramanujan Intellion Park Comprises of 6 IT Buildings admeasuring about 4.60 million sq. ft is 
Rent Generating and Operational. The Company as a part of its planned product mix has 
developed a 1,500-seater International Integrated Convention Center and 112 rooms Serviced 

Apartments in the Non-Processing Zone (NPZ). 

Pursuant to Rule llB of the SEZ Rules, 2006, the Company has filed an application with the 

Board of Approval on SEZs, Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Department of Commerce 
(SEZ Section), for demarcation of 38,007.61 sq. mtrs. SEZ processing built-up area of the 
Company as Non - Processing Area. 

Sustainability has always been core tenet of our operations, and we are fully committed to 
maintaining our leadership position in this critical aspect for our futures. We strive to embody 

the TATA values in how we engage with customers, employees, and vendor partners. Our 
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ethos of delivering value with utmost transparency makes us Focused on excellence, empathy 
and innovation across the customer journey. In order to bring additional confidence to tenants 

about our commitment to, sustainability, wellness and safety, the Company undertook 
measures and achieved the following certifications: 

• India's first and Globally 9th Net Zero Carbon Rated Asset by International Finance 
Corporation (IFC) 

• EDGE Advanced Certification by International Finance Corporation 

• Platinum level WELL Core Certification (two buildings) and Pre-Certifications (four 
buildings) 

6. Update on Merger 

The Board of the Company ("Transferee Company'') and its subsidiary Company TRIL Infopark 

Limited ("Transferor Company") at their meeting held on September 29, 2022, had approved 

the Scheme of Merger by Absorption of TRIL Infopark Limited with Info park Properties Limited 

C'Scheme of Merger'') and filed the Scheme with the Honble National Company Law Tribunal, 
Chennai Bench, ("NCLT"). 

The NCL T vide its order dated June 21, 2023, had approved the Scheme of Merger by 
Absorption of TRIL Infopark Limited with InfOpark Properties Limited. The attested true copy 
of the NCLT Order was received by the Company on June 30, 2023, and filed with the ROC 
on July 24, 2023, and accordingly the Scheme became effective from July 24, 2023. 

Further, the Company had also received the Special Economic Zone (SEZ) license from the 

UAC authorities on July 17, 2023. 

7. Subsidiary Companies 

As on March 31, 2024, the Company does not have any subsidiary Company. 

8. Share Capital and.Other Securities: 

A. Share Capital: 

During the year under review, pursuant to the Scheme of Merger the Company had issued 

and allotted 1 equity share of face value of Rs. 10/- each to the Shareholders ofTRIL Infopark 
Limited. 

As of March 31, 2024, the issued, subscribed, and paid-up equity share capital of the Company 

stands at Rs.74,98,43,570/- divided into 7,49,84,357 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/ ­
each. 
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B. Debt Management: 

As on March 31, 2024, the Company has outstanding debt of Rs. 5747.47 cores (including 

interest). 

The Company raises debt through various sources such as Non-Convertible Debentures, 

Short/long term loans and Overdra~ facilities and Inter-Corporate Deposits. 

C. Credit Ratings: 

Your Company has been offering itself to be rated by rating agencies as per following: 

Instrument 
Rating 

Rating 
Amount (in 

Remarks 
Agency Crore) 

Non-Convertible 
CARE Ratings CARE AA- (Stable) ~ 1700 Assigned 

Debenture 

Non-Convertible 
CARE Ratings CARE A- (Stable) ~ 681.10 Re-affirmed 

Debenture 

Long Term Bank 
CARE Ratings CARE AA- (Stable) ' ~ 2159.00 Re-affirmed 

Facilities 

Further, the Non - Convertible Debentures ['NCDs'') issued to Standard Chartered Bank 
(Mauritius) Limited amounting to INR 19,00,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Nineteen Hundred 
Crores Only) were repaid in full by the Company on its due date i.e. June 27, 2024, and there 
were no outstanding under the said issue. Taking cognizance of this, CARE Ratings Limited 
has withdrawn their credit rating CARE A+ as assigned for the said NCD issue, with effect 
from July 25, 2024. 

9. Depository System 

Your Company's Equity Shares are in dematerialization (Demat) form done through National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The International Securities Identification Number 

(!SIN) assigned to the Equity Shares of the Company under the Depository System is 
INEOKZX01018. As on March 31, 2024, 100% of Equity Shares of your Company were held in 
dematerialized form. In case of any query, you may please get in touch with the Company or 
the Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e., Kfin Technologies Limited, Address: Karvy Selenium Tower 
B, Plot 31-32, Gachlbowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500 032, Phone: 

+91 040 6716 2222 and +91 40 6716 1602. 

10. Directors' Responsibility Statement 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and 
maintained at the Group level, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial 

auditors, including the audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting by the 
statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant Board 
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committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company's 
internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2023-24. 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), the Board of Directors, to the 
best of its knowledge and ability, confirm that: 

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have 

been followed and there are no material departures; 

ii. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company as of March 31, 2024, and of the loss of 

the Company for that period; 

iii . they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguard ing the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

v. They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; 

vi. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

11.Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

The Company's composition of Board is an adequate blend of Executive, Non-executive and 

Independent Directors. In addition to the provisions of the Act, the governance guidelines 
adopted by the Board set out the role and responsibility of the Board, composit ion of the 

Board and code of conduct. 

The Regulation 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (as amended) ("SEBI Listing Regulations") became applicable to the Company with effect 
from June 29, 2022, on a 'comply or explain' basis until March 31, 2025, and on a mandatory 

basis thereafter pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated May 17, 2024. 

As on March 31, 2024, Board of your Company consists of following Directors : 

1. Mr. Sanjay Dutt 
2. Mr. Harl Krishna Veerapaneni 

3. Mr. Ritesh Sachdev 

Chairman and Non - Executive Director 

Non- Executive Director 
Non- Executive Director 
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4. Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Non- Executive and Independent Director 
Non- Executive and Independent Director 
Non- Executive and Independent Director 

5. Mr. Kamlesh Parekh 
6. Ms. Sucheta Shah 

Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni (DIN: 00382218), Director, was appointed as an Additional 
Director of the Company w.e.f. February 01, 2024. 

Mr. Ritesh Sachdev, (DIN:08099511), Director of the Company, who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. A resolution seeking Shareholders' approval 
for his re-appointment forms part of the Notice of ensuing AGM. 

Mr. Ankur Gulati (DIN: 07857686), Director of the Company resigned from the Company w.e.f. 
February 01, 2024, on account of other professional engagements. The Board appreciated the 

contribution made by him during his tenure. 

Pursuant to the regulation 17(1C) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, approval of Shareholders was 
required for appointment of a person on the Board or as a manager at the next general meeting 
or within a time of three months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier. Accordingly, 
the Members of the Company regularized, and approved the appointment of Mr. Hari Krishna 

Veerapaneni (DIN: 00382218) as Director of the Company at their Extra-Ordinary General 
Meeting held on April 25, 2024. 

Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni (DIN: 00382218) Director of the Company resigned from the 
Company w.e.f. closure of business hours on July 30, 2024, on account of other professional 
engagements. The Board appreciated the contribution made by him during his tenure. 

Mr. Venkat Rohan Chalsani (DIN: 09128661), Director, was appointed as an Additional 
Director of the Company w.e.f. July 30, 2024. A resolution seeking Shareholders' approval for 
his appointment as Director forms part of the Notice of ensuing AGM. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the Independent Directors have submitted 
Declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the 
Act along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as 

Independent Directors of the Company. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing 

Regulations, they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation 
which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to 
discharge their duties. 

During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of 
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committees 

of the Company. The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company 

possess the requisite qualifications, experience and expertise and they hold the highest 
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standards of integrity. The Directors are compliant with the provisions of Rule 6 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as applicable. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of 

the Company as on March 31, 2024, are: 

1. Mr. Deepak Porayath 
2. Mr. V. Vijay Kumar 
3. Ms. Arushi Singhal 

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

Company Secretary (CS) 

12.DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE 
APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR 

The details of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) who were appointed or have 
resigned from April 01, 2023, till the date of this report are as follows: 

SI. Name of the Designation Reason for Change Date of 
No. Director/ KMP i.e. Appointment/ Appointment/ 

Cessation/ Change Cessation/ 
in Designation Change in 

Designation 
1. Mr. Ankur Gulati Director Cessation February 01, 2024 

2. Mr. Hari Krishna Additional Appointment February 01, 2024 
Veerapaneni Director 

3. Mr. v. Vi jay Chief Financial Appointment July 24, 2023 

Kumar Officer 
4. Mr. Jagatpal Company Cessation August 02, 2023 

! Singh Secretary 
j s. Mr. Deepak Chief Executive Appointment August 08, 2023 

Porayath Officer 

6. Ms. Arushi Company Appointment August 08, 2023 

Singhal Secretary 
7. Mr. Hari Krishna Director Change in Designation April 25, 2024 

Veerapaneni · 

8. Mr. Hari Krishna Director Cessation July 31, 2024 
Veerapaneni 

9. Mr. Venkat Rohan Additional Appointment July 30, 2024 

Chalsani Director 
~ - - -- -- ·-

13.Number of Meetings of the Board 

There were 6(Six) meetings of the Board, held during the year under review and the gap 
between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said meetings were 
held on May 23, 2023, July 20, 2023, August 08, 2023, September 05, 2023, November 07, 
2023, and February 05, 2024. Details of the Directors' attendance is given herein below: 
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Name of the Board Member Board Meeting Attendance 

Mr. Sanjay Dutt 6 out of 6 

Mr. Ritesh Sachdev 3 out of 6 I 
Mr. Ankur Gulati 5 out of 5 I 
(Resigned w.e.f. February 01, 2024) 

Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 6 out of 6 

Mr. Kamlesh Parekh 6 out of 6 

Ms. Sucheta Shah 6 out of 6 

Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni 1 out of 1 
(Appointed w.e.f. February 01, 2024) 

·---~-

14. Board Evaluation 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance and 
individual Directors including Chairman pursuant to the provisions of the Act. 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking input from all the 
Directors on the basis of criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness 
of Board processes, information and functioning, etc. 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking input from the 
committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, 
effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. 

The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on _Board Evaluation issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017. 

A separate meeting of Independent Directors for FY 2023 - 24 without presence of Non­
Independent Directors was held on May 23, 2023. The Independent Di rectors at the said 

meeting shared their views for evaluation amongst themselves over the performance of Non­

Independent Directors, the Board as a whole and the Chairman of the Company, taking into 
account the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. 

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed t he performance of 
individual Directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individua l Director 

to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, 

meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. The Chairman also had 

one on one meeting with Chairperson of Nomination and Remuneration Committee discussing 
the performance of the Board. 

In the Board meeting and meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the 
performance of the Board, its committees, and individual Directors was also discussed. 
Performance evaluation of independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the 
independent Director being evaluated. 
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15.Committees of Board of Directors 

The Committees of the Board focus on certain specific areas and make informed decisions in 
line with the delegated authority. The following Committees constituted by the Board, function 

according to their respective roles and defined scope: 

• Audit Committee 

• Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
• Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 

• Risk Management Committee 

The details of composition, terms of reference and number of meetings held for respective 

committees are given in the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms a part of this 
Report. Further, during the year under review, all recommendations made by the various 
committees were accepted by the Board. 

16.Corporate Social Responsibility 

During the year under review the provisions of Section 135 of the Act were not applicable to 
the Company. 

17.Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems establ ished and 
maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial 
auditors and external consultants and the reviews performed by management and the relevant 
Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that t he 

Company's internal financial controls were adequate and effective. 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls wit h reference to fi nancial 
statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable 
material weakness in the design or operation was observed. In the opinion of the Auditors of 
the Company, there exists an adequate internal control procedure commensurate with the 

size of the Company. 

18.Auditors 

Statutory Auditors 

The Shareholders of the Company at their 1st Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 
2022, had appointed M/s. B s R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration 

No.:101248W/W-100022) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years 
from the conclusion of first 1st AGM till the conclusion of 6t11 consecutive AGM of the Company 
to be held in calendar year 2027. The Auditors have conveyed their eligibility and willingness 

to continue as Statutory Auditors of the Company for FY 2024-25. 
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Secretarial Auditors 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act, and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Board of Directors your Company had 

appointed M/s. s Dhanapal & Associates, LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries to undertake 
the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. 

Internal Auditors 

The Board of Directors of your Company at their meeting held on August 08, 2023, had 

appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers Services LLP as the internal auditors of the Company for 
the financial year 2023-24. 

Cost Auditors 

The provisions pertaining to Section 148 of the Act were not applicable to the Company for 
FY 2023 - 24. The Board of Directors of your Company at its meeting held on 
June 03, 2024, has appointed M/s SBK & Associates as Cost Auditor of the Company for FY 
2024-25. A resolution seeking ratification of the Members for the remuneration payable to the 
Cost Auditors for FY 2024-25 forms part of the Notice of ensuing AGM. 

19.Auditor's Report and Secretarial Audit Report 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by 
M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Statutory Auditors of the Company, in their Reports on the Financial 

Statements of the Company for FY 2023-24. 

The Secretarial Audit Report received from M/s. S Dhanapal & Associates, LLP, Practicing 
Company Secretaries, in the prescribed Form No. MR - 3 for the FY 2023-24 is annexed to 
this Report and marked as "Annexure B". There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse 
remarks or disclaimers in their Secretarial Audit Report, on the Secretarial and other related 
records of the Company, for FY 2023-24. 

20.Risk Management 

The Company is governed by the Risk Management Charter and Policy Documents. An 
integrated Enterprise Risk Management Charter & Policy has been developed with the 

objective of establishing a common understanding & methodology for identifying, assessing, 
responding, monitoring & reporting to provide management, the Board of Directors with the 
assurance that key risks are being effectively managed. As per the said Policy, a Risk 

Management Steering Committee ('RMSC') has been formed by Tata Realty and Infrastructure 
Limited, holding Company. The charter and policies provide the overall framework for the Risk 

Management process which includes risk identification, assessment, evolution, treatment and 
other related processes. The RMSC is the Apex Committee in the RM Organization structure 

comprising of key decision makers within the Organization. It is responsible for adopting and 
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implementing the RM Framework across the Organization. They are charged with the 
responsibility of taking decisions to manage the risks and also report about various initiatives 

to the Risk Management Committee (RMC) and other stakeholders on a regular basis. 

21.Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 

Your Company falls within the scope of the definition of "Infrastructure Company'' as provided 
by the Act. Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act 

(except Section 186(1) of the Act) with regards to Loans, Guarantees and Investments. 

22.Related Party Transactions 

In line with the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated 
a Policy on Related Party Transactions (Policy), to ensure due and proper compliance with t he 

applicable provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. The said Policy also provides guidance 
for entering into transactions with related parties to ensure that a proper procedure is defined 
and followed for approval / ratification and reporting of transactions as applicable, between 

the Company and its related parties. The Policy is available on the websi te of the Company 
i.e., www.tatarealty.in. 

During the year under review, all contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered into by the 
Company with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length 
basis and did not attract the provisions of Section 188 (1) of the Act. Given that all the 
transactions entered by the Company during the year under review were at arm's length the 

Company and in the ordinary course of business and that none of the transactions were 

material in nature, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 
134(3)(h) of the Act in Form No. AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024 and hence does not form part of this report. 

23.Annual Return 

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act and Rules framed 

thereunder, the annual return for FY 2023-24 in the prescribed Form No. MGT-7 shall be 
placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in 

24.Particulars of Employees 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs on February 19, 2021, had notified the amendments to the 
Companies (Specification of definitions details) Rules, 2014, pursuant to the which the 

Company will not be considered as Listed Company as per the provisions of the Act, read 
along with Rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the disclosure pertaining to remuneration 
and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 were not 

applicable to the Company during the year under review. 
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25. Disclosure Requirements 

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and 

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

26.Deposits from Public 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public 

and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was 
outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet. 

27.Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 

Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with the Rule 8(3) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the "Annexure C" to this report. 

28.Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulator or Courts or 
Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status and Company's Operations in 
Future 

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company's operation 
in future. 

29. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of 
the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report 

The details of material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the 

Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which 
the financial statements relate, and the date of the report are given below: 

A. Issuance of Securities 

The Company had issued and allotted following securities from March 31, 2024, till date of 
this report: 
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Particulars No. of Face Issue Price ·j Total Amount Date of 
Securities Value (in INR) (in INR) Allotment 

(in INR) 
Optionally 17,85,00,000 10 10 1, 78, 50,00,000 June 07, 2024 
Convertible 
Debentures 

Compulsorily 17,15,00,000 10 10 1,71,50,00,000 June 07, 2024 
Convertible 

Debentures 

Listed Non - 87,500 1,00,000 1,00,000 8, 750,000,000 June 19, 2024 
Convertible 

Debentures 

Non - 82,500 ! 1,00,000 1,00,000 825,00,00,000 June 26, 2024 
Convertible 
Debentures ! 

I 

B. Repayment of Securities 

Your Company had issued and allotted Non - Convertible Debentures (''NCDs'') to Standard 
Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited amounting to INR 19,00,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees 

Nineteen Hundred Crores Only) on June 27, 2022, for a period of 2 years. The said NCDs were 
repaid in full by the Company on their due date i.e. June 27, 2024, and there were no 
outstanding under the said issue. 

30.Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace. The Company has not 
received any complaints about alleged harassment during the year under review. 

31. Vigil Mechanism 

The Company has formulated a Whistle Blower/ Vigil Mechanism Policy (''the Policy''), under 
Section 177 of the Act with a view to provide a mechanism for employees and Directors of the 

Company to approach the Ethics Counsellor to ensure adequate safeguards against 
victimisation. This policy is also placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in 

and would help to create an environment where individuals feel free and secure to raise an 

alarm where they see a problem. It will also ensure that complainant(s) are protected from 

retribution, whether within or outside the organization and makes provision for direct access 
to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. We confirm 
that during FY 2023-24, no employee of the Company was denied access to the Chairperson 

of the Audit Committee. Further, no Whistle-blower complaint was received by the Company 
during FY 2023- 24. 
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The Board of Directors of your Company had amended and adopted the revised Whistle 
Blower/ Vigil Mechanism Policy at their meeting held on February OS, 2024. 

32.Corporate Governance Report 

The Corporate Governance Report, with the Practicing Company Secretaries' Certificate 

thereon, for the year under review prepared in accordance with Part C of Schedule V of the 
Listing Regulations, form part of this Annual Report as "Annexure D". 

33.General 

During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit 
Committee or Board. There has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company. 

There has been no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Further, there has been no details, which shall be required to be 
given as regard to difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one·time 
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions 
along with the reasons thereof, as no such events have been occurred. 
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By order of the Board of Directors 
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Annexure "A" 

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND 
OTHER EMPLOYEES 

[Pursuant to Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read along with 

Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations] 

The remuneration policy of the Company is designed to create a high-performance culture 

and is in alignment to the core values of Tata Group. This Policy sets out the guiding principles 
for the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee for recommending to 

the Board the remuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel, and other employees 
of the Company. 

The remuneration philosophy is aimed to provide market competit ive remuneration to our 

executives and employees, in order to attract and retain the most talented and qualified 
individual to the Company. 

The remuneration policy recognises the size, scope and complexity of the Company and the 
role, the market standing, skil ls and experience, Company's capacity to pay in compliance to 

pay related regulatory compliance requirements. 

This remuneration pol icy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act") and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of t he 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Usting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations"). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions 
of law and this remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail, and the Company 
shall abide by the applicable law. 

While formulating this policy, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ('NRC") has 
considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act, which are as under: 

(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 

and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully; 

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks; and 

(c) remuneration to Directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance 

objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 
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Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows: 

A. Remuneration for independent Directors and non-independent non-executive Directors 

(i) Independent Directors ("ID") and non-independent nonexecutive Directors ("NED") 

may be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees 
of which they may be Members) and commission within regulatory limits. 

(ii) Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission 
will be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board. 

(iii) Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient 
to attract, retain and motivate Directors aligned to the requirements of the Company 
(taking into consideration the challenges faced by the Company and its future growth 
imperatives). 

(iv) Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required. 

(v) The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by 
the NRC to the Board based on Company performance, profits, return to investors, 
Shareholder value creation and any other significant qualitative parameters as may be 
decided by the Board. 

(vi) The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each Director 
based upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors 
including attendance and time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual 
contributions at the meetings and contributions made by Directors other than in 
meetings. 

(vii) In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any Director 
such fair and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the Director while 
performing his/her role as a Director of the Company. This could include reasonable 
expenditure incurred by the Director for attending Board / Board committee meetings, 
general meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with Shareholders /Creditors / 
management, site visits, induction and training (organized by the Company for 
Directors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the 
furtherance of his/her duties as a Director. 

B. Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity 

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable for 
services rendered by such Director in any other capacity1 unless: 
(i) The services rendered are of a professional nature; and 
(ii) The NRC is of the opinion that the Director possesses requisite qua lification for the 

practice of the profession. 
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C. Remuneration for Managing Director C'MD'') Executive Directors ('ED'') and Key 
Management Personnel ('KMP'') 

In accordance with the policy, the Managing Director, Executive Director, KMPs, Sen ior 

Management and employees are paid fixed salary which includes basic salary, allowances, 

perquisites and other benefits . Remuneration also covers contribution towards social security 
benefits I reti rement benefits in accordance with statutory provisions as applicable. 

In addition to above, they may also earn annual incentive remuneration I performance-linked 

incentive I annual performance linked bonus subject to achievement of certain defined 

qualitative and quantitative performance criteria and such other parameters as may be 

considered appropriate from time to t ime by the NRC and the Board. The performance linked 
incentive is driven by the outcome of the performance appraisal process and the performance 
of the Company. 

Remuneration of MD/ED is as per the contract approved by the Shareholders. In case of any 
change, the same would require the approval of the Shareholders. 

The NRC may recommend and provide MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of commission, 

calculated with reference to the net profits of the Company in a particular financial year, as 
may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of 
the Act. The specific amount payable to the MD/EDs would be based on performance as 
evaluated by the Board or the NRC and approved by the Board. 

D. Remuneration for other emoloyees 

The policy relating to employees would be as per the remunerat ion policy of the Company as 
approved by the Managing Director in consultation with the Head of HR within the overall 

framework of above remuneration philosophy and guidelines. 

Exclusion 

Excludes employees covered by any long-term settlements or specific term contracts. The 
remuneration for these employees would be driven by the respective long-term settlements 
or contracts. 

Policy implementation 

Tile NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board is 

responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy. 

Page 31 of 108



Annexure B

Designated Partners : 

Suite No. 103, First Floor, Kaveri Complex 
No. 96/104, Nungambakkam High Road 
(Next to NABARD & ICICI Bank) 
Nungambakkam, Chennai - 600 034 
Phone No. 044 - 4553 0256 
4553 0257 I 4265 2127 
E-mail : csdhanapal @gmail.com 

secretarial@csdhanapal.com 
website: www.cs dhanapal.com 

S ©hanapal Sr >tssociates LLP 
Practising Company Secretaries 

LLPIN ACB - 0368 
(Regd. with Limited Liability Under the LLP Act, 2008) 

S. Dhanapal, B.Com., B.A.B.L., F.C.S 
N. Ramanathan, B.Com., F.C.S 
Smita Chirimar, M.Com., F.C.S, DCG(ICSI) 

To, 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRET ARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

The Members, 
INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED, 
Chennai 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED, 
(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted based on records made 
available to us, in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion/understanding thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and made available to us and also the 
information provided by the Company, its Officers, Agents and Authorized Representatives 
during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we, on strength of those records, and information so 
provided, hereby Report that in our opinion and understandings, the Company, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, appears to have complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also in our limited review, that the Company has 
proper and required Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

We have examined the books, papers, minutes' book, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and made available to us, for the financial year ended on March 31, 
2024 according to the applicable provisions of: 

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder asap@ ic 
ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the le 

to the extent applicable during the year; 
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings to the extent applicable; 
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v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI ACT') to the extent applicable during the year:-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and 

Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021; and 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

2018. 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with 

respect to Meetings ofBoard of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2); 

ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges and the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied in accordance with the 

requirements to be met with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. mentioned above to the required extent. 

It is represented to us that the company has initiated measures, wherever required, to address 

issues raised by the Statutory Authorities and Letters/Notices received by the Company during 
the financial year, if any, under various enactments as applicable to the Company. 

We further report that, subject to the above, the related documents that we have come across 
depict that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted as applicable with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors and the changes in the 

composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under- review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

0 , 
v 
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and consent for 

shorter notice was obtained for detailed notes on agenda which were sent less than seven days 

before the meeting and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any, are captured 

and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that based on our limited review of the compliance mechanism established 

by the Company, there appear adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 

with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 

Laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has sought the approval of its 

members for following major events, other than ordinary business at the AGM: 
• To Consider and approve the Borrowing Limits of the Company 

• To Consider and approve Creation of Charges on the assets of the Company 

• To approve alteration of Articles of Association of the Company 

We further report that the provisions of regulation 16 to 27 of Chapter IV of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

were applicable to the Company on a 'comply or explain' basis for the FY ended March 31, 2024 

and the Company reported it is in the process of taking appropriate steps to comply with 

applicable Regulations and that suitable explanations will be given in the Annual Report 
wherever required in this matter. 

We further report that, during the audit period, TRIL Infopark Limited has been merged with 

the Company pursuant to Honourable National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai (NCL T, 

Chennai) order dated 30th June, 2023 and the appointed date for the scheme was 27.06.2022. 
The company has issued 7 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each in terms of the scheme of merger by 

absorption approved by NCLT, Chennai. The cross holding of shares with respect to the 

companies involved in the scheme has been cancelled pursuant to the said scheme of merger. 

Further, pursuant to the above merger by absorption, the Company altered the terms of its 

Unsecured, Senior, rated, listed, transferable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs. 

1900 crores to Secured, Senior, rated, listed, transferable, redeemable, non-convertible 
debentures of Rs. 1900 crores and in-principle approval for listing the same was received from 

BSE Ltd vide their letter dated 26.07.2023. 

We further report that our Audit was subjected only to verifying adequacy of s~stems and 

procedures that are in place for ensuring proper compliance by the Company and we are not 
responsible for any lapses in those compliances on the part of the Company. The compliance 

with provisions of applicable laws which have been subject to other au Gits have fl0 been 

independently reviewed by us and the reports wherever shown to us have been relied upon in 

rendering our report. 

q 
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We further report that we have conducted the secretarial audit whenever required through 

online verification and examination of records, as requested and facilitated by the company, for 

the purpose of issuing this Report. 

Place: Chennai 
Date: 03.06.2024 

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES LLP 
(Practicing Company Secretaries) 
(Firm Regn. No. L2023TN014200) 

LLPIN: ACB 0368 

RAMANATHAN NACHIAPPAN 
(Designated Partner) 

FCS. 6665 
CP No.11084 

Peer Review Certificate No.1107 /2021 
UDIN:F006665F000514392 

This Report is to be read with our testimony of even date which is annexed as Annexure and 
forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure to Secretarial Audit Report 

To 

The Members, 
INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED, 
Chennai 

Auditor's responsibility 
Based on audit, our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable 

laws and maintenance of records by the Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the auditing standards CSAS 1 to CSAS 4 ("CSAS") prescribed by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India ("JCS!"). These standards require that the auditor complies with statutory 

and regulatory requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records. 

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, 
there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be 

detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the 

CSAS. Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 

verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 

records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable 

basis for our opinion. 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the company and for which we relied on the report of statutory auditor. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the 

verification of procedures on test basis. 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 

the affairs of the company. 

Place: Chennai 
Date: 03.06.2024 

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES LLP 
(Practicing Company Secretaries) 
(Firm Regn. No. L2023TN014200) 

LLPIN: ACB 0368 

(Designated Partner) 
FCS. 6665 

CP No.11084 
Peer Review Certificate No.1107 /2021 

UDIN:F006665F000514392 
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Annexure "C" 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 

Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under: 

A. Conservation of Energy 

Considering the nature of activities undertaken by the Company, the Company has taken 
certain feasible initiatives/steps towards sustainability, which include initiatives which has 
impact on energy conservation. 

i. Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy 

Having been designed with LEED Platinum Green Building Standards, the energy consumption 
for the entire premise operations has been around 15% less than the base line buildings 
standards which substantially benefits both the end users and the Company. The Company 
measures energy performance on an ongoing basis through the first of its kind "Energy 
Management System" (EnMS-IS0:50001) for the last ten years. 

ii. Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy 

The Company has installed Solar system in all the six towers (terrace area) with an installed 
capacity of around 565KW. The Company has also tied up vide third party power purchase 
viz., Wind Energy & Solar Energy to optimize cost. 

The company has signed a Letter of Award with Tata Power for sourcing the Solar Power of 
15 million units per annum for the next 20 years from FY 24-25 to enhance the renewable 
energy consumption/green power. 

iii. Capital investment on energy conservation equipment 

All operating equipment viz., chillers, AHU's etc. are fitted with Variable Frequency Drives 
(VFD) which is for energy efficiency. We have installed a Sewage Treatment Plant which is 

Membrane bio-reactor (MBR) system which treats the sewage for consumption of domestic as 

well as cooling tower purposes, whereby we could conserve water consumption. 

iv. Gate between Processing Zone & Non - Processing Zone 

A gate between Taj Wellington Mews and IT campus was installed at southwest corner of Taj 

Wellington Mews for a seamless operation between these two properties after the approval 
from MEPZ, Tambaram. This gate will also be used for the Emergency Evacuation to the OMR 
directly from the IT Campus. 
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v. Net Zero Building 

The Company has received the "Net Zero Certificate" from IFC, the World Bank Organization. 
Ramanujan Intellion Park is the first project received the Net Zero Certificate from IFC in India 

and ninth project across the World. 

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment's; 

During the year under review, the Company has not undertaken any capital investment in 

energy conservation equipment. 

(B) Asset Enhancement: 

i. Carr Tower Lobby Refurbishment 
The company has undertaken major retrofit of all the building lobbies in a phased 
manner on the Campus. The Carr Tower lobby was refurbished at Podium and LS/Ground 

level during last FY at a cost of Rs 150 million. 

The renovation of food courts in Hardy and Neville Tower was being undertaken during 
the period under review. The renovation work of the food court in Hardy Tower was 
completed and the Neville Tower Food Court is under progress. 

ii. Power Back-up 
To enhance the efficiency of operation, the power back-up system in phase I of the 
project was retrofitted with 5 Nos of MTU brand DG Sets at a cost of Rs 170 million. 

iii. HVAC Enhancement 
Two new Cooling Towers installed in phase I of the project to replace the old ones which 
significantly enhanced the efficiency of HVAC system. 

B. Technology Absorption 

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption and Benefits derived like product 
improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution: 

As a part of Technological absorption, the Company has undertaken the following: 

• Intellion plus app software was launched in Feb'24 to enhance the Customer experience. 

This app integrates all the existing multiple apps into a single platform for a seamless 
experience for the employees. 

• The Company has planned to have Six (6) Retail Kiosks on the podium to enhance the 

Customer experience. 
• Landscape enhancement is done at driveway of Exit Gate, North Side driveway between 

entry and exit gate and on podium, 

• Additional transformer was added in phase I project to have a redundancy. 

• Poly Urethane flooring for the parking area being done in stages in Phase I project. 
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• Assessment of the Fa~ade works related to water seepage, sealant issue, etc., done to 

minimize the complaints. 

• Membrane System for STP was imported from Japan to enhance the efficiency of 
operation. 

• 1300+ Energy and BTU meters in the Campus were connected through "Desigo" software 

by Siemens for the seamless recording, tracking, monitoring, trend analysis etc., Also the 

Company has extended the viewing access to all the occupants to understand and review 

the power consumption, trend analysis and conseNation requirement for them. 

• Regeneration of Power from the Elevator Operation in the Campus was installed and 

commissioned in all high rise Elevators 

• Recreation Room for the Drivers was inaugurated at US level in Cambridge Tower 

• Vayujal - A devise generates the "Water" from the atmospheric air was Installed on podium 

• Lockated - A new visitor management system for the seamless entry was installed 

• The online metering system for Energy and BTU meters were installed 

• Redundancy Server for IBMS was installed and commissioned 

• Digital Signage on the main entrance gate was installed 

• Segway - Patrolling was introduced. 
• Implemented Kaizen & Wealth out of waste initiatives. 

(iii) Imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning 

of the financial year)-

The Company has not imported any technology during the last three years immediately 
preceding FY 2023-24 

(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development. 

The Company has not incurred any expense on Research and Development during the 

FY 2023-24 

c. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo 

Particulars 
Income 

Expenditure 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For Infopark Properties Limited 

Sanjay Dutt 
Chairman 
DIN: 05251670 

Date: July 30, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 

(in Crores) 

Amount in Rs. 
NIL 

NIL 
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"Annexure D" 
Corporate Governance Report 

1. Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance 

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong foundation on which successful 

commercial enterprises are built to last. The Company's philosophy on corporate governance 
oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and 

fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors 

and the society at large. 

Strong leadership and effective corporate governance practices have been the Company's 

hallmark inherited from the Tata culture and ethos. The Company has a strong legacy of fair, 
transparent and ethical governance practices. 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing 
Director and the Executive Directors. The Roles, Responsibilities and duties of the Independent 
Directors are stated in the appointment letter issued to the Independent Directors at the time 
of their appointment. Further, the Company also briefs about the duties of Independent 

Directors at the various familiarization programmes conducted by the Company. 

The Company's corporate governance philosophy has been further strengthened through the 
Tata Business Excellence Model, the Tata Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading 
and the Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices Cinsider Trading Code"). 

The Regulation 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (as amended) C'SEBI Listing Regulations") became applicable to the Company with effect 
from June 29, 2022, on a 'comply or explain' basis until March 31, 2025, and on a mandatory 
basis therea~er pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI (Usting Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated May 17, 2024. The 
Company is in the process of taking appropriate steps to comply with said applicable 
Regulations of the SEBI Listing Regulations on or before March 31, 2025. 

2. Board of Directors 

i. The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse Board in its 
success. The Company has a diverse Board of Directors including Women Director and 

Directors from variety of backgrounds, skills, qualification, experiences, and 

demographics which enables effective management of Business and enhances the 
quality of decision made by the Board for achieving sustainable and balanced 
development. 

ii. As on March 31, 2024, the Company has 6 Directors comprising 3 Independent 

Directors and 3 Non-executive Directors. The profiles of Directors is placed on the 
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website of the Company https://www.tatarealty.in/board-of-directors. The present 
strength of the Board meets the requirement of Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 

iii. None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than 10 public 
companies. None of the Independent Directors serves as an independent director on 
more than 7 listed entities. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in 
other publlc companies as on March 31, 2024, have been made by the Directors. None 
of the Directors is related to each other. 

iv. Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 
16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") along with rules framed thereunder. In terms of Regulation 25(8) 
of SEBI Listing Regulations, confirmations from Independent Directors have been 
received confirming that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which 
exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to 
discharge their duties. Based on the declarations received from the Independent 
Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that they meet the criteria of 
independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations 
and that they are independent of the management. Further, the Independent Directors 
have included their names in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with 
the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act, read with 
Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. 

v. There were six (6) Board Meetings held during the year under review and the gap 
between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said 

. meetings were held on May 23, 2023, July 20, 2023, August 08, 2023, September 05, 
2023, November 07, 2023, and February 05, 2024. The necessary quorum was present 
for all the meetings. 

vi. Web link of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors: 
https: /Id lnfQpflnbQ58s. cloud front. net/lnvestor-documen ts/May2024/ova FY9i lcrql 7PZMe9AW. pdf 

vii. The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board 
Meetings held during the year under review and at the last Annual General Meelir1g 
(''AGM"), names of other listed entities in which the Director is a director, and the 
number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships / Memberships held by them 
in other public limited companies as on March 31, 2024, are given herein below. 
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Name of category Number Whethe Number of Number of Directorship 
the of r Directorships in Committee In other 
Director Board attende other Public positions held in listed entity 

Meeting d last Companies other Public (category of 
{DIN) s AGM Companies Directorship 

attende held on - All 
d Chairma Membe Chairma Mernbe professional 

during 20/07/ n r n r ) 
FY 2023 

2023-
(Yes/No 

2024 
) 

Mr. Sanjay Non- 6 out of Yes 0 3 0 4 Tata 

Dutt Independen 6 Housing 
Designatio t, Non - Developmen 
n: Executive t Company 
Chairman Limited 
DIN: (Debt 
05251670 ' Listed) i 

Tata Realty 

and 

I nfr astructu 
re Limited 

(Debt 
Listed) 

Mr. Ritesh Non- 3 out of No 0 0 0 0 0 
Sachdev Independen 6 

t, Non -
Designatio Executive 
n: Non -

Executive 

Director 

DIN : 

08099511 

Mr. Hari Non- 1 out of NA 0 1 0 0 0 
Krishna Independen 1 
Veerapane t , Nan -

ni ** Executive 

Deslgnatio 
n: Non -

Executive 

Director 

DIN: 

00382218 
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·-
Mrs. Independent, 6 out Yes 1 9 4 6 Tata Housing 

Sandhya Non- of 6 Development 

Shallesh Executive Company 
Kudtarkar Limited 
Designation: 

Independent (Debt 

Director Usted); 

DIN: 
Tata Realty 

00021947 
and 

Infrastructure 

Limited (Debt 

Listed) 

Mr. Kamlesh Independent, 6 out Yes 0 4 1 4 Tata Housing 
Parekh Non- of 6 Development 
Designation: Executive Company 
Independent Limited 
Director 

DIN: (Debt Listed) 

00059140 

Ms. Sucheta Independent, 6 out No 0 4 2 5 Jayant Agro 
Shah Non- of 6 - Organics 
Designation: Executive Limited 
Independent (Equity 

Director Listed) 
DIN; 

00322403 Landmark 

cars Limited 

(Equity 

Listed) 

The Indian 

Hume Pipe 

company 

Limited 

(Equity 

Listed) 

*Mr. Ankur Gulati had resigned as Director of the Company w.e.f. February 01, 2024 
**Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni was appointed as Director of the Company w.e.f. February 011 2024 

Notes: 
Other directorships do not include directorships of private limited companies, foreign companies and 
companies registered under Section 8 of the Act. Pursuant to Regulation 17A of SEBI listing Regulations 
inclusion of only equity and debt listed entities are considered for calculation of directorship in listed 
entHy. 
None of the Director is a member of more than 1 O committees or chairman of more than 5 committees 
across all the public companies in which he/she is a director. 

• For the purpose of determination of limit of the Board Committees, chalrpersonship and membership of 
the Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee has been considered as on March 31, 
2024, as per Regulation 26(1}{b) of SEBI Listing Regulations. 
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viii. The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company/ business 
policy and strategy apart from other statutory matters as required to be deliberated 

and approved by the Board. In case of a special and urgent business need, the Board's 
approval is taken by passing resolutions by circulation, as permitted by law, which are 
noted and confirmed in the subsequent Board Meeting. 

ix. During FY 2023-24, to the extent possible, information as mentioned in Part A of 

Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has been placed before the Board for its 

consideration. 

x . During FY 2023-24, l(one) meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 
May 23, 2023. 

xi. Directors did not hold any equity shares of the Company as on March 31, 2024. The 

Company has not issued any convertible instruments during the year under review. 

xii. With a view to achieve a sustainable development, the Company aims to have right 
balance on its Board with attributes such as experience of diverse nature, qualifications, 

knowledge and competencies in wide spectrum of functional areas required in the 
context of Company's business, gender representation etc. 

The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for 
the effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board: 

Skills Detailing of such skills Name of Directors, who 
have such skills/ 
expertise/ competence 

Global Understanding, of global business dynamics, Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Mr. Ritesh 

across various geographical markets, industry Sachdev and Mr. Hari 
Business verticals and regulatory jurisdictions. Krishna Veerapaneni 

Strategy, Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Mrs. 

Finance and choices and experience in guiding and leading Sandhya Kudtarkar, Mr. 
Planning management teams to make decisions in Rite sh Sachdev and Ms. 

uncertain environments. Sucheta Shah 

Governance Experience in developing governance Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Mrs. 
practices, serving the best interests of al Sandhya Kudtarkar, and Ms. 

stakeholders, maintaining board anc Sucheta Shah 

management accountability, building long· 
term effective stakeholder engagements anc 

j driving corporate ethics and values. 

Legal With expertise in compliance regulations and Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, 

dispute resolution mechanisms Mr. Kamlesh Parekh 
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xiii. detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the 
expiry of his/her tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no 
other material reasons other than those provided: None 

3. Committees of the Board 

The Board has constituted Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific 

· areas. These include the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the 
Risk Management Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Board of 

Directors and the Committees also take decisions by Resolutions passed through circulation 
which are noted by the Board/respective Committees of the Board at their next meetings. The 
Minutes and the gist of minutes of meetings of all Committees of the Board are circulated to 

the Board of Directors for noting. 

(a) Audit Committee 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, the Company has formed its Audit Committee, composition and terms of 

reference of which are in conformity with the said provisions. The Committee acts as a link 
between the Management, the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Board. 

All the Members of the Committee have the ability to read and understand financial statements 

and possess relevant accounting, finance and / or audit experience. 

The Company Secretary of the Company functions as the Secretary to the Audit Committee 
of the Board. 

The Audit Committee has met four (4) times during the year under review. The said meetings 

were held on May 23, 2023, August 08, 2023, November 07, 2023, and February OS, 2023. 
There was not more than 120 (one hundred and twenty) days elapsed between the 2 (two) 
meetings and requisite quorum was present for all the meetings with the presence of at least 

2 (two) Independent Directors as required under Regulation 18(2)(b) of SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 

The details of Composition and the attendance at Meeting is given herein below: 

Sr. Name of Committee Designation Meeting Attendance 
No. member 
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson 4 out of 4 

2 Ms. Sucheta Shah Member 4 out of 4 

3 Mr. Kamlesh Parekh Member 4 out of 4 

Besides the Members of the Committee, meetings of the Audit Committee are attended by the 

Company Secretary, the Statutory Auditors, and other persons, as the Committee may 
consider appropriate. 
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The minutes of the meetings of the Committee are placed before and noted by the Board. 

The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the 
year. 

Terms of reference: 

The terms of reference shall be as per Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 read along 

with Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

The Chairperson of Audit Committee was present at the previous Annual General Meeting of 

the Company held on July 20, 2023. 

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, the Company has formed its Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

composition and terms of reference of which are in conformity with the said provisions. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has met one (1) time during the year under 
review. The said meeting was held on May 23, 2023. The details of Composition and the 
attendance at Meeting is given herein below: 

Sr. I Name of Committee member Designation Meeting 
No. Attendance 
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson 1 out of 1 

2 Ms. Sucheta Shah Member 1 out of 1 

3 Mr. Kamlesh Parekh Member 1 out of 1 

A necessary quorum was present for all the meetings with the presence of at least one 
Independent Director as required under Regulation 19(2A) of the Listing Regulations. The 
minutes of the meetings of the Committee are placed before and noted by the Board. 

The Chairperson of NRC was present at the previous Annual General Meeting of the Company 

held on July 20, 2023. 

Terms of reference 

The terms of reference of the NRC are to formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, 
relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees 

and do such other acts as prescribed under Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 read 

along with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
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Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors 

The performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors are based on various factors 

which includes participation and contribution by a director, commitment, effective deployment 
of knowledge and expertise, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence 
of behaviour and judgment. 

( c) Risk Management Committee ("RMC") 

In accordance with Regulation 21 of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has constituted 
its Risk Management Committee, composition, ·and terms of reference of which are in 

conformity with the said provisions. The Risk Management Committee of the Company was 
re-constituted w.e.f. February 05, 2024. 

The Risk Management Committee has met Two (2) times during the year under review. The 
said meeting was held on May 23, 2023, and November 07, 2023. The details of Composition 

and the attendance at Meeting is given herein below: 

Sr. Name of Committee member Designation Meeting 
No. Attendance 

1 Ms. Sucheta Shah Chairperson 2 out of 2 

2 Mr. Rltesh Sachdev Member 2 out of 2 

3 Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni* Member NA 

*Mr. Hari Krishna was appointed as Member of the Committee w.e.f. February 05, 2024 
**Mr. Ankur Gulati ceased to be Member of the Committee w.e.f. February 01/ 2024 

A necessary quorum was present for all the meetings with the presence of at least one 
Independent Director as required under Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations. The minutes 

of the meetings of the Committee are placed before and noted by the Board. 

Terms of reference 

The terms of reference of the RMC are as specified in Regulation 21 read along with Part D of 
Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations including functions related to cyber security of the 
Company. 

(d) Stakeholders Relationship Committee ("SRC") 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the Company has formed its Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, composition 

and terms of reference of which are in conformity with the said provisions. The Committee 
was re-constituted w.e.f. February 05, 2024. 
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The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has met one (1) time during the year under review: 

The said meeting was held on May 23, 2023. The details of Composition and the attendance 
at Meeting is given herein below: 

-
Sr. Name of Committee member Designation Meeting 
No. Attendance 

1 Mr. Kamlesh Parekh Chairman 1 out of 1 

2 Mr. San jay Dutt Member 1 out of 1 

3 Mr. Hari Krishna Veerapaneni* Member NA 

*Mr. Hari Krishna was appointed as Member of the Committee w.e.f. February 05, 2024 

**Mr. Ankur Gulati ceased to be Member of the Committee w.e.f. February 01, 2024 

The Chairperson of SRC was present at the previous Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on July 20, 2023. 

Terms of reference 

The terms of reference of the SRC are to specifically look into various aspects of interest of 
shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders and do such other acts as 
prescribed under Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 read along with Part D of Schedule 
II of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

During the financial year under review, the Company had neither received any investor 
complaints, nor any complaints received by the Company were pending or remained 
unresolved as on March 31, 2024. Further, Ms. Arushi Singhal, Company Secretary of the 

Company, has been designated as Compliance Officer of the Company. 

4. Remuneration of Directors 

The Company paid Sitting fees to the Independent Directors ('IDs'') for attending meetings 
of the Board and the Committees of the Board. The details of the same are given here under: 

Name of the Director(s) Sitting Fees paid for attending Board I 
Committee Meetings held during 

FY 2023-24 
Ms. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar INR 4,20,000 
Designation: Independent Director 
DIN: 00021947 

Mr. Kamlesh Parekh INR 4,40,000 

Designation: Independent Director j 
DIN: 00059140 ! 

Ms. Sucheta Shah INR 4,60,000 l Designation: Independent Director 
DIN: 00322403 
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The Remuneration Policy of the Company which, inter alia, lays down the criteria of making 
payments to non-executive directors is available on the website of Company at 
https: //d 1 nfg pfl n bq 58s. c loudf ront. net/i nvestor-docu ments/J une202 3 I Mqs27 dwRz 3 ne3oj4 zFj S. odf 

None of the Non-Executive Director and Independent Directors had any other pecuniary 
relationships or transactions with the Company. during the year under review, other than 
sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending 
meetings of the Board/Committee of the Company. 

5. General Body Meetings 

(a) Annual General Meeting (AGM) 

Financial Date Time Venue Special 
Year Resolutions 

Passed 

2021-22 29/09/2022 11.30 A.M. Through Video Conferencing None 
(IST) (VC) I Other Audio Visual 

Means (OAVM). 

The deemed venue for the pt 
AGM was E Block, Valtas f 
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, 

Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 
where majority of the 
Shareholders resided. 

2022-23 20/07/2023 2:00 P.M. Through Video Conferencing None 
(IST) (VC) I Other Audio Visual 

Means (OAVM). 

The deemed venue for the 1st 

AGM was E Block, Valtas 

I Premises, T B Kadam Marg, 
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 

where majority of the 

Shareholders resided. 
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(b) Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM): 

Financial Date Time 
Year 

2021-22 23/03/2022 03:40 

P.M. 

(IST) 

2022-23 K)3/06/2022 10.45 

~.M. 

151) 

06/06/202213 :4 5 

P.M. 

(IST) 

07 /07 /20221 : 00 

P.M. 

(IST) 

08/07 /2022 10: 15 

~.M . 
:1sT) 

Venue Special Resolutions 
Passed 

The venue for the EGM was i­

E Block, Valtas Premises, T 

Approval for increase 

in authorised share 

capital of the Company 

Approval for 

borrowing limits of the 

Company 

B Ka dam Marg, 

Chinchpokli, Mumbai - ii-

400033 where majority of 

the Shareholders resided 

iii- Approval for creation 

of Charges on the 

assets of the Company 

The venue for the EGM was i­

E Block, Valtas Premises, T 
Approval for Issuance 

of Non-Convertible 

Debentures on Private 

Placement Basis. 

B Kadam Marg, 

Chinchpokli, Mumbai -

400033 where majority of 

the Shareholders resided 

trhe venue for the EGM was E i­

Block, Valtas Premises, T B 
Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, 

Mumbai - 400033 where 

majority of the Shareholders 

resided 

The venue for the EGM was i­

E Block, Valtas Premises, T 
B Kadam Marg, 

Chinchpokli, Mumbai -

400033 where majority of 

the Shareholders resided 

Through Video 

Conferencing or Audio 

Visual Means 

The deemed venue for the 

EGM was E Block, Valtas 

Premises, TB Kadam Marg, 

ii- Approval for I ssuance 

of Compu lsory 

Convertible Preferen ce 

Shares on Private 

Placement Basis. 

Approval for 

Amendment in Articles 

of Association of the 

Company 

Approval for Issuance 

of Securities to CPP 

Investment Board 

Private Holdings ( 4) 

Inc. on Private 

Placement Basis 

i- Approval for 

Appointment of Ankur 

Gulati as Director, 

Liable to retire by 

rotation 

ii- Approval for Adoption 

of Restated Articles of 
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Chinchpokli, Mumbai - Association of the 

400033 where majority of Company 

the Shareholders resided 

21/03/2023 11:00 Through Video i- Appointment of Mrs. 

~.M. Conferencing or Audio Sandhya Kudtarkar as 

(!ST) Visual Means an Independent 

Woman Director 
The deemed venue for the ii- Appointment of Mr. 

I 
EGM was E Block, Voltas Kamlesh Parekh as an 
Premises1 TB Kadam Marg, Independent Director 
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - iii- Appointment of Ms. 
400033 where majority of Sucheta Shah as an 
the Shareholders resided Independent Woman 

Director 
-....... 

2023-24 07/09/2023 12:30 Through Video i- Approval for 

P.M. Conferencing or Audio borrowing limits of the 

(IST) Visual Means Company 

ii- Approval for creation 
The deemed venue for the of Charges on the 
EGM was E Block, Valtas assets of the Company 
Premises, T B Kadain Marg, 

Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
400033 where majority of 

the Shareholders resided 

2023-24 27/09/2023 11:00 Through Video i- Approval for alteration 

~.M. ·Conferencing or Audio of Articles of 

(IST) Visual Means Association of the 

The deemed venue for the 
Company 

EGM was E Block, Voltas 

Premises, TB Kadam Marg, 

Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
400033 where majority of 

the Shareholders resided 

-- -

( c) Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot - details of voting 

pattern - None. 

(d) Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise - Not applicable. 

(e) Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot -

None. 

(f) Procedure for postal ballot - Not applicable. 
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6. Means of Communication 

The 'Investor Relations' section on the Company1s website (www.tatarealty.in) keeps the 
investors updated on material developments in the Company by providing key and timely 
information such as Financial Results, Annual Reports, Contact details of persons responsib le 

for resolving investor grievances, etc. The debenture holders can also send in their 

queries/complaints at the designated email address at trilsec@tatarea lty.in. Financial Results 

are normally published in free press journal newspaper. During the year under review, there 
were no presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts. 

Quarterly financial results are announced within 45 (forty-five) days from the end of the 

quarter and annual audited results are announced within 60 (sixty) days from the end of the 

financial year, as per Regulations 52 of the Listing Regulations and are published in t he 
newspapers in accordance with Regulation 52 of the Listing Regulations. 

7. General shareholder information 

(a) Annual General Meeting for Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 

Day & Date Tuesday, September 10, 2024 

Time 2:00 P.M. (IST) 

Venue Through Video Conferencing/ Audio Visual Means at E Block, Valtas 

Premises, TB Kadam Marg, ChinchpokJi, Mumbai - 400 033 (for purpose 
of recording location) where majority of the Shareholders resides. 

(b) Financial Year: Apri l 1, 2023, to March 31, 2024 

(c) Dividend Payment: Nil 

(d) Listing on Stock Exchange and Listing Fees: 

As on March 31, 2024, only Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company are listed on 
following platform: 

Name and Address of the Type of Securities Listed Scrip / Stock Code 
Stock Exchange 

BSE Limited Non-Convertible Debentures 974013/ 974042 

_J P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, 

Mumbai - 400 001 

Listing Fees as applicable for FY 2023-24 were paid by the Company. 
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(e) Market Price data - high, low during each month in last financial year: Not 

Applicable* 

{f) Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex, 
CRISIL Index etc.: Not Appllcable* 

(g) In case of securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall 
explain the reason thereof: Not Applicable 

(h) Details of the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company are, given 
below: 

Registrar and Transfer Agents 

For Equity Shares & Non - Convertible Debentures 

KFIN Technologies Limited 

Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli, 

Hyderabad - 500 032 

Phone: 040-67162222, Fax: 040-23001153 

Contact person: Mr. Gopala Krishna KV 

e-mail: gogalakrishna .kvs©kfintech .com 

(i) Share Transfer System: 

All the Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2024, and 
are freely transferable. 

(j) Distribution of Equity shareholding as on March 31, 2024: 

s. Name of the shareholder Number of 
No shares held 
1 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited 3,82,42,020 --
2 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited jointly with Mr. Ritesh 1 

Kamdar 
• 

3 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited jointly with Mr. Vishal Raja 1 ' 

4 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited Jointly with Mr. Vikrant 1 
Vaidya 

5 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited Jointly with Mr. Sunil Dhagat 1 
6 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited Jointly with Ms. Mrunal Amogh 1 

Mahajan 

7 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited Jointly with Ms. Rashmi Jain 1 
8 CPP Investment Board Private Holdings ( 4) I nc 3,67,42,331 

TOTAL 7,49,84,357 
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(k) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: 

All the Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2024. Under 
the Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number ['!SIN'') allotted to 
the Company's equity shares is INEOKZX01018. 

(I) Outstanding Global depository receipts or American depository receipts or 
warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact 
on equity: 

Not Applicable 

(m) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 

Not Applicable 

(n) Plant locations: 

Not Applicable 

( o) Address for correspondence: 

Infopark Properties Limited 
E Block, Voltas Premises, 
T B Kadam Marg, 

Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033 

(p) List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions 
thereto during the relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such 
entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal: 

Details pertaining to Credit Ratings obtained by the Company are included in the Directors' 
Report. 

(q) Transfer of Unclaimed / Unpaid Amounts to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund: 

During the year under review, no amount was due for transfer to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund. 

*The equity shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchanges and hence certain 

details are not applicable to the Company. 
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8. Other Disclosures: 

a. disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have 
potential conflict with the interests of listed entity at large: 

There were no material related party transactions during the year under review that have a 

conflict with the interest of the Company. 

b. details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures Imposed on 
the listed entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, 
on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years: None 

c. details of establishment of vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy, and 
affirmation that no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee: 

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vlgil mechanism 
for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour. No person has 
been denied access to the Chairman of the audit committee as detailed in the Whistle Blower 

Policy. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company and available on 
https: II d 1nfgoflnbaS8s. cloudfront. net/investor-documents/April 202 4/5 BJduUiP Pw MqIVM REMrz. pdf 

d. details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non­
mandatory requirements; 

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI Listing Regulations became applicable to 
the Company with effect from June 29, 2022 on a 'comply or explain' basis until March 31, 

2025 and on a mandatory basis thereafter pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated May 17, 
2024. The Company is in the process of taking appropriate steps to comply with said applicable 

Regulations of the SEBI Listing Regulations on or before March 31, 2025. 

e. web link where policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries is disclosed; 

Following is the web link, where policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries is disclosed at 
https://d 1 nfgpfl nbq 58s. cloudfront. net/lnvestor-documents/November2022/Aac8N6vueOcTGm TrlmZ.X. pdf 

f. web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed; 

Following is the web link, where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed 
https: !Id 1 nfgpflnbq58s .cloudfront. net/investor-documents/Apri 12023/2qIUhJBjjrseJWSX0091. pdf 

g. disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: 

Not Applicable 
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h. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): 

Not Applicable 

i. a certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on 
the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority: 

The Company has obtained certificate from M/s. S Dhanapal & Associates, Practising Company 
Secretaries, that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or 

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The same is reproduced 

at the end of this report and marked as Annexure III. 

j. where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of 
the board which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the 
same to be disclosed along with reasons thereof: None 

k. total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a 
consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network 
firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part. 

The particulars of payment of fees to Statutory Auditors is given below: 
(INR in lakh) 

Particulars Amount Amount 

I 
Audit Fees 42.00 ~ 

Tax Audit Fees 0.00 

Certification and other services 10.46 

Total 52.46 

I. disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil 

b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil 

c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil 
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m. disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of 'Loans and advances in the 
nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name 
and amount': Nil 

n. Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place 
of incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory 
auditors of such subsidiaries: Not Applicable 

9. Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub­
paras (2) to (10) above, with reasons thereof shall be disclosed: 

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI Listing Regulations became applicable to 
the Company with effect from June 29, 2022, on a 'comply or explain' basis until March 31, 
2025 and on a mandatory basis thereafter pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated May 17, 

2024. The Company is in the process of taking appropriate steps to comply with said applicable 
Regulations of the SEBI Listing Regulations on or before March 31, 2025. 

10.The corporate governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the 
discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II have been 
adopted: 

i. The Chairman of the Company is a Non-Executive Director, and he is not related to the 
Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer as per the definition of the term 
"relative" defined under the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has a separate post 
for Chairperson and Chief Executive officer of the Company. 

ii. The Company is in the regime of unmodified opinions on financial statements. 

iii. The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to the Audit Committee of the 

Company on certain matters of the Company. 

11.The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements 
specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (a) to (i) of Regulation 62(1A) of 
SEBI Listing Regulations shall be made in the section on corporate governance 
of the annual report. 

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI Listing Regulations became applicable to 

the Company with effect from June 29, 2022, on a 'comply or explain' basis until March 31, 
2025 and on a mandatory basis thereafter pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation 

and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated May 17, 
2024. The Company is in the process of taking appropriate steps to comply with said applicable 

Regulations of the SEBI Listing Regulations on or before March 31, 2025. 
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The Company has provided the necessary explanation in the quarterly compliance report on 

Corporate Governance submitted to the Stock Exchange under Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBI 
Listing Regulations for the quarters ended June 30, 2023, September 30, 2023, December 31, 

2023, and March 31, 2024. 

12.Declaration signed by the Director stating that the members of board of 
directors and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the 
code of conduct of board of directors and senior management. 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees, including the Directors. The 

Code is available on the Company's website (www.tatarealty.in). All the Directors on the Board 
and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the 

respective Codes. A declaration signed by the Director to this effect is reproduced at the end 
of this report and marked as "Annexure I". 

13.Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing Company 
secretaries regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance shall 
be annexed with the directors' report. · 

The Company has obtained a compliance certificate from the M/s. S Dhanapal & Associates, 
Practising Company Secretaries, on corporate governance. The same is reproduced at the end 

of this report and marked as "Annexure II". 

14. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense 
account: Not Applicable 

15. Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities: Not Applicable 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For Infopark Properties Limited 

~~ 

Sanjay Dutt 
Chairman 
DIN: 05251670 

Date: July 30, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 
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"Annexure I" 

Declaration by the Director on Code of Conduct as required by Schedule V of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

I, Sanjay Dutt, Director of the Company hereby declare that all the members of the Board of 

Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct, 

as applicable to them, in respect of the financial year -2023- 24. 

For Infopark Properties Limited 

Sanjay Dutt 
Director 
DIN: 05251670 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: July 30, 2024 
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Annexure II
Suite No. 103, First Floor, Ka\'cri Complex 
No. 96/104, Nungambakkam High Road 
(Next to NABARD & ICICI Bank) 
Nungambakkam, Chcnnai - 600 034 
Ph one N o. 044 - 4 553 0256 
4553 0257 I 4265 2127 
E mail· csdhanapal ru gma11.com 

sccretanal(ti csdhanapal.com 
web~ite www .csdbanapal.com 

S ©hanapal Sr 51.ssociates LLP 

Designated Partners : 
S. Dhanapal, B.Com., B.A.B.L., F.C.S 
N. Ramanathan, B.Com., F.C.S 
Smita Chirimar, M.Com., F.C.S, DCG(ICSI) 

Practising Company Secretaries 
LLPIN ACB • 0368 

(Regd. with Limited Liability Under the LLP Act, 2008) 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
TO THE MEMBERS OF 

INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED 
FOR THE FY ENDED 31.03.2024 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s. INFOPARK 
PROPERTIES LIMITED ("the Company") for the year ended 31st March, 2024 as stipulated in 
Regulations 17 to 27 of Chapter IV and Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and Para C & D of 
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obl igations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended ("SEBI Listing Regulations"). 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our 
examination was limited to a review of the procedures and implementations thereof adopted by 
the Company for ensu ring the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and 
the representations made by the Directors and Management, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 of Chapter 
IV and Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C & D of Schedule V of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 
amended ("SEBI Listing Regulations") for the period from 1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 

Place: Chennai 
Date: 03.06.2024 

FORS DHANAPAL & SSOCIATES LLP 
A Firm of Practising Com any Secretaries 

~<\2?l~v(V 
N RAMANATHAN 

PARTNER 
MEMBERSHIP NO :F6665 

C.P. NO.: 11084 
UDIN:F006665F000514469 
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Sui1e No. 103, First Floor, Kaveri Complex 
No. 96/104, Nungambakkam High Road 
(Next 10 NABARD & ICICI Bank) 
Nungambakkam, Chennai - 600 034 
P hone No. 04 4 - 4553 0256 
4 553 0257 I 4 2 65 212 7 
E-mail : cs dhanapal ([t gma i l. com 

secrc1arial~1 csdhanapal.com 
web si1c : www cs dhanap al co m 

S ©hanapal Sr Jllssociates LLP 

Designated Partners : 
S. Dhanapal, B.Com., B.A.B.L., F.C.S 
N. Ramana1han, B.Com., F.C.S 
Smi1a Chirimar, M.Com., F.C.S, DCG(ICSI) 

Practising Company Secretaries 
LLPIN ACB • 0368 

(Regd. with Limited Liability Under the LLP Act, 2008) 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (1 O)(i) of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

In pursuance to sub clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, in respect of Mis. INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED (CIN: 
U70109TN2021PLC147646), (hereinafter referred to as "Company") , we hereby 
certify that: 

On the basis of the written representations I declarations received from Directors of 
the Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company as on 
March 31, 2024, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal 
www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furn ished to us by the 
Company and its Officers, none of the Directors on the Board of the above said 
Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Director of the Company by SEBI I Ministry of Corporate Affa irs or any such 
Statutory Authority. 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointmenU continuity of every Director on the Board 
is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these based on our verification. Th is Certif icate is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Chennai 
Date : 03.06.2024 

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES LLP 
(Practicing Company Secretaries) 

~OJ-(~ 
AMANATHAN NACHIAPPAN 

(Designated Partner) 
Membership No.F6665 

COP No.11084 
UDIN: F006665F000514458 
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BS R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing 
Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center 
Western Express Highway 
Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 063, India 
Telephone: +91 {22) 6257 1000 
Fax: +91 (22) 6257 1010 

lndeoendent Audrtor's Reoort 
To the Members of lnfopark Properties Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of lnfopark Properties Limited (the "Company") which comprise 
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Cqmpany as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and other 
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

- - ---

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 

Impairment of Investment Property (Including Investment property under construction) 

See Note 4 (a) and (b) to financial statements 

The koy audit matter How the matter was addrossed iri our audit 

Our audit procedures included: The carrying amount of the investment property 
(including investment property under 
construction) is Rs. 1,78,663.11 lakhs as at 
March 31, 2024. 

Evaluated and tested the design;+--- - -

The Company assesses at each reporting date, 
whether there is any indication that investment 
property (including investment property under 

implementation and operating effectiveness of 
Company's key internal controls in relation to 
impairment assessment of investment property 
(including investment property under 
construction}. 

B S R & Co. (8 partnership Rrm with Registration No. BA61223) e<>nverted into BS R & Co. UP (a 14111 Floor. Cenlral B W mg and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4. Nesco 
Umiled Liability Partnersl"lip wnh UP Registrntion No. AAB-8181) with effect from October 14, 2013 Cenrer, Western Express Highway. Goregaon (East). Mumbai - 400063 
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Independent Auditor;s Report (Continued) 

lnfopark Properties Limited 

construction) may be impaired. In such case, 
the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount and compares it to the carrying value. 

The determination of the recoverable value 
involves significant judgements, assumptions 
and estimates. 

Considering the amounts, significant 
judgements, assumptions and estimates 
involved, this is considered as a key audit 
matter. 

Assessed management's determination of 
recoverable amount as higher of fair value less 
costs to sell and value in use. 

Evaluated the objectivity and competence of the 
Company appointed external independent 
valuer involved in determination of fair value. 

We assessed the identification of relevant cash 
generating unit (CGU) to which such investment 
property (including investment property under 
construction) are allocated. 

Tested the assumptions such as such as market 
rent levels, toll revenues, expenditure to be 
incurred, vacancy factors, prevailing market 
yields, market transactions and cash flows, 
which included comparing these results with 
externally derived data as well as our own 
assessments based on our knowledge of the 
client and the industry. 

Obtained understanding of the forecasted cash 
flows based on our knowledge of the Company 
and the markets in which they operate. 

Performed our own sensitivity analysis. 
Assessed the effect of possible reductions in 
market rent levels, conventional centre 
revenues, expenditure to be incurred, growth 
rates and forecasted cash flows and their impact 
on the fair values. 

Assessed the comparability of the forecasts with 
historical information. 

Involved our valuation specialists for evaluating 
the key assumptions used in valuation. Tested 
arithmetic accuracy of the cash flow models 
prepared by the Company. 

Assessed Company's comparison of the 
recoverable amount to the carrying value of the 
investment property (including investment 
property under construction) and its testing 
of impairment provision. 

Perfonmed analytical procedures by evaluating 
inputs, assumptions and fair values on a year­
on-year basis and obtained explanation for the 
variations. 

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements, including 
disclosures of key assumptions, judgments and 
sensitivities as per requirements of relevant Ind 
AS. 
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Assessment of Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assots 

See Note 19 to financial statements 

The key audit matter 

As at 31 March 2024, the Company has 
recognized deferred tax assets of Rs. 3,343.38 
Jakhs on deductible temporary differences, 
unused tax losses and unabsorbed 
depreciation. 
Under Ind AS, the Company is required to 
reassess recognition of deferred tax asset at 
each reporting date. The Company has 
deferred tax assets in respect of brought 
forward losses, unabsorbed depreciation and 
other temporary differences, as set out in note 
19 to the financial statements. 
The Company's deferred tax assets in respect 
of brought forward business losses and 
unabsorbed depreciation are based on the 
projected profitability. This is determined on the 
basis of approved business plans 
demonstrating availability of sufficient taxable 
income to utilise such brought forward 
business loss. 
Considering this involves estimation and 
judgment in determining reasonable certainty 
of sufficient future taxable income, based on 
the financial projections, being available, which 
will result in recoverability of the recognized 
deferred tax assets, we have identified 
recognition and measurement of deferred tax 
assets as a key audit matter. 

Other Information 

How the matter was addressed In our audit 

Our audit procedures included: 

Evaluating the design and testing the operating 
effectiveness of controls over quarterly 
assessment of deferred tax balances and 
underlying data. 

Obtaining the approved business plans, 
projected profitability statements for the existing 
ongoing projects. 

Evaluating the projections of future taxable 
profits. Tested the assumptions such as such as 
market rent levels, hotel revenues, expenditure 
to be incurred, vacancy factors, prevailing 
market yields, market transactions and cash 
flows, including comparison of these results with 
externally derived data as well as our own 
assessments based on our knowledge of the 
client and the industry. 

Assessing the recoverability of deferred tax 
assets by evaluating profitability, Company's 
forecasts and fiscal developments. 

Evaluating the recoverability of deferred tax 
assets by evaluating profitability, Company's 
forecasts and fiscal developments. 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company's director's report, but does not include 
the financial statements and auditor's report thereon. The Company's director's report is expected to be 
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the director's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as 
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations. 
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued) 
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Management's and Board of Directors' Responslbilities for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemonts 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion . The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued) 
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disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the 
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014. 

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income}, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2024 to 15 
April 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f. the modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith 
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and 
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014. 

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in "Annexure B". 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
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were any material foreseeable losses. 

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the Note 42(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the Note 42(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 ( e ), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, 
contain any material misstatement. 

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below, 
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year 
for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software: 

The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level for 
accounting softwares used for maintaining the books of account to log any direct data 
changes. 

The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the application layer 
for certain fields/tables of the accounting software used for maintaining the books of accounts 
for revenue from property rental, treasury, general ledger and investment property. 

In the absence of independent auditor's report in relation to controls at service organisation 
for accounting software used for maintaining its books of account relating to payroll process, 
which is operated by a third-party software service provider, we are unable to comment 
whether audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and operated throughout the year 
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. 

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the 
year for the respective accounting software, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail 
feature being tampered with. 
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not 
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon 
by us. 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022 

I 

fvV1~r 
Farhad Bamji 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 25 April 2024 

Partner 

Membership No.: 105234 

!CAI UDIN:24105234BKCLKR5000 
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property, Investment 
Property under construction and Right of Use (ROU) Asset. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(C) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification 
of its property, plant and equipment, investment property and ROU Asset by which all property, 
plant and equipment, investment property and ROU Asset are verified every year. ln 
accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment, investment property and 
ROU asset were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable 
property where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreement is duly executed in favour 
of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
or investment property (including Right of Use assets) during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property 
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, 
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by 
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the 
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class 
of inventory. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in 
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets. However, the Company is not required to file quarterly returns or 
statements with such banks or financial institutions. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided 
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. 
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given 
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185 
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, 
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from 
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not 
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services 
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and 
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been 
subsumed into GST. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted I accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident 
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cessor other statutory dues have generally 
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays 
in a few cases of Income Tax. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service 
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cessor other statutory dues 
were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable. 

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cessor other statutory dues, which 
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, 
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and 
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or government authority. 

(c} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the 
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the infonmation and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been 
used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as 
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) and 
3(ix)(f) is not applicable. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 

Page 9of13 

Page 70 of 108



BS R & Co. LLP 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements 
of lnfopark Properties Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued) 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of 
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT -4 as prescribed under Rule 
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions 
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, 
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements 
as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, 
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period 
under audit. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors 
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions 
of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has more than one CIC 
as part of the Group. The Group has five CIC's which are registered with the Reserve Bank of 
India and two Cl C's which are not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xix) We draw attention to Note 2(b) to the financial statements which explains that the Company has 
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31 March 
2024. Further, the Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets as at 31 March 2024 
by Rs. 2,08,005.15 lakhs. 

As explained in the aforesaid note, the Company will raise funds through issuance of NCDs I 
term loans I any other financial instrument etc. Accordingly, there will be adequate cash balance 
to meet its debt and liabilities upto 31 March 2025 as and when they fall due for payment in the 
normal course of business. 

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on 
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans 
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 
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of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. We, however. state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. 
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they 
fall due. 

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the 
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 25 April 2024 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 

Farhad Bamji 

Partner 

Membership No.: 105234 

ICAI UDIN:24105234BKCLKR5000 
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub·section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

(Referred to in paragraph 2A(g~) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

- -

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of lnfopark Properties 
Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects. adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note"). 

I --

' Managomcnt's and Board of Directors' Responslbilltlos for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business. including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects . 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement. including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

- -

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
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statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 25 April 2024 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.:101248WIW-100022 

Farhad Bamji 

Partner 

Membership No.: 105234 

!CAI UDIN:24105234BKCLKR5000 
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(Currency: todian rupees in lakhs) 

ASSETS 
Non-Cuuent as.sets 

Paniculars 

(A) l'foperty, pl;int and equipment 

(B) lnve<tment p<opertv 
(C) lnvenment property under constructi0t1 
(D) lntqrble assets 
(E) Right-of-use asset 
(Fl Finoncial :assets 

(i) klvestments 

00 Other financial assets 
(G) Non-et.trrent ta:x assets(Net) 

(H) Deferred tax assets (net) 

{I) Other noo current assets 

Total Non-current assets 

Current assets 
(J} lnv~ntorie5 

{Kl Financial assets 
(iJlrw6tments 
(U} Trade receivables 
(iH) Cash ~nd cash cqutvalent5 
(iv) Sank balances other 1h.1n (iii} above 

(l} Othe< oxrent assets 
Tatal curTertt ilSSets 

Total HS:ets 

EQUITY AND LIABlllTIES 

Equity 

(A) Equicy share apital 

(B) Other equity 

Total EQUity 

U1bllit1e" 
Non-0.lrrent Uabilitle.s 

(CJ Fin<1nclal liabmties 
{a) Borrowings 

(b} Other ftoandill liabllilies 
(0) Provisions 

(E) Deferred tax liabilities (nel) 

{F) 01~ non-current liabilities 

Total non-<:unent UabiHties 

Currtnt liabilities 
(G) Financial lii!obilitie-; 

(a) Borrowings 

(bl Tr.ide p.ay~bles 

(i) Total QUts1andiog dues of mK: ro and 5mall enlerprls~ 
(ii) Total o utstanding dues of creditO<S. other than micro 

and Small tmte~s 

(c) Other Floancial i ablUtles 
(K) Ottler current liablities 

(I) Provisions 
Total Current Uabllfties 

Total U•bllities 

Total equity and llabllltit!S 

Note No. 

3(i) 

•(i) 
•(ii) 
3(11) 

5 

19 

8 

10 

11 

12 
13 
8 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

22 

16 

21 

17 

22 

18 

Asat 

31 March 2024 

33.36 

178,257.n 

365.39 

118,993.18 

251.65 

578.54 

1,379.26 

3,340.70 

10,277.71 
313,477.51 

181.43 

0.01 
2,457.39 

30,073 .91 

4,054.29 

36,767.03 

350,244.54 

7,498.44 

(257,9£7.18) 

(250,468.74) 

342,859.39 

8,854.26 

0.64 

4,136.82 

355,851.11 

231,887.73 

llO.Ol 

3,515.99 

7,441.28 

l ,903.22 

3.94 

24'1 862.17 

600,713.28 

350,24'1.54 

Asat 

'31 March 2013 

Restated 

49.76 

188,719.97 

120,420.10 

251.65 

246. 18 

1,079.72 

7075.25 
317,842.63 

108.43 

0.01 
2,053.29 
1,635.54 

15,780.00 

l,521.77 

21,099.04 

338,941.67 

7.498.44 

(245,027.55) 
(237,529.ll) 

542,011.83 

12,321.33 

3.33 

3,278.69 

2.382.91 

SS9,998.09 

6,049.57 

13.53 

2,865.34 

6,04-4.17 
1,498.77 

1.31 
16 472.69 

576.470.78 

338,941.67 

The aceompoinying notes 1-46 form an integfil ~rt of th es• finandil statemeots. 

As ptt CUI" report of even date. 

f0<B5R&Co.Lll' 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registr.ition No. 101248W/W·l00022) 

Farhad Bamjl 

Partner 
M embership No: 1052:34 

P1ace:: Mumbai 
D•lo: 25 April 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Oirectors 

of lnfopark Properties Umlted 

CIN: U70109TN2021PLC147646 

Siiinfay Dutt 

Director 

DIN: 05251670 

V.Vij1y Kumiilr 

Chief R1unctal Officer 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 25 April 2024 

Director 

DIN: 08099511 

r;-

,(\"~ 
Arushi Singhal 

Comp.any Secretary 

Me:rn bership No.A54516 
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhsl 

Revenue from operations 

II Other income 
Ill Total income (1+11) 

JV EXPENSES 

Food and Beverages consumed 

Employee benefit expense 

Finance costs 

Particulars 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

V (Loss) before tax {Ill-IV) 

VI Tax expense 

Current Tax 

Deferred Tax 

Total Tax Expense 
VII (Loss) for the year (V-VI) 

VIII Other comprehensive income 

A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Note No. 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 
28 

29 

19 

Re-measurement Gain/(loss) of the defined benefit obligations 30 

Income-tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 

loss 19 
B Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year 

IX Total comprehensive {loss) for the year (Vll+Vlll) 

Earnings per equity share 

Basic (INR) 

Diluted (INR) 

39 
39 

The accompanying notes 1-46 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

As per our report of even date. 

Year ended 
Year ended 

31 March 2023 
31 March 2024 

(Restated) 

59,462.85 47,449.97 

1,897.50 1,125.24 
61,360.35 48,575.21 

440.93 294.85 

85.96 178.44 

49,098.71 40,942.80 

16,386.40 17,140.01 

14,907.37 15,239.09 

80,919.37 73,795.20 

(19,559.02) (25,219.99) 

(6,619.40} (8,105.22) 

(6,619.40) (8,105.22) 

(12,939.62) (17,114.77) 

(0.02) 2.70 

0.01 (0.68) 

(0.01) 2.02 

(12,939.64) (17,112.75) 

(17.26) (30.46) 
(17.26) (30.46) 

For BS R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

of Info park Properties limited 

(Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022) 

Farhad Bamji 

Partner 

Membership No: 105234 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 25 April 2024 

CIN: U70109TN2021PLC147646 

Sanjay Dutt 

Director 

DIN: 05251670 

V.Vijay Kumar 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
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Ritesh Sachdev 

Director 

DIN: 08099511 

,. 

~~ 
Arushi Singhal 

Company Secretary 

Membership No.A54516 
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED 

Statement of changes In equity for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs) 

A Equity share ca ital 

Particulars 
As at 31 March 2024 

As at 31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

B 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid 

Equity shares of INR 10 each 

Opening Balance 

Changes in equity share capital during the year 

Closing Balance 

Other equity 

Number of Shares 

74,984,350 

74,984,350 

I 

Amount 

7,498.44 

7,498.44 

Number of Shares 

10,000 

74,974,350 

74,984,350 

Reserves and Surplus 

Amount 

1.00 

7,497.44 

7,498.44 

I 
Particulars I Retained earnings I Securities Premium I Common control I Defined Benefit I 

acquisition deficit plan adjustment 

As at 1 April 2022 (Refer Note-45) (58,375.51) 42,726.02 (258,299.18) 

On issue of equity shares during the year 52,626.75 

Restatement of Deferred tax( Refer Note-45) (6,586.50) - -
(loss) for the year (17,114.77) - -

Other comprehensive loss for the vear - -
As at 31 March 2023 (82,076.78) 95,352.77 {258,299.18) 

(Loss) for the year (12,939.62) -
other comprehensive loss for the year -
As at 31 March 2024 (95,016.40) 95,352.77 (258,299.18) 

The accompanying notes 1-46 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

As per our report of even date. 

For B 5 R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

(f irm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022) 

Farhad Bamji 

Partner 

Membership No: 105234 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 25 April 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

of lnfopark Properties Limited 

CIN: U70109TN2021PLC147646 

--=====g::-:--, tt v 
Sanjay Dutt 

Director 

DIN: 05251670 

V. Vi jay Kumar 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 25 April 2024 
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(6.38) 

-

2.02 

(4.36) 

-
{0.01) 

(4.37) 

Total 

(273,955.D5) 

52,626.75 

(6,586.50) 

(17,114.77) 

2.0 2 
(245,027.55) 

(12,939.6 2) 

(0.01) 

(257,967.18} 

J 
\~X')r;t~ . 
Rii hs dev 

Director 

DIN: 08099511 

0 

~4~~ 
Arushi Singhal 

Company Secretary 

Membership No.A54516 
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED 

Statemont of Ca5h flows for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs) 

cash flow from operating activities 

(Loss) before tax 
Adjustmen/s for: 

Depreciation and amortizcltion expense 
Interest income 
Finance costs 
Unwinding of interest on security deposit 
Unearned rent on sec.urtty deposit from tenant 

Income recognised as pet Ind AS 116 
Provision for Employee benefits 
Amortisation of brokerage expenses 

Operating Profit before working capltal changes 

Adjustments for changes in working capital 
(Increase) in Trade receivables 

(lncrease)/Decrease in other finandal assets 

(Increase) in Inventories 
(Increase) in Other assets 

Ol!creasl! in other current assets 

Particulars 

(Decrease) In Trade Payables and other financial liabilities 
lncrease/(Oecrease) in other current liabilities 

lncrease/(Oecrease) in Other non-financial liabilities 
(Decrease) in Provisions 

Cash flows &enerated from operating activities 
Tax refund during the year (net) 
Net Cash flows 1enerated from Operating activities 

Cash flow from investlng activities 

Payment for purchase and construction of property, plant and equipment 

Purchase of Investments 
Sale of Current Investment( Net) 
Investment in fixed deposits under lien 
Interest recei'<led 
Net cash flows genorated from/( used in) Investing Activities 

Cash flows from financlna activities 
Issue of Shares including share premium 

Repayment of Long term borrowings 
Proceeds from inter corporate deposit 
Repayment of intercorporate deposit 
Proceeds from Non-covertible debentures 

Proceeds from Overdra ft 
Interest paid 
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from flnanclng Activities 

Net increase/ (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents •sat the end of the year (Refet Note- 12) 

Components of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year; 
Cash in hand 

Balance with banks 
In ctJrrent accounts 
in deposit accounts with less than or equal to 3 months original maturity 

Total 

Page 4 

Year ended 
Year ended 

31 March 2023 
31 March 2024 (Restated) 

(19,559.02) (25,219.99) 

16,386.40 17,140.01 
(1,737.72) (880.40) 
47,702.35 39,420.89 

1,396.36 1,505.46 
(l,438.60) (l.415.41) 
(3,394.13) 5,463.82 

0.29 0.90 
694.97 719.43 

40,050.90 36,734.72 

(404.10) (263.53) 
(332.36) 259.48 

(73.00) (90.53) 
(3,651.21) (614.63) 

0.14 2.16 
(3,186.30) (3,467.39) 
2,233.60 (606.44) 
1,363.36 (1,188.59} 

10.35) {79.76) 
36,000.68 30,685.49 

106.82 571.52 
36,107.50 31,257.01 

(4,170.23) (3,192.93) 

(38l!,299.17) 

4.SS 
15,780.00 {13,888.00) 

1,737.72 880.40 
13,347.49 (404,495.15) 

60,124.18 
(5,761.42) (4,953.95) 
2,100.00 10().()() 

(225.00) 

329,000.00 
1,280.75 

118,410.95) (14,854.79) 
(21,016.62) 369,415.44 

28,438.37 (3,822.70) 
1635.54 5,458.24 

30,073.91 l ,635.54 

2.59 0.77 

454.50 1,214 .26 
29,616.82 420.51 
30,073.91 1,635.54 
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED 
St•t•ment of Cash flows for the year •nded 31 March 2024 
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs) 

Reconcillation of clunges ln liabilities arislng from financing activities 

P<1rticulars 

Long Term Borrowings 
Shon Term BorrowlnRs 
Total 

Particulars 

Long Term Borrowings 
Short Term Borrowimzs 
Total 

Note.s: 

1Aprll2023 

547,816.15 
245.25 

548,061.40 

1Aprif2022 

197,809.38 
2 625.22 

200 434.60 

Non·Cash Changes 
Financing Cash Flow.s (Accruals and Other 31Morth2024 

Adjustments) 

(5,761.42) 29,194.11 571,248.84 
3,155.75 97.28 3 498.28 

12,605.671 29 291.39 574 747.U 

Non-Cash Changes 
Financlne Cash Flows (Accruals and Other 31 March 2023 

Adjustments) 

324,046.0S 25,960.72 547,816.15 
100.00 12 479.971 245.25 

324 146.05 23480.75 548 061.40 

The Statement of Cash nows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in lndi•n Accounting Standard - 7 ('Ind AS 7'1 on Statement of Cash Flows 
prescribed in Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules. 2015, notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The accompanying notes 1-46 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

As per our report of even date. 

For BS R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W·l00022) 

Farhad Bamjl 
Partner 
Membership No: 105234 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25 April 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
of lnfopar1< Properties Limited 
ON: U70109TN2021PLC147646 

Sanjay Dutt 
Director 

DIN: 05251670 

V· Vj (j tvtn°" 
V.ViJ•v Kumar 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 25 April 2024 

Olr!ctor 
DIN: 08099511 

" 
4~':? ~ISlnghal 

Company Seaetary 
Membership No.AS45: 
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITCD 

Notes to flnanciaJ statements for the year ended 91 March 2024 
(CLKreocy: Indian rupees in lakhs} 

Background of the Comp;amy 
lnfoparl< ProPertles Limited ("'the Compe1ny') was incorporated on 2 November 2021. The Company is engaged in the business of promoting and developing sect0< 

specific Spedal Economic Zone (SEZ) for Information TechnoJogy at Taramani, Chf:nnai. In addition, pursuant to the requirements of the said agreement.. the 
Company also operittes an International Convention Centr~ with seNiced apartment.$, p..-lrnarily to cater to the occupants of tke uM:I SEZ. The Company is a lirnited 

company inc0<porated ~nd domiciled in India and has its registered office at Chennai. Tamll nadu, India. 

2 Material Accountinc Policies 
I) Basis of Preparatlon 

(1) Statement of compliance 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordafl(e with Indian Acrounting Standards (1.nd AS} as per the Companie$ (locUan Accounting Standards} Rules, 

2015 notified under Section 133 o f Comp.Jnie.s Act, 2013, (the 'Act'} and other rek?vant provisions of the Act. 

These r.nandal statements were authorised f0< issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 25 April 2024. 
(b) Goln1 conc•rn 

The Company has incurred net loss of INR 12,939.62 laW during the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 M arch 2023: net loss of INR 17,114. 77 lakhs) and l\as. negative 

net wotth of INR 250,468.74 lakhs as at 31 March 2024 (31March2023 !NR 237.529.11 lakhs). As at 31 March 2024, the Company has a net current ~ability position 

of INR 208,095.14 lakhs (31 March 2023 net current assets of INR 4,626.35 lakhs) whefl~ the current liabilities or INR 244,862.17 ldXhs @JCceed the cU<rent assets or 

I NR 36,767.03 lakhs. 

Based oo scheduled repayment of borrowings, INR 231,887.73 lakhs (included in the curre nt llabilitfes figure of INA 244,862.17 lakhs above) is due for repayment 
within U months (including INR 221,209.4S lakhs due in June 2024) from t he appro'Val of these standalone r.nanclal statements. The Company's ability to meet its 

obligations faU!ng due i11 next 12 months depends on additional fund raising from the market in the form of Non-convertible Debentures {NCOs), term loans, Other 
1nstroment and continued financial supf)Ort from the joint venturers. The management is actively in discusston with banks and financial Institutions to refinance the 
loan. On this basltt, the maNgement is of the vi.!w that rhere will be adequat.! caish balance- to m.!et its debt and hbilitie.s as and when they fall due for payment tn 

the normal course of businHs. 
Accordingly, the Board of Oitectors have prepared these standalooe audited flnanci~I statements on a going concern basis and therefore, the assets and liabilities are 
recorded oo the basis that the Company wiN bt able to use or realize its assets at least at the rttorded amounts and discharge its liabilities in the usual course of 

business. 

(c) Functional and presentation cul'rencv 
The financial slitem@nts are presented in Indian rupe~ (INR), which ts also the Company's functional currency. All the financial information have been presented in 

Indian r'Jpees (INR) and alf amounts have been rounded--0ff to the nearest lakhs, except for share data and as otherwise stated. Due to rounding off, the numbers 

presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentage may not precisely reOect the absolute flsures 

(d) Basis of measurement 
The.st flnaod~I statements have been prepared on the histofi.cai cost basis except for the foHowing items: 
lttms Measurement basis 

Certain financial assets and liabilities 
Net defined benefit tiabnicy 

[e) Use of estimates and judgements 

Fair value 
Presl!nt value of defined benefit o bllgatlons 

In preparing these financi~ statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumpUons that .affect the applkatlon of accounting policies and the 

reported amounts of assets, llabllities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed oo ao ongoing basis. Revisions to acc01Jnting estimates are recognised prospectively. 

Judsements 

Information about judgements made in applying ac.counting poticies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is 

induded in the following notes: 

Assumptions and estfmation uncert~intles 
lnformatfon about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of l'esultiog ;n a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2024 is 
}nduded in the followjng notes: 

Notes 3 to 5 · impairment test oi non-financial assets: ke-y assumptions und,rly\ng recoverable amounts 

Note 3 to 5 - ut>eful life of Property, plant and equipment and other intangibles assets; 

Note 18 and 34- recognition and measurement of provisions and contiog@ncles: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude cf an ootHow of resources; 

Note 19 - tecognition or deferred tax asseu; availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used; 

Note 30- meil'ju1ement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial as.sumptton:s 

Note 32 - impairment of Financial assets 

Note 31 - Financial liabilities valued at fair value 

(f} Measurement of tllr values 

A numbet or the Company's accounting policies and disdosures require the measurement of fair v;:ilues, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The 

Company has an established contr~ framework with respect to the measurt mel\t of fair values whereby the valu.atk>n is obtained horn an eKternal independent 

valuer whK:h is then reviewed bv the Finance team for the underlyinc assumptions used in the valuation. 

The Finance team regularly reviews .significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party inforfnation, such as broker quotes or prking services, is 
used by the valuer to measure fair values, then they assesses thi! evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the 

requirements of Ind AS, including the level Jn the fair v~ue hierarchy In which the \faltJattoos should be classtfled. 

Fair values afe categorized Into different levels in a fair vatue hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows. 

- Level l : quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities. 
- Level 2: Inputs other' than quoted prices incluck!d in Level 1 that are observa~e for the asset or liability, elther directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from 
prices). 

· level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable Jnputs) 
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INFOf'ARK PROPERTIES LIMITED 
Notes to fin ancial statements for the year ended 31 Marc.h 2.024 
{Currency: Indian rupee.s in lakhs) 

Whe-n measuring the fatr vatue of an asset o' a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as poss;ble . If the inpul5 used to measure the fair value of 

an asset er a liabitity fall into different leveb of the fair value hierarch~. then the fair vatve measurement 15 categorized in its entirety in the same level of the hilr 

value lileruchy as the lowest level input that is slgnific.ant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fait" value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period durillg which thl! change has occurred. 

For assets and !(abilities that are recogni~d in thE! rinanctal statemenrs on a recurring basls, the Company determines whethH transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by r!'-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the faif value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 

reporting period. 

If the inputs osed to measure IP'ie fair value ot an asset or a liability fall into differenc lettts or the fair va lue hierarchy~ thfl'n the fair value measurem@nt is c:atesorized 

ln its entirety in lhe same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest h!vel input thac is significant to the entire measurement 

further infonnation about the assumptions made in measuring fair values Is included in the following notes: 
- Note 4 - Investment propetty; and 
·Note 31-Fair value hier.rn:hy; 

(g) Foreign currency tr~nsattlons 
Fore ign currency transact.ions are transLued into the functK>nal C::Uf(ency usfng the exchange: rate:s at the dates o f the lr.lnsactions. Foreign exchange: g.lfns and losses 
resulting from the senlement of s:uch transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and l!abilittes deoominated in foreJgn currencies at ye.ar end 

exchange rates are genera•v recognised In profit or k>ss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value: in a foc-eign currency art: trans.lated using the ex:change rates. at the date when the fair valve was determined. 
Translation differences on assets and l~bllities carded at fair valoe are reported as part of the: faH' value gain or loss. The gain or kJss artsing on translation of non­
rnonetary hems mea:sured at heir value is treated in line wjth th:e recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation diff@rences on 

items. whose talr value gain or Joss is recogntsed In OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or pt"oflt or loss, respectively). 

(h) Current I Non Current Clusincation 

TM Company classifies an asset as current asset when: 
· it expects to realisl!: the asset. or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle; 
· it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading: 

·it expects to reallse the asset within tweive. months after the reporting period; or 
- the asset is cash or a cash equivalent un~s the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle ci HcibiJity for at le.ut twelve months after the reporting 

period . 

.All other assets are das.sifie.d as non-current. 
A liability fs classlOed as: current when -

- it exp acts to ,ealise the asset, or int@nds to sell 0t consume it, in its normal operating cycle; 

·it hok1s the liability primarily f0< the purpose of trading: 
- the tiability is due to be: settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
·it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liab~ity for at least twelve months after the reporting per'®. Terms of a liability that could, at the 

option of the counterparty, result in its s.e:ttlement by the issue of equity ins truments do not affect its classifkatlon. 
All other liabilities are classified as non--current. 

The operating cycle is the time betwe.e.n the acqulsition of assets for process\ng and their reatisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company's normal operating 

cyde Is twelve months. 

(i) Ananclal lnstrumenu 
A financial /f\Strument rs any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one ent ity and a financial liability O< @quity instrument of another entity. Financial 

instruments also include. derivative contracts such as for~gn currency foreign e.>echance forward contraru, ;nterest rate swaps and c.urrency options; and embedded 
derivatives in the host contract. Financial Instruments i.e. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are recoa:nised when the Company becomes a party to tile 

contractual provisions of the instruments.Trade receivables and debt securities l.ssued are imtiaOy recognised when they are or(ginaled. AU othe< financial assets and 
financial liabilities ;are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contnctual provfsioos of the instrument.A flnancia( asset (vnless it is a trade 

receivable without a s ignificant financing component) or fW'lancial liabUitY Is Initially measured at fair value! plvs °'minus, for an item not at FVTPl, transactk>n costs 
that al"'f! directly attributable to its ac::quisitiOI'! or- issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initiallv measured at the transaction price. 

(j) Financial Hsets 

SubseQuent Measurement 
A• recognisfl':d nnancial assets 1re subst:quent ly measured at amortized cost using effective inter~t me:thod except for financial assets <arried at fair value through 

Profit and loss (FVTPL) or rair valve through other comprehensive income (FVOO). on the ba:;:i.s of its business model for managing the fJOanclal ;assets and the 
contractual cash now characteristic.s of the financial asset. 
Initial reco1nition and measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially re<ognlsed when they are originated. AU other financial assets and nnancial liabilities are initially recognised 
when the Company becomes a party to the cootrartual provisions of the lnstrument. 

A financial a sset (uoless It is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) OI financial liability is initrally measured at fair value plus or minus, fa< an 
item not at FVlPL,. transaction costs that are directly iilttributable to iU acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is inltlaUy 

measured u t~ transaction p6ce. 
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITED 
Notes to flnandal rtatement.s for thll! year ended 31 March 2024 
(Currency: Indian rupees In lakhs) 

Debt instruments 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the f~lowing conditions are met: 
a) The asset i.s hekl within a business model whose objective is to hold aissets for collecting contractual t ash flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the a.sset give rise oo specified dates to cash flows th.at are solely payments ol principal and interest (SPPl) on the principal amount 

outstanding, 

After initial meuurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at iilmort.ised cost using the effective: inLetest rate (EIRj method. Amortised cost is 
calcul.ilted by taking Into account imy disc.ount or premium and fees or costs that are an Integral put or the EIR. The EIA amortisation is included in finance Income in 
the profit or loss. 

Equity lnS1ruments 

On inltial recognition of an e:quity investment that is not held for trading. the Company h;!JS an irrevouble option or designating certain equity lnstrume.nts as FVOCI. 

Option of 00-Signating instruments as FVOCI is done on an inrtrument-by-insuoment basis. The classifkatlon made ort initi~ ruognitron )s irrevoc.able. If the 
Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the. instrument ate recogni:i:ed in Stat'1?ment of Othl!r Comprehensive 
Income (SOO). Amounts from SOCI arl! not subsequently transferred to profit and loss, even on s&1le of investment. 

De-recognition 

A fimmdal asset (or. where apj:)licable, a part of 1 financial asset or part of a Company or similar financial assets) is primat~y detecognlsed {i.e. removed from the 
Company's balance sheet) when: 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

The Company has transferred its rithts to receive cash Nows from the asset or has assumed an ob~carion to pay the received cash Flows In full without material delay 
to a third party under a 'pass-through' atrangl!men.t; and either (a) the Company has tra,..sferred substantially all the risks and rewar<U ol the asset. or {b) th@. 

Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the ass~t. but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Compaoy has transferred its rights to receive cash nows from an asset°' has entered into a p ass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent 

it ha~ fetained the risks aM rewards of ownership. Wheo it has neith~r t ransferred nor retained substantially all of tht rlsks and rewards of the asset, nor 
transferred control o f the asset, the Compa.ny continues to recognise the transfened asset to the extent of th@ Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the 
Company also recognises an associated Uability. The transferred asset and the associated hbility arl!! measured on a basis that refle:cts the rights and oblJgations that 
the Comoanv hiH ret3lned. 
Continuing lnvolvl!ment that rakes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset ts measured at the lower of the original c.arrylng amount of the 4lsset and the 

maximum amount ot c.onstderation that the Company coukt be required to repay. 

lmpa\rment of financial assets 

In accordance with lnd·AS 109, the Company appffes expected etedit 1oss (EU) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial 
assets and credit risk u:posure: 

a) Flflancial asseu that are debt instruments. and are measured at amorti~ cost e .g., loans, debt securities, deposits, and bank balance 

b) Lease receivables 

c) Tr.1de recolvables 

The Company foUows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairml!nt loss allowance on: 

Trade receivables whtch do not contain a slgnificaot financing compor.ent. 

AN ~ase receivables resulting from transactions. 

The application or simpllrled approach does not requifl! the Company to track changes in credit risk. R~ther, it recognises impairment k>ss allowance based on 
lifetime ECLs ilt each reporting date. right from its fnitial recoaniUon. 

For recognition of lmpalrment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a !ligniti.cant Increase in the 

credit risk since lnitlcM recognition. If credit risk h.as not Increased significantly. 12-month ECL is used to provide for Impairment loss. However. if credit risk has 
increased significantly, Hfetime ECL is used. If, in a .subset1uent period, credit qualicy or the instrument improvM such that there is no looger a siCnlficant increase in 
credit rtsk since initial recognitlon, then the entity reverts to recognising impafrment k>ss allowance based on 12-month ECL 

(ii) Flnanclal llabillties 

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequ~nlly measured at amorti.5ied c:ost. 6Cept for financial llabi!ities at fair value th,ough profit or loss. Such 

liabirities, including derivatives that are liabiBties. are. subsequently measured at falrv.alue. 

lnltfal recognttion and m.asurement 

Financial liabilities are dassified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilit ies at fair value through p<ofit Of loss , foans held at amortised cost or as derivatives 
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

All financial bbilities are rl!cognlsed initiaMy at fair value and, in the case of amortised costs, nl!t of directly attributabl~ transact!on costs.. 

Financial llabilltles 1t fair vak.ie 1hrough profit or loss (FVTPL) 

A financial llability is classified as at FVTPL If It is dassified as held-for-trading, it ls a derivative or it is designated as such on in=tial recognftion. FiNncial liabilities are 
classlfled as hl!ld ror trading if they are incurred for the purpose of rel)\lrchaslng in the: neat tetrn. This category also 1ndudes derivative financ.lal instruments entered 
into by the Cornpany that are not designated as hedging insttuments in hedge relat ionships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also 
da.ssined as held for tradtng unless they are d@signated as effective hedging instrnments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities heh:S for trading are recognised in tht: profit or loss. 

Anandal Jiabmties desfgnated upon lnit\at recognition at fair vatve: through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria ln Ind­
AS 109 are satisfied. for liabilities designated as MPL. fair value gains./lo.sse.s attributable to changes in own credit Msk are recognized in OCL Tiles!! gains/loss are 

not subsequel\t ty transferred to profit and loss. However, the Company may transfet th~ cumulafFVe gain ot loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such 

liabillty are re<ognised in the na:tement of profit or loss. The Company has not de$isnated any financial Mability dS at fair value through profit and loll. 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest rate (EIA.) m~thod. Gains 

and losses are recognised in rxofit or loss when tne liabilities are derecognized. Amortised cost ls calculated by taking into Gccount any discount or p1emrum on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an lntegr~I part of the EIR. TM EIA amortis~tlon rs included as finance costs i11 the statl!ment of proflt and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial liabiNty is derecog11~sed when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancetted or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by 

another from the same le nder on subrnntiaHy different re rms, ot the terms of an existing liability are s ubstantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as the de<ecognition of the origin al liability and the rec.ogr\itK>n of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying atr"IOUnts is recosnlsed In the 
statement of profit or loss. 

Offsottlng of finanda.I instrumt1:nt5 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and th.e net amount is reported m lhe balance sheet where there is a legalty enfofceable right to offset the: tecognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis Of realise the: asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The lesally enrorceable right must not bl! 

contingent on future ev~ts and m\Jst be enforce.able in the notrnal course of business and in the event of default.. insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 

' counterparty 
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INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIMITI:O 

Notes to financial statemtnts for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Currency: I ndian rupees In lokhs) 

(k) Prop<uty, plant and equipmont 

(I) Recognition ind measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, ;md indudes capitalfsed borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation aod impairment loss.es, if any. 

Cost or an item of propertv. plant and equipment comprise of its purchase price, including Import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deductine trade 

discounts and rebates, directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cos.ts of dismantllnt and removing 
the item and restoring the site on which it i.s located, if any. 

If signiOcant parts of an item of 1>ropert.y, p4ant and equipment have diffett:nt us~ful lives. thf!n the:y are accounted for as separate items (maJor components) of 

property, plant and eqYipment. 

Any gain°' loss on disposal of an item or property, plant and equipment is recogoised in statement of profit and loss. 

(ii) Subsequent •xpondituro 

Subsequent expenditure Is cap!tallsed only if it is probable that the future economic. benefits associ~Hed with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

(i~t) 01:pr1:dation 

Oe:predation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residu"I vcilues. over t heir e5-timated usef'-11 tives using t"e straight· 
Hne method, and is genera lly recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Assets acquired under finance leases are: d@p reciated over the: shorter o f the lease term 

and their us@Jul livt!:s unle:ss it is reasonably certain that the Comparty will obtain owne:rsh.1p by the end of the lease term. 

Thf! e:stimatf!d userul liv!S (in years) for the current and comparative periods are: as fo llows: 

Ass~t 

Plillflt and machinery 
Electric.al fittings 
Offtee equipment 
Computers and Servers 
Furniture al'\d fixtures 

Motor vehicles 

Management estimate of useful life 

10years• 
10years 

1· lOyears• 
3·6years• 
S- 8years• 

5 years• 

• For these cl.ass o f anets, based on technical evaluation and interna l assessment of usage pattern, the management believes that the v seful life as adopted best 
represents th e pe.riod over which the management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets are k>wer from the usefu l lives as p<escrJbed 

undt!::r Part C o f Scht!:dule II of the Companiu Act, .2013 

Depreclattoo method, useful lives and residua l values are reviewed at each financial year·end aod adjusted if appropriate. Tangible assets individualty costing 165 

th;rn or equal to INR S,000 are fully depredated 1n the year of acquisition. 

DepreciaUoo on additions (disposals) rs provided on a pro·ra1a basts I.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for u se {disposed of). 

(I) Other lntangiblo assets 
(i) Recognition and m e asurement 

Intangible assets that are .xquired by the C~pany and have fW'l ite us@fu l rives aft measured at cost less ~cumulated amortisation and .accumulated Impairment 

losses. 
{ii) Subsequent eJCpenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised onty if it Is probable that the future economic benefits associated with th.! expenditure will flow to the Company. 

(iii) AmortisatK>n 
Amortisation is ca\culat~ to write off the cost of intangibte assets less their esllmOlted residual valul!.\ over their estimated useful ~ves using the straight-line 

method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in statement of profit and loss. Intangible assets comprise of softwate purchased which are amortised over 

a period of s years. 

(m)fi) Investment property and Ri&.ht to use an nset 
Property that is held to earn rentals or for capital apprttfation or both, but not for sale in the ordlnary co1Kse of business, aOO that is not occupied by the Company, 

is. classified a> investment property. Investment property Is measured initlally at its cost, including related transaction costs and where appUca~e bcwrowlng costs. 
St..ibseqoent to initial recognition, investm@nt property is me:a.\ured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.Th@ 

lntemation~ Convention Centre constructed by the Company is considered to be a part of il'lvestment p roperty because il ~ intended to cater primarily to the 
occupants of the commercia l properties thdt are leased by ttie Company to third partlu and therefore an integral p.art of such commercial properties 

1rwestrnent Pfoperty is derecognised either when it has been disposed of or when It Is permanently withdrawn from use and no future Monomic benefit is expected 
from its disposal. Any gai!'l or loss on disposal of in\le:stmt!'nt property (calculated as the. difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the ca rrying amount 

of the Item) is recogoised in profit or loss.When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount o f the replaced part is derecognised. 

The estimate useful lives flo years) are as follows~ 

auildings 
Plant and machinery 
Electrical fittings 
Office equi pment 
leasehold Land 

Management 

estimate of useful 

25 years• 
10 yeaNi• 
10 years 
10 years• 
99years 

•For this class of assets, b ased on technical evaluation :;ind intem~I assessment o f usage pattern, the manasement bel ieves ttlat the useful ~fe as adopted best 
represents the period over whtch the management expectS to u se these assets. Hence, the useful lives for the.!e assets are lower from the useful lives as prescribed 
unde r P<irt C of Schedule II of the Cornpanie5 Act, 2013 

Investmen t property is derecognised either when it ha '!i been dlspo.sed of or when it is perman,nt ly withdrawn from use <1nd no future economic benefit is expected 
from lts disposal. Any gaio or loss on disposal of investment property icakulated as the diffefence between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount 
of the item) is recognised in profit or loss . 

The Fa\r V3lues of lnve5'tment property 15 disdo5ed io Note 4 . Such Fair Va lues are determined after COM4dering valvatioo by an independent valuer who hok1s., 

recogr'\ized and re levant profess iooCJI qualification aod experience in respect of the mvestment property beint valued. 

(ii} Subsequent Expenditure: 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying cimount onry when it is probable that future economic benefits associa ted with the expenditure will 
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(Curreney: Indian rupees In lakhs) 

Investment property under construction 

Property that is being constructed fCK future use as investment property Is accounted tor as Investment prope.n.y under construction until construction or 

development ts complete. Direct expenses like site tabour cost, material used in project construction, project mancicement consultancy, costs f()( moving the plilnt 
and machinery to the site and general expens~ incurred spec]fic.aQy for the respective project like salary costs, insurallCe, desigri and t ech nical ilssist.ance, borrowing 

costs and coosuuction overheads are taken as the cost of the project. 

An Item of investment property Is derMognised upoo dtsposal or wh!n no hJture economic bene fits ilre Qxpected from its use. Profits and losses on disposars of 
ltems of inves.tment property are determined by compcwing the proceeds from their disposals w ith their respective c.arryifls amounts, and art: recognised lo the 

uatement of profit and foss. 
Right to use an asset 
The cost of the leasehokJ land is fecognised at the upfroot premium whk:h the Company had paid to the land owner at the inception of th!! Jease tommencement, 
plus any incidental costs and the same is amortised using the straight·line. method over the le<1se term. 

With effect from 01 April 2019, tM Company has <ipplied IND AS 116 aod therefore reclassified leaHhold land from ~nvestment P'OP'rtv to Right to use an asset. 
The right to use an asset ls subsequently measured at cost less 3l'IY accumulated amortisation and impainnent losses. The right to use ~n asset is amortised using the 

straight·llne method from the commeoce.ment date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of r1ght to use an asset. The estimated useful lives of right to use an 

asset are determined oo the basis of lease term. Right to use an asset are tested for impairment whenever there i.s :my ir.dlcatlon that their carrying amo\Jnts may 
not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and lo.ss. 

(n} Impairment 
(i) Impairment of financial instruments 

The Company recosnises loss aUowance-s for expec.ted credit losses on: 
· fin3nclal assets rneasured at amortised cost: and 

• financial assets measured at FVOCI. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether such fit\anc~ assets are credit·impaired. A financial asset is 'credft·impa?red' when one or more events that 

have a detnme.ntal impact on the estimated future Ulsh flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit~mpalred indudes the following observable data: 

• slgniflcant financial difficulty of the borrower or ;ssuer; 
- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more; 
· the restructuring of a k:Jan or advance by the Company o n terms that the Company would oot con5'der otherwise; 

· it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or 

- the disappearance of an active market for i1 security because of financial difficulties. 

The Company measures loss allowances at an amour.t equal to lifetime expected crl!dit losses, except for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected 

credit tosses: 
~ debt sec1.ui t iM that are determined to have low crl!l'dit risk at the reporting d ate; and 

·other debt sec.uritles and bank bafances f0< which credit risk (I.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument} has oot Increased 
significantty since initial recognition. 

Loss allowances for trade feceivable.s are .:ilways measured at ian amount equa l to lifetime expected credit losses. 

Lifetime expectl!d credit losses are the expecte d credit los~ that result from all possible default events over the exl)ected life. of a financial instrument. 

12-month expected credit losses a re the portion of expected credit tosses that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date 
{or a shorter period if the e.xpected life of the instrument ts less th.an 12 months). 

In aU cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected C'fedft losses is the maximum contractu.al period over whkh the Company is exposed to 

credit fi.sk. 

When determining whether the uedit risk o f a financial asset has. increased significantly since Initial re:t.1)gnit ion and when estimating ell:pected credit lo5ses, the 
Company considers reasonable and supportable information that Is relevant and avaMable without undu@' cost 0 ' effort. This rnck.Jde:s both quantitative and 
q\Jalitative information and analysis, based on t he Company's hi?.torical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward·lookWl.g information. 

Measurement of expected cre.cfrt losses 

Upected credit losses are a probability·weighted e.stlmate of credit tosses. Credit loss!!.! are measured as the present value of all ca.sh shortfalls (i.e. tt\e difference 
between the cash flows due to the Company In accordancl! with the: contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to recerve). 

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses In the balance 5heet 
Loss allowances ror financial assets measured a t amortised cost are deducted from the gross carry;ng amount of th! assets. 

Writl!off 

The gross Cil,rying amount of a financial asset is written off (l!ither partitJlly or m full) to the extent that there is no reillistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the 

case when the Com,nny determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could gene.rate sufficient cash nows to repay the amounts 
subject to the write.off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subiect to enforcement activitie!j in orde< to comply with the Compaf'ly's 
procedures for recovery o f amounts due. 

(ii) Impairment of no n·financial assets 

The Company's non· financial assl!ts, are reviewed at each reportin& date to determine whethef lh!re Is any indication of ~mpair~t. If <my such indication e xists. 
then the asset's recoverable amount is estinu1ted. 

Each cash-generating units (CGU) tepresents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash innows that are largely independent of the cash Inflows of other 
assets or CGUs. f Of impairment testinc, assets that do not generate Independent cash inflows are Companyed together into identWed CGUs. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the high!:!r of its value In use and tu fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estitnated 
futur~ cash flows, discounted to their present value ustog a pre-tax discount rate that tefll!.cts current market assessmenu of the time Vd:!UI!: of money and the risks 
specific to the CGU (or the asset). 

An knpairment loss is recognised if the c-arrying a mount of an asset or CGU e.1eceeds Its estimated recove.rable amount. Impairment losses a re recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. lmpaitment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated fifst to fe:duce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, 

and then to reduce the cafTYing amounts of the other assets of the CGU (Of' Company of CG Us) on a pro rata basts. 

An Impairment loss to respect of aoodwm is not subsequently reve~ed. In res pect of other itSSets for which impaifment loss has been ~n)Sed in prior periods., 

the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is a ny tndicatlon that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed ff there 

has been a change in the esUmat~ used to determine the recovefabl~ amoun t. SVch a <eversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not 
excee:d the: carrying amount that would have bf!: en determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no ITTlpairm@nt loss had been recognlsl!d. 
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Notes to financial statements for t he year ended 31 March 2024 
(Currency: Indian rupees In lakhs) 

(o) lnv1ntorics. 

Stock or rood and beve.rages and stores and operating supplies are carried ilt the lower of cost (computed on a Weighted A vet age basiS) or net realisable val!Je. Net 
realisable value is the: esOmat~d s~•ing prk:e In the ordina ry course of business le:ss the estimated costs of completion and sding expense~. Cos[ indudes the cost of 
fair value of consideration pafd iodu<Uns dudes and taices {other than those refundable), inw11rd frefght and other e:xpenditurt directly attributable to the purchase. 

Trade d~counts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase.The comparison of cost and net realisable valu@ is made on an item-by-Item basis. 

Stocks of stores and spares a nd Ope<i)ting supplies (viz. crockery, cutlery, glassware, linen etc} once issued to the operating departmeots are c.omkfered as 
consumed and expensed to the Statement of Profit and toss. Unserviceable/damased/di:scarded stock.sand shortages are charged to the Statement or Prom ;rnd 

Los.s.. 

(p) Employ•• ben•flts 

(i) Short-term employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related seNit:e is provided. A liabilily is recognised for the amount e xPKted to be paid if the Company has a 

p<esent legal or constroctlve OONgat~n to pay this amount as a re.suit o f past servk:e provided by the employee and the obligatton can be estimated relia~y. 

(ii) Compensated absences 
The ltabillties for earned leave and sick leave are n.ot expected to be seUlctd wholly within 12 months a fter the e nd of the period in whi(h the e mpkiyees render the 
related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made In respect of services provfded by e mployees up to the 
end of the reportlns period using t he projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of lhe. 'eporting period that have 

terms approx1mating to the tet"ms. of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes In actuarial assumptions 01re 

recos:nised in profit or loss. The ob~gatiOi's are p<esented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the Company doe..s not have an unconditlon<1I right to defer tne 
setde~nt for at le:ast twetve mootns after the reporting date. 

(111) Ooflned contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post·employrnent benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribut<ons into a sep3"ate entity and wt• have no legal or 
constructive obltgation to pay further amounts. ~ Company milkes specified monthly contributions towards Gove1nment administered provident fund scht me. 
Obligatlons for contributions to defined contribution pJ.ans are recogn~sed ilS an employee benefit expense in statement of profit and loss In the periods during 
which the related services are rendered by employees. 

(iv) [),efined benefit plans 

A de:fin~d benefit plan Is a post-employment be neOt pl01n other than a defined contribution plan. The Compan(s ne.t obllgiltion In f"espect of defined benefit plans is 

cakulated by estlmilting the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amc>\Hlt and deducting the fair 
value of any plan assen. 
The: c:akulatk>n of defined benefit obligatioti is perfofmed annualty by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit me thod. 
PremeasurernenU' of the net defined benefit liability comprise of actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset cemng (if any, ei:duding interest), are 

recognised in OCJ. The Comp;any determines the net Interest expense on the net defined benefit liability fOf the: period bv applying the discount r.ite used to 
measure: the defloed benefit obllgatlon at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liabllity, ta~ing into account any changes in the net 

defined benefit liability during the period as a resutt of contributions and benefit payments. Net inte:re:st expense 01nd other expenses related to defined bef'll!!lit 

plans are rec.ognised in s lalement of profit and loss. 
(v) Other long-term employee benefits 

The Company's ne:t obligation in respect of long-term em~oyee: benefits other than post~mployment benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees h:a.ve 

ear11ed In return for their service in the cur(ent and prlor periods; that benefit is discounted to determfne its present value:, and the fair value of any related assets is 
d educted. The obligation is measvred on the basis of an annual tndependent actuarial valuation uslng the projected unit credit method. premeasurement's gains Of' 

losses are recognised in statemenl of profit arld loss lo the period in which they arise . 

{q) Provisions and Contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a pre.sent obligiHion (legal or constfuctive) as ai result of .i: past event, it Is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be miK1e of the amount cf the obhgatfon. Expected future 

opE""rating losses are not provided for. 

long.term provtsions are determined by discounling the eic;pected future cash Hows specific to the liabiNty. The unwln~ng of the discount is recognised as fN1ance 

cost. 

Provisions art measured at the present value of managttner'lt's best estimate of the eic;penditure re4uired to settle the pre.sent obligation at the end of the reporting 

period. The discount ratl! u sed to determine tlie prese11t value is a pre-tax rate: that reflects cur(ent market assessments of the time value of money aod the risk.s 
s pecific to the tiabillty, The increase in the provisioii due: to the pas.sage of time is recognised as irnerest expense. 

Onuous e:onttacts 

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract arad the expected net cost of 

continuing with the contract. Befo<e a ptovislon ls established. the Company (ecognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. 

Contingent Uabilities 

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when the(e is a possible obligation or a present obligation lhat may. but will probab4y not, require an outflow of 
resources. Information on contingent liabiNties is d isclosed in the notes to financidl statements unless the possibility of an outfk>w of resources embodying economic 

benefit is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the fiOilodal statements where an inOow of economic benefit is p<obable. 

(r) Reve nue ,..cognition 

(i) Aer'ltal lnr:ome 

Revenues from property le.ase.d out under operating lease is recogni.sed as income on a straight line ho.sis over the lose term unless rhe rec.e:ipts from the lessee are 

structured to increase in llne with expected general inflaUon to compensate for the Company's expected inflationary cost increas~. except whe<e there is 
uncertainty of ultimate collectio n. l ease incentives received are: recognised as an integral part of the total lease incoml!!, over thl? lease term. 

Revenue is recognised to lhe: extent that lt is probable that the economic benefits will Row to the Company and the revenue can be re.li:abJy measured. 

Contract balances 

Contract a sset Is the right to coosideration in exchange for goods Of services transferred to the custom!!:r. If the Company performs by transrer-ring goods or services 
to a custome1 be:fore the customer pays consld e,ation or before payment is due. a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideraHon th;it ~ conditional. 

Trade receivilble represents the Company's right to an amoUt'lt of consideration that is uncondit ional (i.e., only the passage of time is required beforl!! payment of the 
consideration is due}. 

(ii} Renderini of lnternat~nal Convention Centre Services 
Reveoue from rendering of International Convention Centre Servic~ is recognized at the transaction price that is aUocated to the performance obHgation. Reven~ 

includes room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet se<Vk:e-s whkh is recogniz.ed once the rooms are: occupied, food 0tnd beveuges are sold and banquet 

sCf'Yices h ave been provided as per the contract with the customer respectjvely. 
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(Jll) Rendering of Other Suvkes 

Operation al'\d Maintenance chargC!s and parking charwes are recogniz.ed on an accrual basis as and when the Company satisfies performance obfigations by 

delivering the servM:es as per contractual agreed t erms for providing niaintenance of the property. 

Considering that the companv's prima~ source of Income is from lea5e arrangements with •ts c\Jstomers which is covered under Ind AS 116 as Lea.ses, the 
applicability of Ind A.SUS does not have effect on the fN"landal statemenh of the Company. 

(s) Int erest Income 

Interest income from a financial asset ts recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount ot income can be 
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. 

{t} Recognitlon of interut income or eicpense 

Interest income or expe:r1se Is recognised using the effective inte rest method. 
The 'effMtive: "1terest rate' is the rate that exactly dUc:oonu tstimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life. o f the financial instrume:flt 
to: 

- the gross carrytng amount of the financial ass.et; or 

· the amonised cost of the financial liabllfty, 

In calculating interest income and expense, the effe.ctive interest rate is applied to the gfoss tal'rfin£ amount of the asset (when the asset Is not credit-impaired) or 
to the amortised cost or the liability. However, for finandal asset.s that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income ls cakulated 

by applying the effective interest rate to the amorfo@d cost of the financial asset. If the ass.et is no longer credit· impaifed, tne11 the calcut.tk>n of lncerest income 

reverts to the gross basis. 

{ul Income tax 

Income tax comprises curteot and deferred tax. It is recogn~ed in .statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directfy In 

equity or in other comprehen~ve income. 

Current t JiX 

Current t ax comprises. the e)(pected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the ta>i: payable or receivable Mi 
fespect o f previO\ls years. The amount of c.urfent t<tx payable or receivable Is the best estimate of the tax amount ~pected to be paid or received that reflects 
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. ft ls meas.ured using tax rates enacted or substantive:ly en~ct~d at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised in respea of temparary difterences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financral reportirig purposes aind the 
amounts used for taxatlon purposes. 

Deferred rax asseu are rtcognised rot unused taJ( k>sses, unused tax credits and deductible tempo<ary differences to the eKtent that it is ptobable th11:t future 
taxabl@ profits wl• be available against which they can be used. F1.Jture taxable P"Ofits are determined bas.ed on business plans fo' lridiVio'ual subsidiaries. in the 
Company. Deferred tax assets afe reviewed at each reponing date and art! feduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the rl'!'lated tax benefit Yll'U be 

realisedi such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxa blc profits improves. 

Unrecosnised deferr~ tax assets are reassessed at each reponing date and recognised to the extent that it has become probabie that foture taxable profits will be 
avaifabJe against which they can be used. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or submntivety 
enacted at the reporting date. 

The profits and gains from operations of an undenaking or an enterprise engaged in development of special economic tone are exempt from taxes under Section 

SOtAB of the Indian Income tax Act, 1951. The deduction can b! daimed fOf any ten consecuttve ass!.Ssme.nt years out of fifteen yea~ beginnITTg from the: yeu in 
which the Company is eligible for such deduction. In this regard, the Company recognizes deferred taxes in respect of those originating timing differences which 

reverse after the tax holiday period, resulting in tax consequenc.es. TimNig differences which originate and reverse within the tax holidav period do not fH ult in t ax 

consequence and, therefore. no deferred taxes are recognised in respect ol the same. 

{v} Borrowing c.osts 
Borrowing costs are interest incurrtd rn conflec.tion with the borrow;ng of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable: to acqUisitioo or construction of an assEt 

which necessarily take a substantJal period of time to get ready '°' their Intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that ass.et. Other borrowtng costs are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Investment income earned on the temporary Uwestme.nt or specific borrowings pending their eK.penditure on qualifying assets is de<lucted from the borrowing co:sts 
eligi~e for caplta~satton, 

(w} Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and ca.sh ~uivalent complise of cash on hand and at banks in<-ludlng short~term de posits with an orlglnil matU(ity of thrl!!I!! mol\ths or less, which are subjt!!Ct 

to an insigniftcant risk of changes in vallle. Other bank deposits which are oot In the nature of cash and cash equivalents with a maturity period of more than three 
months are classified as other bank balanc!.s. 

(•) Earnings per share 

BasK: earnings per share Js computed by dividing the profit I (loss) after tax (inch.1ding the post tax effect of ~xtraardlnary items, if My) by the we:fghted average 

number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ !loss) after tax (Including the post tax effect of 
ext1aordinary ite ms, If any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the 

weighted average number of equity shares conlidered for derMng basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have 
been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity share:s would 

decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the begiMing of the period, 

unless they have been issued at a lllter date. The dilutWe patential eq\lity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable: had the shares been actually ls.sued at fair 
value (i.e. aveJage market vak.Je of the outstanding shares}. Dilutive pottntial equity share> iJre determlne-d ir.dependently for each period pt'esented. The number of 

t!!QUily shares and potentially dilutive equity ~hares are adjusted for share s plits I reverse share splits and bonus shares. as appropriate. 
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Notes to financial statements for th• year ended 31 March 2024 
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs) 

(y) Lease• 
Company as 1 lessee 
The Company applies a single recognition and me3~rement approach ror al leases. except for short-term leases and ~ases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises lease Jiabilities to make tease paymen.ts and right·of-use assets 1epr~sent1ng the right to use the unde<tying a!Set.s.At Inception of a conkract, the­
Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period or time tn exchange for con.sideration, 

(I) Ri1ht of Uoe Aooet 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the tease. Right-of-u~ assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depre:ciatton 
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re:measuftrnent of lease liabilitie.s. lhe cost of right-or-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, 
lnitial difect co~t.s Incurred, lease payments made at 0< before rhe commencement date l@.Ss any lease incentivM recl!"ived. Risht-of-use asset.s are de preciated on a 

straight-line basis from the commencement date to the end of lease term. 

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflec~ the e.xerctse ol a purchase option, depreciation is 
calculated using the est imated useful life of the asset. 

The right-of·use assets are also subject to lrnpairment. Refer lo the accounting policies of Impairment of non-fin.a ncia l assets.( Ref e r Note-5) 

{ii) Short term leases and leases of low value of assets 

The Company applies the short·ttnTI lease recognition exe mption to 'ts short-term leas~ of machinery and equipment. It also appfies the tease of k>w value ;assets 

recognition exemptOO to leases that a re considered to be low v.alue. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of k>w~value assets are recognised as expe:nse 
on a straight-line basis rwer the lease term. 
Company as a Lessor 
leases in which the company does not transfet sobstanUally all t he risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an a.sset are dassifie d as operating leases. Rent31 

income arising fs accounted fO( on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. At inception or oo modification of a contract that contains a lease component;. the 
company allocates the consideration in the contract to each h!asl! component on the basis of their relative sland-alooe prfces.lnitial direct costs incurred in 
oegotiating ~od arranging an operating tease a re -added to the carrying amount o f the leased asset and recognised over the lease term oo the same basis as rental 

income. Coot tngent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 

(z) Ope tatin1 Segments 

The Company is e>perating in the re al estate and infntstructure 'industry and has only do~stic. operations. The Company has only one reportable business segment. 
whkh Is development o f real estate ~nd infrastructure facilities (tnduding lnte:rnational Convention Centre facilities) dnd onty one reportable geographical segnient. 

AJI assets of the Company are domiciled in India and no other geograptiical area. 

(aa) Operating Cyclo 

Based on the nature or activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their rea•isation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company 

has dete rmined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classifecaUon of its assets and Uabrnties as current and non-current. 

(ab) Recent pronouncements 

Mlnisuy of Corpora1e affairS ( .. MCA") notifies new stcindards or ame ndments to the existing .standards under new Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as 

issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards apPlicable to the 
Company. 
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Notes tc financial ~tate.ments tor t he yea r ended 3 1 March 2024 

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs) 

3 (I) Property, pla nt and equipment 

P3rtlcuh1 rs 
Plant a nd 

Machinery 

Cost 
Balaoce as at 1 April 202! ro.56 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance as at )1 March 2024 30.56 

Balance as at 1 Aprll 2022 30.56 

Ad<Htloos 
Olsposats 
Balance Hat 31 March 2023 30.56 

Ac:cumul1tcd dtpreciatlon ,ilmrJrth:•tlon and impairment 

Balance as at l April 20Z3 3056 
Depreciation and amortlsallon for the year 
Disposa ls 
Balanct as a t 31 Mar ch 2024 30.56 

Balance as at l April 2022 3056 
DepredaUon and amortlsa1ion for the yeu 
Disposals 
Balann as at 31 Ma rch 2023 30.56 

Net Carryin1 1mount as a t 31 Match 2024 

Net Canyine: amounl as u ll March 2023 

3 (Ii) lnt1 ngibkl 1ssets 

Electria l Flttlngs 

115.97 

115.97 

115.97 

115.97 

115.97 

llS.97 

115.97 

115.97 

Particulars Intangible assets 

Cost Softwa re Total 
8a~nce ~s ;t l Ap<ll 2023 26.38 2.6.38 
Additktns 

Disj>OSOls 
Oalara as 1t 31 Marc.h 2024 26.38 26.38 

Balance as at 1 Apfil 2022 26.38 26.38 
Additions 

Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 26.38 26.38 

Ac.cumulated depred•tlon ,1mon.lnitlon and impairment 
BalaM.1! as at 1 Aprll 2023 26.38 26.38 

Depredation and amortisaOon for the vear 
OispoS21IS 
Balance as at 11. March 2024 2 15. :18 26.38 

Ba~an<i: as at l April 2023 26.38 26.38 

Depredation and r.mortfsdlion for the year 
0)sposa ls 
Net Carrying amount as a t 31 March 2024 26.38 26.38 

Niet Ca rryt11c arnount a.sat 31 March 1014 

Net Carryjnc amount as • t 31 March 10'?3 

4(1) lnvu tment e:r~!:!l 

Particuhus 8uildinc Oth e:rS 

Sala nee <1s a t l April 2023 244,910.73 52.920.23 
Additions 4,478.48 

Disposals ll,406.4~ 
8.ill ance u at 31 March 2024 244,910.73 55,992.24 

Balaocr as at l April 2022 244,877.41 51.883.93 
Addiliom 33.32 1,036.30 

Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 244,910.73 52.920.23 

Bal<1nce as at lAprll 2023 76, 180.19 32,930.80 
Depreciation aqd imor\lsatiof\ ror the year 9,796.47 5,144.26 
Ois,posals (1,4<l6A7) 

Balance as at 31 March 2.024 85 976.66 36.668.59 

Balance a~ at l April WU 66,384.94 27,040.46 

Depreciation anct amortisation for the year 9,79S.25 5,890.34 

r:Mp~.als 

Ba la nce a5 a t 31 Ma rch 2023 76,130.19 3 2,9:10.BD 

Net C.uryinu: amount as at 31 Ma rth 2024 158,9:M.07 19,323.SS 

Ne t CiirrylnK amount it:S at 31 Ma ri:h 2.023 168,730.S4 19,989.43 

Note: 

Prope'!t. plant and equipment 

Offk:e 
f!<luipment 

217.82 
0 .14 

217.96 

217.82 

217.82 

177.36 
15.08 

192.44 

152.87 
24.49 

177.36 

25.52 
40 .46 

Total 

297.830.96 
4,4 78 . .48 

( l ,406.47) 
300,90"2.97 

29G.76L34 
1,069.62 

297,830.96 

109,ll0.99 

14,940.73 
(1,406.47) 

122,645.25 

93,425.40 

15,685.59 

109,110.99 

178,257.72 

188,719.97 

C'amputers 

67.91 

67.91 

66.88 

1.03 

67.91 

63.26 
2.92 

66.11 

60.56 
VO 

63.26 

1.73 
4.65 

Furniture and 
Fixtures 

139.77 

139.77 

139.77 

139.77 

139.77 

139.77 

139.77 

139.77 

Mobi'le 

equipment 

1-55 

Z.21 

3.76 

1.55 

1.55 

1_55 

l.SS 

1 55 

1.55 

Ul 

Motor 

vehides 

17.22 

17.22 

12.26 

4.96 

17.22 

ll .57 
0.75 

13.32 

1226 
0.31 

12..51 

3.90 

•.65 

Tot-al 

590.80 
2.35 

593.15 

584.81 
5.99 

590.80 

5'1.04 
18.75 

559.79 

513.54 
27 .SO 

541.04 

3H6 

49.76 

ii The title deed.s of a ll t he immovable siropert.1e.s induded in inveslment siropert1es (other lhan the ~3nd whe.re the Company Is th~ le-ssee ;md the lease ae:reemenu are duly execuled In favOb< of 

the lessee). are held in the f'1ilme of the Company. 
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4{1i) Investment propll'!rty undat construction 

s 

C.onstrucdon costs 
Bouowine cosl'S 

Particulars 

Otl"ler dkect costs (!\et of dN-ert income) 
Transferred to Investment Property 

total 
Note: 

As at 
31 March 2024 

4,505.52 

338.35 
14,478.481 

36U9 

Movtment ln the As a t 
Mov1mentin 
the Current 

Ant 

Currentyur 31 March20U 31 Marth 2022 
yf!:ar 

4,505.52 28.017.76 
13,927.74 

338.35 3,355.18 
(4,478.48) ( 45,300.68) 

365.39 

Investment property comprises a number ol c.ommerci;>I propert~s char are leased to third parties. Eac.h of Che ~ases entered are normalty '°' a period of 5 to 10 yeats Subsequent renewals a.re 
negotiated with lhe lessee or a s pe< the turm: uf in~tial aereement are <MJtOfl1iit0taUy renewed. 
The fair vakJe o( illves.tment property are determined ~fter consideting valuation by an independen1 vall.ler who holds a recognlsed ana relevanl profess~! qualifkatlon and 6perience io respect 
of the investment property being valiJed. A valuation model io accOf'd~e with 1hat: recomme nded by the lnt.e1nalional Vi>luation Standards. COMmlUtt hat. ~en a~ltd for valu.atKions perfOfmed 

bv Independent valuer. The independent vatuer is a reg;stered v;iluer as de fined under rule 2 o( Companies (Registl!fed VakJets ind Valuiltion) Rules, 2017. 

Valua1ton technique 
The Company follows disc.ourned e>sh flows technique whKh considers the presen1 value of net cash nows to be generated from the inves1n11mt property, u1tn3 rlsk-ad;lnted disc.oun\ r;a.tes. 

Tilt fa fr value me.asort m4!!n' fOf al of the Investment property has been categorised a s a Levell lai.t value biased on the inputs. to the valuation techntque ustd. 

Key Assumptions 
In this reg;iird, the key as.sun"lf)ttons used for fair value calc1.113tlC>n5 are ai follows: 
• Rislc-~usted di5counr t3tes 
• Terml~ growtll/ caphatln.tton rate 
- Budget~ ES.TOA base d on pfevalent rental rates. 

SignJfic~nl unobservable inpuu used in v.o:ituatiotl~ 

PJsk-adjusced distount rato {"I 

l u minal capil31isation ratt l%) 

Estlmated lease rem1ls (INR P'er sq. ft.) 

Reconciliation of fair Yalue 

A.sat Asat 
Sensitivity 

31 M;iirch 2024 31 Mirch 2021 

12.08% 

7.2%-8% 

INR 38- R>.130 

U l0% Estimated fair value woutd decrease (incrt :ase ) if expected discount rate were 
· hif:h<1 (lowtr) 

£slimated fair value woukJ incre.a~ {decrtast) if expected 1ermlnt1l opitalisation 
S.0%-S.S% we re lower (higher~ 

INR 50 ~ Rs.l2
2 
=:ed falr vahie would increase (decrease} if expected lease rern wtre higher 

The Comp;my evaluates lmpairme:nt ror lnves1men1 PfOperty ;md lnvestme.nc property under consfructton aftogether as both re.late 10 same project. The followtn& is the reconc.lliatton in the fair 
values as of 31 Much 2024 and 3 1 March 2023. 

Pan.icula1s Fiir value 

As II 01 April 2023 667,870.00 
Addllfons' 4,478.48 
hit v;Mue difference 38,981.52 
Bala~ as at 31 March 2.024 711,!lO.OO 
A> >t 01 April l0'22 568,728.00 
Additions 1,069.62 
Faif vilh.re differet\C'e 98,072.38 
Balanc1 as a t 31 Much 2023 667 870.00 

~ht-of-use :a.sset 
P<Jrticvlars Leasehold Jand lot.;il 

Col"t 
Balance as at l AS)(il 2023 141,279.68 l~l.279.68 

Additions 
Eliminated on d(spoul o f assets 
Balance as at )1 MM<h 2024 141,279.68 141,279.68 

Bafilnce as at l Aptfl 2022 14l.,279.68 141,279.68 

Addit!ons 
Eliminated on dlspos~ of assets 
8al.1nc.e as at ll March Wl.3 141,279.68 141,279.68 

Acwmulated depreciation 
81laoce- .1S ;;u 1 AP'" 2023 20,859.SB 20,859.58 
c na<ges for the year 1,426.92 l,426.92 
EUmjnated on di:spolill ot assets 
Balance a:s at :n M~rch 2024 22,286.50 22,286.SO 
Babncc il!i ilt 1 April 2022 19,432.66 l!l,432.66 
Charges- far the year 1,426.92 1,426.92 
Eli~t~d on dl:sposat ol assets 
Balance Hat 31 Marc.h 2023 20,859.58 20,859.58 

Net tarrytng i mount <1:s at. 31 Marc.h 2024 118,99).18 118,993.18 

Net Cl'rying amolmt as at 31 March ZOU 120,420.10 U0,420.10 

Pa1c l5 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
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6 Investments 

Investments carried at amortised cost 

Investment in Equity Shares of Other Companies fully Paid-up 

Particulars 

2,380,000 (31 Ma rch 2023: 2,380,000) equity shares of 

Perinyx Neap Private Ltd (Refer footnote below) 

1,000 (31 March 2023: 1,000) equity shares of Echanda 

Urja Private Limited (Refer footnote below) 

136,500 (31 March 2023: 136,500) equity shares of 

Vagarai Windfarms Limit ed (Refer footnote below) 

Tota l 

Note 1: 

(i) Aggregat e Carrying Value of Unquoted Investments 
(Net) 

(ii) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of 

Investm ents 
Note: 

Non-current 

As at 

31 March 2024 

238.00 

13.65 

251.65 

251.65 

As at 

31 March 2023 

(Restated I 

238.00 

13.65 

251.65 

251.65 

Current 

As at 

31 March 2024 

0.01 

0.01 

0.01 

As at 

31 March 2023 
(Rest at ed) 

0.01 

0.01 

0. 01 

The above investments represents investment in equity shares of the above mentioned entit ies pursuant to t he requirement under the Electrici ty Act, in 

connection with the power purchase arrangement t hat the Company has in place with these parties. As per the terms of these investments. t he Company is not 

entitled to any other returns or benefits and will be entitled to receive the amount invested equivalent to t he face value of the equity shares upon expiry of 

such agreements. 

7 Other financial assets 

(unsecured, considered good) 

Particulars 

Other financial assets at amortised cost 

Recovery Expense Fund 

Security deposits 

Total 

8 Other Asset s 

(unsecured, considered good] 

Particula rs 

Goods and Services tax receivable 

Advance t o suppliers 

Prepaid expenses 

Balances wi th Government and other authorities 

Other current assets 

Capital advances 

Lease equalization reserve 
Total 

9 Non-current tax assets(Net ) 

Particulars 

Advance tax and tax deducted at source (net of 

provision for t ax: INR Nil; (2023:1NR Nil)) 

Total 

Non-current 

As at 

31 March 2024 

25.00 

553.54 

578.54 

31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

25.00 

221.18 

246.18 

Non-current 
As at 

As at 31 March 2023 
31 March 2024 

(Rest at ed) 

3,578.92 1,150.62 

332.40 541.28 

6,366.39 5,383.35 

10,277.71 7,075.25 

As at 

31 March 2024 

1,379.26 

1,379.26 

Current 

As at 

31 March 2024 

Current 

As at 

31 March 2024 

287.31 

126.93 

1,059.52 

2,580.53 
4,054.29 

As at 
31 March 2023 

(Rest ated) 

1,079.72 

1,079.72 

31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

As at 

31 March 2023 

(Restat ed) 

14 9.67 

144.81 

651.36 
406.35 

0.14 

169.44 
1 ,521.77 
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10 Inventories 

Particulars 

Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value 

Food and beverages 

Stores and operating supplies 
Total 

11 Trade receivables 

Particulars 

{Secured considered Rood) 

From Related Party (Refer note·36) 

Other than Related Party 
(Unsecured consjdered good) 

Ot her than Related Party 

Total 

Note: Tra d bl e receiva es agein11 analysis 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - Considered 

good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - Considered 

doubtful 
(iii) Disputed Trade receivables- Considered 

good 
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables- Considered 

doubtful 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - Considered 

good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - Considered 

doubtful 
(iii) Disputed Trade receivables- Considered 

good 
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables- Considered 

doubtful 

12 Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balance with banks 
- in current accounts 

Unbilled revenue 

946.86 

Unbilled revenue 

817.83 

Not due 

228.77 

-

Not due 

561.52 

-

- in deposit accounts with less than or equal to 3 months original maturity 

Cash in hand 

Total 

13 Other bank balances 

Particulars 

Less than 6 

months 

1,138.25 

-

Less than 6 

months 

618.62 

-

As at 
As at 

31 March 2024 
31 March 2023 

Restated 

95.85 51.52 

85.58 56.91 
181.43 108.43 

As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

535.49 406.09 
1,604.88 1,509.53 

317.02 137.67 
2,457.39 2,053.29 

As at 31 March 2024 

6 months-
1 - 2 Years 2 • 3 Years 

1 vear 

29.15 81.68 

32.68 

-

As at 31 March 2023 (Restated) 

6 months -

1 vear 
1 - 2 Years 2-3 Years 

55.32 -

- -

-

As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

454.50 1,214.26 

29,616.82 420.51 

2.59 0.77 
30,073.91 1,635.54 

As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

In designated deposit accounts held as margin money for bank guarantee and Holdco reserve 15,780.00 
Total 15,780.00 

Page 17 

More than 3 
Years Total 

2,424.71 

32.68 . 

-

-

More than 3 
Years Total 

- 2,053.29 

-

-

-
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14 Share capital 
(a) Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up : 

Particulars 

Authorised Capita I 

Equity Shares of INR 10 each 
Preference Shares of INR 100 each 

Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10 each 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Capital : 

Equity Shar.s of INR 10 each 
Total 

As at 

31 M;trch 2024 

Number of Shares 

1,590,000,000 
50,000,000 
10,000,000 

74,984,350 
74,984,350 

Amount 

159,000.00 
50,000.00 

1,000.00 

7,498.44 
7,498.44 

(b) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

(i) Equity shares 
As at the beginning of the year 

Add: Issued during the year 

As at the end of the year 

Particulars 

(c) Terms attached to the Equity shares 

As at 
31 March 2024 

Number of Shares Amount 

74,984,350 7,498.44 

74,984,350 7,498.44 

As at 

31 March 2023 
Restated 

Number of Shares Amount 

90,000,000 

10,000,000 

74,984,350 
74,984,350 

As at 

31 March 2023 
I Restated! 

9,000.00 

1,000.00 

7,498.44 
7,498.44 

Number of Shares Amount 

10,000 

74,974,350 
74,984,350 

1.00 

7,497.44 
7,498.44 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company 

declares and pays dividends, If any, in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of shareholders in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 

Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution w ill be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

(d l Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Particulars 

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid 

Tata Realty and Infrastructure limited* 
CPP Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc 

• Includes 6 shares of INR 10 each held jointly with certain indivlduals. 

(e) Shares of the Company held by the Holding Company 

Name of Shareholder 

Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up held by 

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited* 

CPP Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc 

• Includes 6 shares of INR 10 each held jointly w ith certain Individuals. 

15 h Ot er Equity 

Partkulars Retained earnings 

As at 1 April 2022 (Restated) (58,375.51) 
On Issue of equity shares during the year 
Restatement of Deferred tax (6,586.SO) 

(Loss) for the year (17,114.77) 
Other comprehensive Income for the year 

As at 31 March 2023 (82,076.78) 
(Loss) for the year (12.939.62) 
Other comprehensive Income for the year 

As at 31 March 2024 {95,016.401 

i) Securities premium 

As at 31 March 2024 

Number of Shares 

38,242,019 
36,742,331 

% holding 

51% 
49% 

As at 31 March 2024 
Number of Shares 

38,242,019 

36,742,331 
74,984,350 

Common control 

acquisiton deficit 

account on 
acqusition of 

Subsldlarv 
(258,299.18) 

-

(258,299.18) 

(258,299.18) 

Amount 

3,824.20 

3,674.23 
7,498.44 

Securiti es 

Premium 

42,726.02 
52,626.75 

-
95,352.n 

95,352.77 

As at 31 March 2023 (Restated) 

Number of Shares 

38,242,019 
36,742,331 

% holding 

51% 
49% 

As at 31 March 2023 (Restated) 

Number of Shares 

38,242,019 
36,742,331 

74,984,350 

Defined benefit 

planned adjustment 

(6.38) 

-
2.02 

(4.36) 
(0.01) 

(4.37) 

Amount 

3,824.20 
3,674.23 

7,498.44 

Total 

(273,955.0 5) 
52,626.75 
(6,586.50) 

(17,114.77) 
2.02 

(245,027.55) 
(12,939.64) 

-
(257,967.18) 

Securities premium is used to record the premium on Issue of shar es. This reserve can be utilised only for llmited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in 

accordance wlt h the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

ii) Retained earnings 
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(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs) 

16 Borrowings 

Particulars 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

Secured 
Term loans 
from Banks (Refer Note 1 below) 

Secured/Unsecured 
Secured Non Convertible Debentures - listed 
19,000 (31 March 2023: 19,000 Unsecured) Non convertible debentures 

(NCO)@ INR 10 Lacs each, fully paid up (Refer Foot Note No. 2 below) 

Un Secured Non Convertible Debentures - Listed 

6,811 (31 March 2023: 6,811) Non convertible debentures (NCO) @ INR 10 

Lacs each, fully paid up (Refer Foot Note No. 4 below) 

Non Convertible Debentures - Un-listed 
7,089 (31 March 2023: 7,089) Non convertible debentures (NCO)@ INR 10 

Lacs each, fully paid up (Refer Foot Note No. 3 below) 

Inter Corporate Deposits from Related Parties (Refer Note 5 below) 
Over draft 

from Banks (Refer Note 1 below) 

Sanction Limit 
Note 1 

- Company has received the sanction of INR 210,000.00 Lakhs from Bank. which 

includes term loan of INR 202,500.00 Lakhs (which includes a drop line overdraft 

facility as a sub limit of the term loan of IN R 2,500.00 Lakhs),dropline OD of upto 
INR 7,500.00 Lakhs and a subl imit of LC/BG facilities upto INR 2,000.00 Lakhs. 

Non-current 

As at 

31 March 2024 

180,690.54 

79,424.84 

82,744.01 

342,859.39 

Security Details 

Asat 

31 March 2023 
[Restated) 

189,371.58 

203,276.94 

73, 153.12 

76,210.19 

542,011.83 

The loan was secured by a fi rst ranking pari passu charge on the entire 

current assets, current accounts, escrow accounts, project documents 

and such other assets. Collateral security over the investment 

properties owned by the Company; assignment or hypothecation of 

lease rent as per the Lease deeds, lease deeds and the amenities 
agreement and other leases entered by the Company in the investment 

property. 

Current 

As at 

31 March 2024 

As at 
31 March 2023 

{Restated) 

8,980.00 5,804.32 

219,409.45 

2,217.53 245.25 

1,280.75 

231,887.73 6,049.57 

Terms of Payment 

-This Term Loan from Bank was repayab le in 180 structural 

monthly installment starting from April 2022 as per the 

repayment schedule agreed. 

'-The rate of interest on term loan from Bank is linked to 

benchmark rate of MCLR Rate upto 2 November 2021 and 
thereafter RBI policy repo rate presently rate is 8.25% p.a.(31 

March 2023:8.20% p.a) 
Note 2: 19,000 Secured non convertible debentures of INR 1,000,000 each were allotted on June 27, 2022 ("deemed date of allotment"} carrying a 0% coupon rate. The tenor is of 2 years from the date of allotment, i .e. 

June 27, 2024. The redemption would be at the premium of 8.67% p.a. w ith a step up or step down or additional redemption premium as per the terms of the issuance. In the event, security is not created and perlected 

within nine months from the deemed date of allotment, the applicable Redemption Premium shall be increased by 0.27% per annum (step up redemption premium) and in the event, security is created and perfected on or 

before said date, the applicable redemption premium shall be reduced by 0.75% per annum (step down redemption premium).Currently post security creation and rate revision the Effective Interest rate is 8.40% p.a.(31 

March 2023:9.46% p.a} 

Note 3 : 7,089 Unsecured non convertible debentures of INR 1,000,000 each were allotted on July 1, 2022 ("deemed date of allotment") carrying a 10% coupon rate accrued annually and shall be due and cumulatively 
payable only from distributable cash flows . The tenor is of 15 years and 30 days from the date of allotment, i.e. July 31, 2037. The redemption would be at par. 

Note 4: 6,811 Unsecured non convertib le debentures of INR 1,000,000 each were allotted on July 7, 2022 ("deemed date of allotment") carrying a 10% coupon rate accrued annually and shall be due and cumulatively 

~ only from distributable cash flows. The tenor is of 15 years and 25 days from the date of allotment, i.e. July 31, 2037. The redemption would be at par. 

~ <(-. P,. e.$j. c. orporate deposit(ICD) comprise of de. posit r.ece. ived from the related party amounting to INR 2, 100 Lakhs out of sanctioned limits of INR 4,000 Lakhs carrying an interest rate of 100/o p.a and is repayable on 
~ C l oll!Bt naema :1)\t est accrued on Inter corporate de~lts is INR 117.53 lakhs.(31 March 2023: 10% p.a ICD of INR 225 Lacs and Interest accruals INR 20.25lacs) 

ertril 'tf>"JI \1 ~-
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17 Otherfinaocia1 Ii.abilities 

Financial liabilltle:s at amortised cost 
Interest free security deposits from customen 
Advance from Customers 

Capital Creditors 

Employee benefots payable 

Particul<Hs 

Tot1I 

Non-cu.rreot 

As•• As;it 

31 March 2024 31 Morch 2023 

(Restated) 

8,854.26 12.321.33 

8,854.26 12,321.33 

Current 

As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

(Restated I 

6,753.60 5,608.08 

197.42 
687.04 219.93 

0.64 18.74 
7,441.28 6,044.17 

18 Pro'ltisfons 

1 9 

Non-4;'.urrent Current 

As at As•• Asat 
31 March 2023 

As at 
31 March 2023 

31 March 2024 
(Restated I 

31 March 2024 
(Restotedl 

Particulars 

Gratuity(refer note- 301 0 .64 0.33 

Compenuted .absences{refer note- 30) 3.00 3.94 1.31 
Total 0.64 3.33 3.94 1.31 

Oefette.d ta.JC liabilities fnetj 
Movement Movement 

Asat Recognised Re.cognfsed 
Particulars 31 Morch 2023 In Statement of In Other 

As at 

(Rostated) Profit and comprehensive 
31 Morch 2024 

loss Income 

Deferred Tax UabWtfes 

Investment Property, Property, plant and equipme nt arid lntangibJe assets 19,271.57 (13,832.101 5,439.47 
Unamortised Brokerage and core: aeasing fees 535.73 1,011.34 1,547.56 

Defloed benefit obligation 0.12 O.Ql 0.13 

lease equillsation reur.1e 1,940.37 l,186.04 3,125.41 
Security Deposit ftom Tenants 355.85 6.02 361.87 
Deferred Tu AsHts 
NCO ON Tril IT4 & CPPIB (3,621.35) (4,474.77) (8,096.12) 
Carry forward business I depreciaOon losses and others• US,203.59) 9,483.56 (5,720.031 

Defened Taix liability {ne:t) l,278.69 (6,619.41) 0.01 (3,340.70) 

•As per asse:.s.srnent order dated 28 S@pt:fl:mber 2021 reop~n~ng the asseument for the assessment year 2015-2016, the ilSSessing officer ha.s disallowed the cumulative busmess kus of INR 17,432.78 L.akh.i and 
unabsorbed depreciatton of INR 23,176.17 lakhs upto 11ssessment year 2014·1S under section 79 of the: Income-tax Act, 1961 fthe Act), due to a change 1n shareholding patlern of the Company by more than 51% 

in the assessment year 2015·16. The Company ha.s filled an appeal with C.1.T(Appeals~ against the n ld order, on the grounds that the said section 19 is not applicable ;u t10 new shareholder has entered into thl! 

Company due to change in ~reholding. 

However, on a conservative basis, thl! Company has oot recognised a ny deferred tax asset on the cumulative busine:ss Joss of INR 17,432.78 Lakhs upto ass.essml!nt year 2014-15. The C001pany based on vatious 

judsements of the Supreme Court of India, ls confident that 1he uriabsorbed deP'ecia t ion of INR 23,176.17 Lak.hs upto assessment year 2014·15 would be alrowed and hence has continued t o recognised the 

deferred tax asset on the same. 

Note: As p er t he Cornpanv's t11sse"ment, there are no material Jr'4:ome taJt uncertalntles over income tax treatments during the current af\d previou5 finani::i<>I year. 

21 Icade a <1bles 

Particulars 

(a~ Total Outstanding dues of Miuo Enterprises aod Smi111 Enterprises 'Refer note-38} 

(b) Toti I Outstanding dues of creditOfS other than Micro Enterpf'~S and Smoin Enterprises 
· Due to r~ated pi!lrty(Refer Note 36) 

- Due to 01he:r than related party 
Total 

Trade Dav1bles A2eine. Schedule 

Pa rticulars Unbilled 

Micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Others 1,935.49 

Disputed trade payables 
Micro e:nterptises arKI small ent~rprlses -
Ot~ers 

Total 1,935.49 

Particulars Unbilled 

Micro ente,prises and small enterprises 
Others 2.269.16 

Disputed trade payables 

Micro enterpdse.s and small enterprises 
Others 

Total 2 269.16 

Not due 
Less than 1 yur 

110.01 
1,579.72 

110.01 1.579.72 

Not due 
less th.3.n 1 year 

13.53 
593.34 

606.87 

As at 31Marc.h.2024 

1-2years 2·3yuf3 

0.78 

0.78 

Asot 

31 Morch 2024 

110.01 

431.64 
3,084.35 

3,626.00 

More than 3 

ve ars 

As at 31 Morch 2023 (Restotedl 

1-2 years 2·3 years 
More than 3 

years 

2.84 

-
2.84 

31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

13.53 

69.71 

2,795.63 
2,878.87 

Tot>I 

110.01 
3,515.99 

3 626.00 

Total 

13.53 
2,865.34 

l 878.87 
B.ased on information received by the Co mpany from tts vendors, the amount of principal outstanding In respect of MSME as at Balance Sheet date covered under the Mkro, Small and Medium Enterprtses 

Development Act, 2006 is INR 110.01 lakh!> (31 March 2023 is 13.53 lclkhs.). There were l'lO delays io the payment of dues to Micro and Small Entefp<ises. 

22 Other liabilities 

Current 

Particulars As•t Mu ~u ~u 

31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 Morch 2024 

(R.,tatod) (Restated) 
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23 Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

{Recognised over a period of time) 

Revenue from property rental 
Rental income 

Parking fees 
Revenue from contracts with customers 

Utility income 
Operations and maintenance income 

Revenue from International conventional centre 

Room rentals 
Food and beverages 
Other services 

Other operating revenue 

Tenant recoveries on restoration and repair works 
Total 

24 Other income 

Particulars 

Interest Income under the effective interest method 
- on fixed deposits with banks 
Interest on Income tax refund 
Other non-operating income 

-Sundry Balances written back 

-Profit on sale of fixed assets 
- Other Miscellaneous income 

25 Food and Beverages consumed 

Food and beverages consumed 

Opening stock 
Add: Purchases 
Closing stock 

26 Employee benefit expense 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident fund 
Gratuity expense 
Staff we If a re expense 

Total 

Particulars 

Sub-total 

Particulars 

Total 

Page 21 

Year ended 
Year ended 

31 March 2024 
31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

43,611.19 33,216.79 
891.70 869.55 

4,417.60 3,988.00 
5,369.47 5,005.38 

2,765.81 1,937.57 
2,035.41 1,464.80 

153.43 113.61 

218.24 854.27 
59,462.BS 47,449.97 

Year ended 
Year ended 

31 March 2024 
31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

1,660.85 492.96 

76.87 387.44 

19.82 190.81 
61.44 
79.50 54.03 

1,897.SO 1,125.24 

Year ended 
Year ended 

31 March 2024 
31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

51.52 7.60 
485.26 338.77 
(95.85) {51.52) 
440.93 294.85 

Year ended 
Year ended 

31 March 2024 
31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

83.99 172.69 

1.35 4.44 

0.29 0.90 
0.33 0.41 

85.96 178.44 
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27 Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interest expense 

- on Term loan and overdraft 

- on Inter corporate deposit from related party ( Note-36) 

-on Non convertible debentures 

Finance charges 

Unwinding of interest expense on security deposits 

Total 

28 Depreciation and amortization expenses 

Particulars 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 

Depreciation of Right to use an asset (Refer note 5) 

Depreciation on investment property (Refer note 4(i)) 

Total 

29 Other expenses 

Particulars 

Property management expenses 

Manpower cost 
Repairs & maintenance 

Power and fuel 

Consumable 

Professional Fees 

Annual maintenance charges 

Water charges 

Insurance 

Events and Others 

Power and fuel expenses 

Operating supplies consumed 

Office maintenance 

Advertisement and marketing expenses 
Travelling expenses 

Management fees 

Insurance 

Laundry expenses 
Legal and professional fees 

Payment to auditors 

Manpower Consultancy expenses 

Amortisation of brokerage expenses 

Commission to travel agents 
Communication expenses 

Bank charges 

Rates and taxes 

Expenditure on corporate environmental responsibility 

Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (refer note 40) 
Asset management fees 

Repairs and maintenance 

Security charges 

Sundry balances written off 

Miscellanous expenses 

Payments to auditors 
As auditor 

Total 

• Statutory audit 

//,.··:.., &,. i; 0. r ~ Reimbursement of expenses 
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Year ended 
Year ended 

31 March 2024 
31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

16,598.99 14,553.07 

128.82 20.25 

30,813.80 24,746.16 
150.74 117.86 

1,396.36 1,505.46 

49,098.71 40,942.80 

Vear ended 
Year ended 

31 March 2024 
31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

18.75 27.50 

1,426.92 1,426.92 

14,940.73 15,685.59 
16,386.40 17,140.01 

Vear ended 
Year ended 

31 March 2023 
31 March 2024 

(Restated) 

1,361.50 1,302.38 
734.65 951.19 

547.72 543.01 

212.74 202.55 

320.30 285.28 

592.21 693.39 
251.30 168.45 

204.57 171.65 

185.24 155.70 

4,179.86 4,105.42 

100.28 43.42 

124.78 95.11 

87.27 136.31 

62.73 53.23 

321.45 213.14 

16.94 24.23 

76.77 63.13 
167.16 215.40 

52.46 32.27 

783.78 611.81 
694.97 719.43 

83.23 84.72 
32.96 33.92 

1.54 1.41 
1,495.08 1,535.45 

456.62 

105.42 
1,351.42 1,667.08 

316.25 233.00 

85.87 93.07 

100.80 79.20 

261.54 161.70 
14,907.37 15,239.09 

42.00 32.27 

10.46 
52.46 32.27 
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30 Olsclosure pursuant to lnd AS 19 on "Employee Benefits" 

(I) Contribution to Provident fund 

Contribution to provident fund recognised as an expense under "Empk>yee: 
benefits expense·. 

(ii) Deflned Beoef"it Phms 

As at 31 Marth 2024 

1.35 

As at 31 Morch 2023 

(Rostatod) 

4.44 

The Company provides for gratuity, a definl!d benefil re.tl rement plan ('the Plal"I') covermg eligible employees governed by Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Plan provides 

payment to vested employees who have rendered at lei>st five years or continuous service tOW'3rtb gratu~ty at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of servic.e or 

pal't thereof k'I excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the: employee at the time of retirement, death or termination of employment. Lia biHties for the 

same afe dE!termined thro0gh an actuarial valuatk>n as at the reporting dates using the "projected unit credit method." 

Risk exposure: These defined benefit plans expose the. Company to a<;tuarial ri5~ 5-u ch a5. longitivity risks, interest rat e fisks, mar~et (investment) risks. 

The following t<1ble sets out the components of net b enefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or lo ss and the amounts recognf5ed in the bakance sheet fof the 

res pective plans 

Partic.ulars 

Balance as at the betiMing of the ye~r 

Current service cost 

Interest cost on bt!n.etit obligatroo 
Tota l (included in the statement of ptoflt and Joss) 

Benefits paid 

UabUltles assumed 
Aauiillrial changes arising from changes in financial assumpt1ons (Included in 

othef comprehensive income~ 
Balance as ;at th• end of the year 

Amount R•cocnised in the Balance Sheet 

U.biMty at th• •nd of the year 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 

Differe nce 
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 

Ill Expensts Recogrdsed In the statement ot profit and loss 

Current Se rvke Cost 

Interest Cost 

E'xpected Re turn on Plan Assets 

Net Actuarial (Ga!n) /Loss To Be Recognised 

Pas t service cost 

Expense Recognised in the statement o f profit and loss 

IV S;lance Sheet Reconciliation 

Opening net liability 

Expense as above 

Employers contribution (paid) 

llabHities assumed & actuarial changes 

Amount recognised in Saliillnce Sheet 

Gra tuity 

Asat 

31 March 2024 

0.33 

0.28 
0.02 

0.30 

0.02 

0.65 

0.65 

0.65 

0.65 

0.28 

O.o2 

O.o2 

0.32 

0.33 

0.30 

a.oz 
0.65 

As at 
31 March 2023 

(Restattd) 

46.99 

2.44 
0.28 

2.12 
(46.68) 

(2.70) 

0.33 

0.33 

0.33 

0.33 

2.44 

0.28 

(2.70) 

0.02 

46.99 

2.72 
(46.68) 

(2.70) 

0.33 

V The principal assumptions vsed in determining gratuity ;md obligations for thl! Company's plan are shown below:-

Discount rdte 

Future salary increases 

Att1ition rate 

P1trticulars 

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables. 

As at 31March2024 

7.l 0% 

8% perAnn um 

30% 

Co mpe nsated absences 

Asat 
Asat 

3) March2024 
31 March 2023 

(Re>tated) 

4.31 36.50 

(32.19) 

4.ll 4.31 

As at 31 March 2023 

(Rortatod) 

7.25% 

8% per Annum 

25% 

Estimates of futu re salaty ineteases, considered in .G"ctu~ri.G"I v.c1luation, take accourlt o f inflatio n, s tntori"J, promotion Md other relev~nt factors. such as suppty and d emand In the 

employment market. 

The Company liabi~ty on account of gratuity is not funded and hence, the disclosur"' relating to the planned assets are not appOcable. 

Mat March 31. 2024, the weighted average d uration of the defined benefit o bligation is S years (M arch 31, 2023: 1 years). 

£)Cperience Adfustment.s: 

Defined benefit obligation 

Plan assets 
(Deficit) 

fxperien.ce adjustmeJ\t on plan liabilities 

hperience adjustment on plan assets 

IU at 31 March 2024 

0.65 

(0.65) 

As at 31 March 2023 
(Resiated) 

0.33 

(0.33) 
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V I Sensitivity analysis 

Reason.abty possible changes at the reporting date to one of the retevant actuarial assumptions, h ok:Jing other assumptions constant. would have affected the defined benefit 

obligation by tne amounts shown below: 

Pardculars 

Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 

Salary Growth Rate (· I+ l"I 
% change compared to base due to seosittvity 

Attrition Rate(-/+ 50% of attrition rates} 

% change compared to base due to sensitNlty 

Mortality Rato (· / + 1<1% of mortality ratos) 

% change compared to base due to .sensitivity 

Othe1 long term employm•nt be neflts 

Compensated absencts 

As at 31 March 2024 

Decrease 

68,145 

5.4% 

61,430 

-S.0% 

101,851 

57.50% 

64,652 

0.00% 

As at 31 March 2023 (Restate<!) 

Increase Decrease lrn:reaR 

61.433 34,950 30,574 
-5.0% 7.0% -6.4% 

68,082 30,570 34,911 

6.3% -6.4% 6.9% 

37,989 54,513 18,279 

-41.30% 66.90% -44.00% 

64,675 3Z,653 32,670 

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

The liability towards compensated absent.es for the year ended 31 March 2024 recognised in the Balance Sheet ba~l!l!d on actuarial valuation u.sing the projected unit c.redit 

method •mounted to INR 1.35 l•cs (1013: 4.44 Ulcs) and the charge to tho Stotement of profit and loss •mounted to INR (0.37) l•cs {2023: INR 0.65 lacs). 
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31 Fair v.alu~ hierarchy 
Finandal instruments by cait•gory 

CJ1trvfn1 a mount Fair Value 

31 March 2D24 Amortl~d 
U!vol 1 - Quoted 

level Z - Significant level 3. Slcnlficilnt 
FVTl'l FVTOCI Total price in active Total 

Cast observable: Inputs unobservabl• lnpllls 
ma ruts 

Fln1ncl1l ass•ts 
Equity Investment In others (Reier Note 61 251.66 251.66 251..66 251.66 
Other FlnandaJ assets 578.54 578.54 578.54 578.54 

Trade receivables 2,457.39 2,457.39 
Cash and cash equivalents 30.073.91 - 30,073.91 
Other bank balances 

Total flnanclal nsm 33, 361.50 33,361.50 S78.S4 251.66 830.20 

Flnanclal llabllltles 

Borrowings ('r•rm loan) 342,859.39 342,859.39 342,859.39 342,859.39 
Jnttr•U free security depo~its from customers 15,607.86 15,607.86 15,607.86 15.607.86 
Shott term bo<rowings flntludlne Bank overdr1ft) 231,887.73 231.887.73 -
Citpitt l creditOf'S 687.04 687.04 
Employte benefits paya!He 0.64 0.64 
Tfadt tiavabl~ 3,626.00 2 878.87 6,504.87 
Total flnanclal llabMltles 594,668.66 l,871.87 597,547.53 158,467.25 358,467.2.5 

tarryln1 amount F•lr Value 

31 March WU (Restated) /\morti .. d 
Level 1 - Q"otld 

level 2 ·Signili..,nt Leval 3 ·Sign meant 

Cost 
FVTPL FVTOCI Total price In acdve 

observable Input> unc bservable lnp"ts 
Totol 

mukats 
Flnanclal usets 
Equtty Investment in othctn (AQfu Note 6) 251.66 25l.66 - 251.66 251.66 
other Financial auets 246.18 246.18 - 246.18 246.IB 
Trade receivablu 2,053.29 2,053.29 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,63S.54 . l,635.54 

Other boink b;al;inces 15,780.00 15 780.00 

TotaJ financial ass.U 19,966.&7 29,966.17 246.18 251.66 497.84 

Finonclal llabllltles 
8orrowk\gs (T..-m klan) 542,011.83 542.011-83 542,011.83 542,011.83 
Inter.st free security d'fposits from customers 17,92Ml 17,929.41 - 17,929.41 17.9Z9.41 
Short t ttm born>WIJ1gs (lncludlng Sink overdraft~ 6,049.57 6,049.57 -
Qipltal credltaL'l 1l9.93 219.93 
other payables 197.42 191.42 

Employee ben1fH.s: pavable 18.74 18.74 
Trade panbles 2,878.87 2878.87 ... 
Tot•I flnanclal ll•b1hties 569,305.n 569,305.77 559,941.24 559,941.24 

F1lr value hierarchy 
Thi'S section explains the judge.menu and estimates rnadie in determining the fair values of the firu1ncial inst.n.ime.nts that are recognised and mie"il5Ured at fair value and me111suJed at amortised 

cost and for wMch fair valuf.S art disclosed Jn the finat\Cial statements. To provide an lndkation about tlie reliability of t ht lnp"Uts used in dete.rmlnlnB fair value, the Group has classlfled Its 

financial in.strumem:s into the three levels prescribed under the- account~ne standard. 

Flnanclal asseou ind W.bllltles measurtd at ilmortb1d cost 

The Company has not disclosed fair vCJlues of ftnanclal instruments such as trade receivables and related unbilled revenue, ash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, leillse rental 
receivables, bank overdraft, capita ! creditors, interest accrued on fixed depo.sits, certain advanc:es to empklyees, trade & other payab~.s iand employee benefit payables (that are short tum in 

na-ture), because their tilrrylng ilmounts are reasonilble approximations o f their fair values. 

Th~ fair values of the financial assets and flnancial liabmtles Included in the lev~ 3 category above has been determk'led In actord1nce with generaNy acce pted prking modefs bas.id on 1 

discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being t-lie discount rate that reflects the cretlt risk of counterpartfes. There were no t ' ansfers from Level 2 to Level 1 durlnj the 

yHr ended 31 March 2024 and no transfers in eitlwr diu?ctfon during the year ended 31 M;trch 2023. 

Valuatfon techniq ues and si&nlficant unobservable inputs 

The following tables 5how the v1!ui1tK>n techniques 1.15ed in measuring Level 2 and L1vRI 3 fair values for financial Instruments in the balance she•t. as well as the sJgnlflant unobservable 
lnputS used fn measuring LeveJ 3 fair values for financial instruments. 

Flnan<i•I instruments measured at fair nlue ( ltvtl 2 and levtl 3) 

Typ• 
interest free security depcsits from customers 

Otl"ler l=inancfal assets 

Borrowlns s (Te rm lo•n) 

Equity instruments 

Valuation technlqut 
Discounte d c.ash flows: The valuation mad~ considers the ptesent value of expected payme nts, d lscouoted using a rlsk-adjus ted 
discount rate. The own non-perfOf'mance risk was assessed to be Insignificant. 

Discounted cash flows: The valuation model considers the present value of ©I.peeled receipts, discounted using iii risk-adjusted 

discount race. The own noni)trformance risk was Hs.ss1d to be insignlfkant. 

DI.counted cash flows: Th• valuation model considers the present value of expected P•vmenl'I, discounted using a risk-adjusted 

discount rate. The own non-performance risk was assessed to be insignirtcant. 

As per tlie terms of these investments, the Company Ls not e ntitled to 1ny other returns or benefits and win be entitled tc receive the 

amount rn111:sttd Mjuivalent 10 the face value of the equity shares upon 81(pJry of such agreements. Thus fair value is equal to cost. 
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32 Financial risk mana1ement 

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financi•I instruments: 
a. Credit risk ; 
b. liquidity risk; and 
c. Market risk 

Risk management framework 

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management 

framework. The board of directors along wi th the top man•gement are responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk 
management policies. 

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk 

limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherente to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its t raining and management standards and procedures, 
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligat ions. 

The Company's audit sub-committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and 
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management f ramework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. 

a) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's trade receivables, certain loans and advances and other financial assets. The carrying 

amount of financial assets represents the maximum Cfedit exposure. 

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to 
which the Company grants cr edit tenms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and 

impairment that represents its estimate of losses in respect of the Company's trade receivables, certain loans and advances and other 
financial assets. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables are as follows: 

Particulars 

Tr.ade receivables 

Cash and other bank balances 
Other financial assets including investments 

Trade and other receivables 

Carrying Amount 

31 March 2024 

2.457.39 
2,457.39 

30,073.91 
830.20 

33,361.5-0 

31 March 2023 
( Restated) 

2 053.29 
1,787.06 

17,415.54 
497.84 

19,700.44 

The Company's exposure to credit r isk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the 
customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on uedit risk 

assessment. 

Default is said to occur when the customer defaults on an obligation. Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting 
period are reviewed by the Company to determine i ncurred and expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables 
do not reflect any signifK:ant credit losses. Given that the macro economic indicators attecting customers of the Company have not 

undergone any substantial change, the Company expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue. Further, management 
believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment 
behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The impainment loss at the reporting dates related to several customers that have 

defaulted o n their payments to the Company and are not expected to be able to pay their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic 
circumstances. 

In addition, an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for all the major individual customers. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets that are not secured by 

security deposits. The summary of exposure in trade receivables are as fo llows: 

Secured by security deposit obtained 
Unsecured portion of receivables 

lease rent receivable 

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
I Restated) 

2,140.37 

317.02 
1,915.62 

137.67 

The Company's leasing arrangement represents the flt-out or interior work completed for the customers which have been classified as 
Finance lease. This balance is fully constituted by one customer. The creditworthiness of the customer is evaluated prior to sanctioning 
credit facilities. Appropriate procedures for follow-up and recovery are in place to monitor credit ri sk. The Company does not expect any 
losses from non-performance by theses counter-parties. 

Cash and bank balances 
The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial inst itutions as at the reporting dates. The credit 

worthiness of such banks and financial institutions are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good. 

Other financial assets Including investments 
This balance is primarily constituted by deposit given to Tamil Nadu Electricity Soard for obtaining electricity connection. The Company does 
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32 Financial instruments and risk management {continued) 

b} Liquidity risk 

LiquidJty risk Is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meetin.e: the obligaHons associated with its financial liabUi1ies t hat a re settled by deHvering cash or another 

financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure. as far as possible, that it wil have sufficient liquidity to meet ih liabilities when they are due, under 

both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or r~sking damage io the Company's reputation. The company has generated net cash from c>per.1tions 
of INR 36,107.50 lakhs (31M>rch 2023: INR 31,257.01 Lakhsl. 
Further, the Comp<rny has unutillsed portion of Secured short term faciWties aggregating to INR 8,719.25 h1khs (31 March 2023: INR 10,000.00 Lakhsl repo rate qu~rt!:rly reset, 

whkh the mal\3gement ~lieves Is sutffcient 10 meet illl its Nabilities maturing durlng the ne>rt 12 months. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

The foUowing arc the remaining cootrilctu•I maturities of financial liabilitie.s at thl!: reporting date. The amour.ts are gross and undiscounted, including contractual interest but 
exdudlng impact of net1in.g agruments. 

As ot 31 Muth 2024 

Particulars 
Contractual c.a.sh flows 

C1rrying amount 
l year or less 1to l you 2 to S yearS More thin S years Tot-al 

Non-deriv1tive financial llabllitles 

Interest free secu<ity deposits from customers 
6,753.60 1,921.12 8,091.22 5,019.18 21,785.12 l5,607.86 

8ouowing$(Terrn loan) 24.452.23 24,698.17 72,136.57 189,324.34 310,511.31 189,570.54 

Bo<rowings(Overdr•ftl) 1,280.75 l,280.75 1,280.75 

Bo«owings(NCOI 219,409.45 347,426.12 566,835.57 162,168.85 

Bonowings(ICD) 2,217.53 2,217.53 2,217.53 

Employe.e benefits payable 0.64 - 0 .64 0 .64 

Trade payabh!.s 3,736.01 3,736.01 3,736.01 

Ca1Jital Creditors 687.04 - 687.G4 687.04 

Total 258,537.25 26,619.29 80,227.79 S41,769.64 907,153.97 375,369.22 

As at 31 Morch 2023 IRestoted) 

Pal1fcul1rs 
Contractu41f cuh flows 

Canyinc amount 
1 year or less l to2years 2to5yeoars More than S years Total 

Non--derivativ• financial Jlabrllties 

Interest free security deposits from customers 
5,608.08 7,576.40 6,151.28 2.,960.46 22,296.22 17,929.41 

8orrowiogs(Term l oao) 21,789.62 24,358.45 71,885-53 213,645.60 331.67!U2 195,lSS.12 

Borrowings(NCO) 225,056.23 347,426.12 572,482.35 351,561.03 

Borrowiogs(ICD) 245.25 245.25 245.25 

Emptoyee benefits p;,yable 18.74 18.74 18 .74 

Trade payable. 2,878.07 - 2,878.87 2,878 .87 

Othor payabk!s 197.42 l.'17.42 197.42 

Capital Creditors 21.'l.93 219.93 219.93 

Total 30,957.91 256,991.09 78,036.81 564,032.18 930,018.00 569,1os.n 

The. Company has a secured bank lo<1n that contains a k>an cove nant,. The Compa.ny shall at all times till the final settlement date, maintairi the debt s!:rvice coverage ratio not less 
than l.10x .The Financial Covenants sha II be tested annua~y on the basis of audited financial statements of the Company. Under the agreement, the awenant Is monitored on a 

regular basis by the treasury department and regularly reported to management to ensure c.ompMance with the agreement. The interest payments on variable interest rate loans 

io the table above reflect m;uket inlerest rates at the reporting date and these amounts may change 3S market Interest rates chance. Except for these linancial bb~iUes, it is not 
expected th<1t the cash flows lnduded in the maturity analysis could ocax significantly earlier, or a t signifiCQntly different amount"S. 

c) M<1rket risk 

Market risl:. is the. risk that changes Jn market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, lnterest rates and equitY prices - will affect the Company's income or the val11e of its 
holdings of financial inslluments. The Company is domtc:iled in India and has its revenues and other transactkms denominated in its functional currency f.e. INR. Accordingly, the 
Company is not eiposed to any currency risk. 

lnterut rate risk 
Interest rate: risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 11 financial instrument wWI fktctuate because or changes in market interest rates. The Company exposure to 

marke t risk for changes in interest rat~ relates borrowlnss from 8<11'\ks. 

Interest rate risk exposure 

The exposure of the Company•s variable interest rate borrowing to interest rate changes (other than financial instruments measured at fair value) 3t the end of the reporting 

pertod are as f~lows: 

Variable~rate Instruments 
Financial tiablli[ie:s 

Fhced-rHt insuurnents 
Financial assets 

Interest rate sensitivity - fixed rate Instruments 

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

380,951.29 385.155.12 

29,616.82 16,200.51 

The Company does not account for any fi;11ed-rate financial assets or finaoc.ial liabilities at fair value through profit 0t loss, and the Company does not have any deslsnate financial 
liabilities. Therefore, a change in interest fates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss. 

Jnterest rate sens itrvity - variable rate instsuments 
A reasonably poss1ble change of 35 ba~s poTnts In interest rdtes -at the reporting dace woold have: increased I decreils!:d equity and profit or loss by amounts shown below. This 

analyses MSumes that all other variables, in particular, foreign currency exchange f<ltes, remain constant. This calt1.Jlation also assumes that the change octurS at the balance 

sheet date and has been calcvlated based on risk exposures outstanding as ar that date. The period end balances are not oecessarity representative of the <1ve<age debt 
ootstaoding during the period. 

31 Ma<eh 2024 

P•&e 27 

Mov•mtnt In basis 

points 

+ 35 basis points 
- 35 basis points 

-+ JS basis points 
+ 35 basis points 

Eff1ct on loss 
before tillC. 

1,333.33 

(1..333.33) 

1,348.04 

(l ,348.04) 
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33 leases 

Operating leases 

The Company has leased out its investment properties to various tenants. No part of lease income is derived from 

variable payments. Disclosures in accordance with Ind AS 116 are as follows: 

Future minimum lease payments( Un-discounted) 

Receivable within 1 year 

Receivable within 1-2 years 

Receivable within 2-3 years 

Receivable within 3-4 years 

Receivable within 4-5 years 

Receivable after 5 years 

Particulars 

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

Rental income from operating lease agreements with tenants 

Direct operating expenses arising from investment property that generated 

rental income 

Direct operating expenses arising from investment property that did not 

generate rental income 

34 Contingent liabilities and commitments 

a) Contingencies 

As at 
As at 

31 March 2023 
31 March 2024 

(Restated) 

36,228.09 30,928.44 

35,637.71 26,042.33 

31,550.97 23,323.33 

18,961.10 17,148.22 

14,265.18 2,210.16 

101,617.51 3,902.21 

44,502.89 34,086.34 

23,067.93 23,841.99 

5,531.28 5,772.50 

There are no claims against the Company which are not acknowledged as debts as at 31March2024 and 31 March 

2023. 

b) Commitments 

The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net of capital advances and not 

provided for, amounts to INR NIL (31 March 2023: 1,240.44 lacs) 

35 Tax expense 

(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss 

Particulars 

Current tax expense 

Current tax expense relating to prior years 

Total Current Tax (a) 

MAT Credit entitlement of earlier years written off 

Deferred Tax Expense 

Total Deferred Tax (b) 

Tax expense for the year 

(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or For the year ended 31 March 

loss 2024 

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (0.02) 

For the year ended 31 March , _ 2023 (Restated) 

(. R~easurements of the defined benefit plans 2.70 

·~; Page 28 
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As at 

31 March 2024 

(6,619.40) 

(6,619.40) 

(6,619.40) 

Tax {expense) 

benefit 

0.01 

Ta>< (expense) 

benefit 

(0.68) 

As at 

31 March 2023 

Restated 

(8,105.22) 

(8,105.22) 

(8,105.22) 

Net of tax 

(0.01) 

Net of tax 

2.02 

~ 
I 

~ 
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36 Related party disclosures 

Nature of relationship 

Joint venturer holding company 

Joint Venturers 

Name of the entity 

Tata Sons Private Limited 

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited 

CPP Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc 

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year: 

Non-executive Directors 

Independent Directors 

Key Managerial Personnel: 

Subsidiary of Ultimate Parent Company 

Joint venture of Hold ing compnay 

Fellow subsidiaries 

Sanjay Bhupender Dutt 
Ritesh Sachdev 
Bhavesh Madeka (upto 9 July 2022) 

Ankur Gukati (upto 1 February 2024) 

Hari Krishna Veerapaneni (from 1February2024) 

Sucheta Shah (from 27 December 2022) 

Kamlesh Parekh (from 27 December 2022) 
Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar (from 27 December 2022) 

Deepak Porayath {Chief Executive Officer) (from 8 August 2023) 
V.Vijay kumar (Chief Financial Officer)(from 24 July 2023) 

Jagatpal Singh (upto 2 August 2023) 

Arushi Singhal {Company Secretary)(from 8 August 2023) 

Tata Consultancy Services Limited (TCS) 
Tata Communications Limited 

Tata AIG General Insurance Limited 

Tata teleservices Private Limited 

Arrow lnf rasestate Private Limited 
Gurgaon Realtech Limited 

TRIL JT4 Private Limited (upto 7 July 2022) 

Tril Bengaluru Consultants Private limited 
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36 Related party disclosures 

Related parties (continued) 

The related party transactions during the year are as follows: 

Name of related party 

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited 

Tata Consultancy Services 

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited 

Arrow Jnfrasestate Private Limited 

Gurgaon Realtech Limited 

Tata Communications limited 

Tata teleservlces Private Limited 

Tri I Bengaluru Consultants Private limited 

CPP Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc. 

TRIL IT4 Private Limited 

Chief Financial Officer 

Company Secretary 

Nature of transaction 

Asset management fees incurred 

Asset Improvement fees incurred 

Bank Guarantee comission incurred on behalf of Company by 

related party 

Core leasing Fees 

Inter corporate deposit received (unsecured) 

Inter corporate deposit paid (unsecured) 

Transfer of Gratuity & leave on employee transfer 

Acquisition of Investments in TRIL Jnfopark Limited 

Expenses paid on behalf of related party 

Issue of Shares 

Finance cost incurred 

Deputation Fees 

Revenue from Operating Lease agreements with tenants 

Recovery of Expenses 

Software license Fees 

Insurance expenses incurred 

Inter corporate deposit received (unsecured) 

Finance cost incurred 
Inter corporate deposit received (unsecured) 

Finance cost incurred 
Revenue from Operating Lease agreements with tenants 

Property management expenses 

Recovery of Expenses 

Revenue from Operating Lease agreements with tenants 

Recovery of Expenses 

Property management expenses 

Manpower consultancy expenses 

Expenses incurred on behalf 

Transfer of Gratuity & leave on employee transfer 

Issue of Shares(intludlng premium) 

Issue of NCO 

Issue of NCO 

Remuneration 

Remuneration 

The significant related party balances as at the year end are as follows: 

Name of related party 

Payables 

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited 

Inter corporate deposit received (unsecured) 

Acquisition of Investments Jn TRIL lnfopark Limited 

Asset Management Fees 

Deputation Cost 

Expenses paid on behalf of related party 

Core leasing Fees 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

Gratuity & Leave provision 

Tril Bengaluru Consultants Private limited 

E.xpenses paid on behalf of related party 

Trade payable 

Arrow lnfrasestate Private Limited 

Inter Corporate Oeposits from Related Parties 

Gurgaon Realtech limited 

Inter Corporate Deposits from Related Parties 

Tata Consultancy Services 

Interest free security deposits 

Tata Communications Limited 

Interest free security deposits 

CPP Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc. 

Non Convertible Debentures issued 

. TRll IT4 Private Limited 

/ , · J N~n C<?_nvertible Debentures issued 
/...-c-. <:;, _. - ·Receiv"'b)i!s 

I/..,_;./ 1. I • .. < , ., 
1 f ·,,/•:en 1 1~ l'~·?e r~c.!iv~l;>les 
// · In w ••l ata Consu\lj>ncy Services 

\

I t- ( •P! 1 • · · Tata C "lm~hications limited 

\ 

'i «•·11.. II ' I 

.I I 11' 1 ! 
\('l\ (: IJ,. I' )..f•/j 

\~?~. ~ • I . /_f,f, 1 
. ,,, ..... ____. !\''>/ 

"<"lcJ A. o'':'·,Y ;,_~p" 
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Year ended 
Year ended 

31 March 2024 
31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

1,351.42 1,293.89 

311.79 

29.82 15.48 

1,752.36 133.29 

100.00 

225.00 

63.42 

388,299.17 

6.79 

3,823.20 

11.28 20.25 

254.48 170.62 

5,165.74 4,653.99 

407.87 337.06 

3.53 3.53 

O.Ql 235.40 

500.00 

27.39 

1,600.00 

90.13 

14.92 15.03 

9.37 

36.81 32.68 

39.48 0.88 

2.75 2.03 

22.32 23.40 

563.64 319.24 

26.76 17.08 

13.52 

56,300.96 

68,110.00 

70,890.00 

35.18 33.45 

17.19 10.37 

As at 
As at 

31 March 2023 
31 March 2024 

(Restated) 

225.00 

388,299.17 
6.70 

17.43 

6.79 

407.51 

20.25 

63.42 

2.21 
6.29 

527.39 

1,690.13 

2,583.27 2,583.27 

5.66 5.66 

68,110.00 68,110.00 

70,890.00 70,890.00 

530.70 

4.79 
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37 Capital management 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity 

reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise 

the shareholder value. 
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of 

the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, 

return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capita l using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by 

total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less 

cash and cash equivalents. 

Particulars 

Borrowings (long-term and short-term borrowings) (Note 16) 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12) 

Net debt 

Equity share capital 
Other equity 

Total capital 

Capital and net debt 

Gearing ratio 

As at 

31 March 2024 

574,747.12 
(30,073.91) 

544,673.21 

7,498.44 
(257,967.18) 

(250,468.74) 

294,204.47 

185.13% 

Asat 

31 March 2023 

548,061.40 
(1,635.54) 

546,425.86 

7,498.44 
(245,027.55) 
(237,529.11) 

308,896.75 

176.90% 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets 

financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in 
meeting the financia l covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the 

financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 

March 2023. 

38 Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises 

Particulars 

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at 

the end of each accounting year; 

(a) (i) Principal 
(ii) Interest 

(b) The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small 

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment 

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year*; 

(i) Interest 
(ii) Payment 

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding 

the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 

2006 
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year 
(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 

een paid by the Company during the year. Page 31 

As at 
31 March 2024 

110.01 

As at 
31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

13.53 
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{CuHeocy'. India" 1\1~ iri takhs) 

19 hmiflµ per share (EPS) 

P.&rt:icul.ars 

(Loss} for the year, 1mributabJe t o 1he C?qUity shareholders of the Company 

Number of ~quity share5 outs-tanding at the beginning of the ye.ar 

Equity .sharM issued during the year 

Number or equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 

Weighted average number or equity shares ootstanding during the year (Basic) 

Tot.al wetghted aver~ge number of ordlna('f share ' a s at yur f"nd 
Earnings: per sh.are (EPS) rrom opentions • B<lsic 

EMninc~ per Wre (EPS) from 09entloos - Diluted 

40 Corporate S<Jclal responsibility 

Partkulars 

(a) amount r~ired to be spent by the Company during the year• 
(b) amount of expenditlxe incurred 

(c) st\OrtfaU u the end of the yea/" 

(d) total of previous years shortfaM 
(e) re~son for shortfall 

(fl nature of CSR activities 

c 

(8) deta ils of related party tranncttcns e.g. contribution to a trust controHed by the company in 

re lation to CSR e:ic pe nditure 
(h) movement of provislon made with respect to Hability incum~:d by entering into a 'ont ractua l 

obtigation. 

Year er\ded 

31 March 2024. 

(ll,939.62) 
74,984,JSO 

74,984,350 

(17.26) 
(!7.26) 

Vear ended 

ll March 2024 

Year ended 
31March1023 

(Rest•ted) 

(17,114 ,77) 

l 0,000 

74,974,350 

74,984,350 

56,171,337 
56,177,337 

(30.47) 
(30.4 7) 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

(Restated) 

lOS.H 

Environment 

protection & 

Uvell hood sk~ I 

development 

In pursuance o f Sect ton 135 of Compan~~ Act 2013, the Company has spent towa rds various .c:tMties as e numerated in the CSR Poky of the Comp.any which 'OYel'l: activities: re'3tiing to 

promotion of Educatton/t".llvlronme nr.tt protection and livelihoods skil deveropmeot. 

41 

• CSR Is not ;;ippllcab(e ta the Company in rhe curretitflinanclal yHr. ~, thes"ame w~5 ;;appPQbllf in the previous 'fe¥ ~th r~pttt to the tfilnsfe<o.- ClOITipany (TRILlntopark lirnit'd Arfcr ._,ote-44 
~ 4S) prio.-ta Ml"rger. The Company has d~charced Wamoon1 requird to be ~pent in the PJ"evfou5 ye;w and tM:tt Is nolhottraM. 

Ana lvtical Ratios 

...... A.sot 
Ratio Numerator D1nomlnator 

31 March 2024 
31Much2023 % Change Remarks 

(R1stat1i!d) 

Curfent ratio Current As.sets Current Liabilities 0.15 1.28 -88.28% 
Dr iven by decreate in working capl tal c:m 

increase ln cu rtent bcrrowines. 

De bt- Equity 
Total Debt Shareholder's Equity -2.29 -2.ll -0.871' 

Ratio 

Earnings for debt se rvice..:: 
Debt service• Inte rest & l ease 

Debt Service Nl!l profit aft@r taxes t Non· 
Pa yments .. Principal 0.84 0.63 33.33% 

Driven by incr•ase Jn cunent borrowings 

Coverage ratlo ca.sh op@rating expen.seH 
Repoyments 

fot Hon convertible debentures. 

aorerest 

Retu rn on Equity 
Net Profits after t3xes Average Shar~l!t'S Equity 5.30% 6.69% -1.19% 

ratio 

Tr~ Rtce~able 
Re\lenue from operations Average Trade RKeivable: 26.37 24, 71 6.72% 

Turnover Ra tio 

Trade P1yable 

Turnover Ratio 
Purchase Average Trade Payables 4,6l 5.80 -20.34% 

Net Capit al 
Net Sales 

working capital • Curre nt assi!tl 
(0.29) 10.26 -102.83% 

Driven by decrease in world ne capiral on 

Turnover R'1tio - Ctirrent tiabilitles incr@ase in current borrowinss. 

Net ?rof1t ratio N~tP rofit NetSak?s -21.76% ·36,07% lA.31% 

Return on capital fclrnirigs before int eTe!it and 
Caplt a l ~mpk>y ed :. Tangible Nc1 

Worth + Tot al Oeb t + Oefe«ed 9.11% 5.01% 4.10% 
Employed t axes 

Tax liabWity 

42 Other Statutory lnform~tton 
(I) The Company does not have any ~mi property, wtiere any proceeding has been initiated 0< pen<Uni against the Co mpall'f for hokJing any Benaml property. 

(ii) The Companv does not have any tra nsactions with c.omoanies which a1e struck off except the foMowing: 

Bal3nce outstanding ONR In lacs) 
Relationship with 

N1m1- of the Struck off A.s •• 
Serial Numbff Na ture of transiactions As at 31 March stnickoff 

C'Ompany 
2014 

31March l013 
IRtsUttdl 

compa ny 

I 
Thron~ Tech Engi~l!"ring: 

Fire Hydrant Sprlnkl•r 
Servic.es 

1.19 3.55 N.A 

(iii} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which fs yet to be rei'stered with ROC beyond lhe statutory period, 
(iv) The Company has not trad ed or inverted tn Crypto currency or Virtual Cuacncy dufing tht fir"landal year. 
(v) The Company has not advanced or klaned or invested foods to any other person(s} or entityjies), including foreign enthtes (ln termedia,ies} wi th che understanding that Ihe: Intermediary 

shall : 

(a) dlrecrly or tndlre<:tly lend or invest in olher persons o, MlfUes identified In any m<innerwha~o.ever by or on be hair of t ile company (Ult imate Beoeftciartes) 0< 

(b) provrde ;my guarantee, security or the like to or ot1 be half of the Ult imate Beneficiaries 
(vi) The Company has r\Ot received any fund from any person(s) or ent l ty(ies). including f0<e:ign entitles {FlHlding Party) ~ith the undersu ndfne (whether recOJded irl wrM:in& or othttwfse) chat 

t he. Compcmy sh.al : 

(a) direct ty or indlrealy lend 0< invest i.n other persons or entities klentifte<f in any rnanoer wh.iltsoever by or Of\ behalf of the funding Puty (Ultimate Beneftdarles) or 

(b) provide any cuaran1ee, security°' the lite on be hair of the \Jllimate Benefietarfes, 

,. ~ · - ~(vi) The Company does not have any such llilnsaction whic.h is not recotded tn the books ol accounts that has been surrendered or disdosed as income dur)og the yur in the tax assessments 

~ ~ (5... 1._ 0 ~' under the Income Tn Act, 1961 (such as, search Of" survey or any other relevant provtS.ions of the Income f 3;1t Act,. 1961), 

;~U'~,r:e ((-<i~ 

r 
l1'111 n Y .. r, .ra ·' ~ 

•hlfl l """1u ~ * .... ~ '"•·•1 t 
ll:lt ~ 

n\~"' '~.1 ~.1 ·~·~ ·~J.r~, 1 

~ ~11r~r1 1-u (<) l ~·'/ 
,,..,, / ~"' 
·~ -:;_ri,§~,h' 

~ 

' . 

Page 106 of 108



INFOPARK PROPERTIES LIM ITED 
Notes to frnanda l statements for the yeilr ended 31 Marth 2024 
(Currency: lncHan rupe@'s in bkht) 

43 Operating segments 

Basis for segmentation 

~Company fs operatlng in the real ~stale ;and infrastructure industry ilnd has only domestic opera tions. The: Company has only one reportiJble business segment, w hicl'I is devt": lcpniem 

of real estate and infrasuucture f itdliHes (lncludlog lnte rnaHonal Convention Centre facilities) and only one reportable geographical segm, nt. All assets of the Company art. do mici led iri 
India and no other i~ographical area. 

Major customers: 

The: re are two customers w hk:h contribute more t han ten per cent or revenue of the Company i.e. 31 March 2024 Customer A- INR 6,030.24 l ac.sand Customer B-INR S,165.74 Laa (31 

March 2023 : Customer A- INA S,914.80 Laa and Cust omer B· INR·4,882.01 Lats) 

44 Scheme of Merger 

lhe Compciny has given effect t he Sc.heme of Merge' by Absorption {'merge(') between TAil lnfopark limited {tranderor compaoy} with lnfopark Properties limited (rransfert"e company) 

on rece}pt of certified copy of t he Hon'bte N1 tional Company l aw Tribunal, Chennai Bench ('NCL"T1
) , dated 21 June 2023 attested true copy received by the COtl"lpat'y on 30 June 2023 and 

ftlfed with the ROC o n 24 July 2023 wherein the NClT has approved lhe Scheme of Merger by AbSO<ption {'merger") bctwuo TRIL lfifoparl:. Limite(t (ttansferor company) with lnfopilrk 

Propen.ies Umlt !d (Lraruferee company}. The effective appointed date of thti' Scheme is 27 Jvne 2022. Pursuant to the approved scheme of Me-rger , th! Company hills accounted for 

me<ge.r in the books with effect from 01 Aprl 2022 as per the applicable <1ccovntlng prind~s prescribed under J\ppendix c to IND A5 103 for common and j oint control business 

combinattons. 

A Consideration INR. In l1khs 

Amoun t 

ii 
i i 

lv 

vt 

Partic ulars 

Consider;Jtion paid In Ca.sh 

The details of merger are as set out In the t able be1ow· 
Pa rtiOJ larS 

Value of identified as.sets; n qujred 

Property. pli!ll"lt and equipments 
Investment property 

Investment property under ct>l'lst rvction 
Right of use as~t 

Other noiw:urrent asseu 
Current Assets 

-Cash and cash equivalents 

-Trade rec.eiva~es 

-Baf'lk balainc.e- otht!r than c:as.h and caYI equivalents 

-Ot he r current assets 

Tot al Val ue of identified Aiseu acquired ( ii ) 
Vlhte of Uabllitfe!i <u!iiumed 

Cuqent Uabilitl!U 

-Boaowings 
-Provisions 
~Trade payables 
-Other cuuent liabilities 
-Other fit1andal liabllltf~s 

Non.Currtn t liabili1!es 
-Borrowjngs 
-Provisions 
·Other Hnandal liabii tiM 
-Oertrrtd Tn 
-Othef Non cuintn Kabflkie.oi 

Total va lue of llabUlt les a"umed (b} 

Not Assets l• -l>l 

c Common control acquis ition deficit 

Common contJol acouisition deficit arising fro m t e meucr 

Considerat ion 

Net assets as on 2 No\lember 2021 taken over 

., en re.co~nis h b< ed 

Otlier Equ!ty on convefsion of compaJlsory convertible debGntures tr.to equity 

shares for the F.Y 21-22 

Openins Reserve deficit ofSub~idi<1ry a s on 02 November202l 
Common con trol acau ishJ on deft.cit 

D Mnsu rtmt nt of A..ssets & Uabiliti~ 

388,299.17 

.Amount 

87.80 

165,091.87 

43 117.76 

1n 560.48 
14,258.17 

. 
2,359.Sl 

2 037.17 

l,88 U 6 

2 266.26 

353,660.48 

5 000.00 

26.32 
957.40 

2.218.28 
28,774.58 

256.626.17 
71.28 

11,979.95 

l,831.14 
307 485.12 

46,175.36 

as follows 

Not 11 Amt 

A 388,299.17 

B 45,175.36 

c 
ZS,000.00 

D (58.824.63) 

(A·8-C·Dl 1258,199.181 

The valuation techninufos used for meawri~ the material assets xQUired and l ~biilities ~us\.Wned were :>s follows : 
Assets considered Valuation Method 

Proptrtv Plant and EQukvnPot. l~tment Book Value 
Inventory Book Vak.u!: 

Net Work.int Capital ot-her than Inventory (l.e-. Book Value 

8orrowlnes Book Value 

Pt1 ge 33 
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INFOPAAK PROPERTIES LIMITEO 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(CurTeocy; Indian rupees In lakhsl 

45 Prior Yearts figures 

The Company has restated the audited nnancial results for prlor period year ended ~l March 2023 pursuant to: 

a) The order by the Hon~ National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench ('NCLT), d;ited 21 June 2023 attested t rue copy recetved by the Company on 30 June 2023 and r•r<t with 
the ROC on 24 July 2023 wheretn the NCLT has app.-oved the SC~me of Merger by Absorptton ('me<ger'} between l RIL ll"lfopark Umited (trnnsferor compat1y) with lnfopark Properttes 
Umited (transferee company). The effective appointed date of the Scheme Is 17 June 2022 3nd 

b) Reinstatement or Deferred Tax Liability (OTL) of the tr:wuferor Company (0< prlor periods on acCOUnt of li} temporary differencei arising on k?a.se equalltatk>n reserve, amorti:zat lon of 
brokerage expenses and unwinding of interest expense on secuOty deposits linadvertentty not reco1nlzed ea.rher .aod (10 due to change In estimate retrospective adoption of rnte of 
income: tax as per the o ld tn reeime In place of tM rate taken as per the new tax regime. The r~tum f0t the year eoded 31 March 2023 has not been filled by the Comp.omy and th@ 
Company pl am to opt for the rate ~s per the o ld tax regime while fiWing 1ne locome tax re turn for this year and 

c:) Recognition of Deferred Tax Anet (OTA) Or\ the brought forward bosttss &asses and un'Mnd irig of interest on borrowfn~ of the transferee Company after cot1sld~r;ng lh! relevant 

facts and clrc1Mnstances t hat the Company has convincing evidence based on its business pJans a nd budgets for the 01i~2ation ol these tax loss.es post·merger of the transferor Company 
wi1h the transferee Company 
in ac:cotdance with the reQOlrements of Pan 9 of AppttKlix C of Ind AS 103 Buslneu: Combinations. Thus, the amounts in these wdited fllhllndal rcsurts have been lncr•a.s~/(dcc:rea.s~d) 

as compared to amounts in the prevlOV!.ly published finaf'\Cial results by the be&ow-

hrtkulars For the yeu ended 

31 March 20U 
Total Income tncreucd 48,375.21 
Deferred l ;)x experues/ (revers&I) • {8,105.22) 
Loss befa<e tax for the year(lncreased) (479.971 
loss after tax fo r 1he year decteased 7,625 .25 
EPS· Ra.sic fncreued(Rs) 13.57 
EPS- Diluted increased(Rs) 13.57 
Deferred Tax Asset as at .. 3,178.69 
T otoi compherensive loss for the year (!ecreased 7,627.27 
Net Worth (decreas-ed} (272,816.57) 

• Including Impact of restatement ;u explaioed in Note 4S(b) aod (c) above 

-Otferred Tax (revern l) (9,857.00) 
-Deferred TAX asset u at 3,270.00 

4G Subsequent Events 

There are no sia:nificant subsequent event5 that woutd require adjustments or disclosures In the financial statements as on th~ balance sheet date. 

for B SR& Co. UP 
Chartered Accountants 
(Fitm1s Regis tration No. 101248W/W-100022) 

Farhad 81mjl 
Partner 
Membership No: 105234 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25 April 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
o f lnfopa rf( Properties Umlted 
CIN: U70109TN20UPLC147646 

S•njay Dutt 

OirectO< 
DtN: 05251670 

V .Vijay Kumar 
Chief Finandal Olnc~r 

Pt.Ke: Mumbai 
D>te: 25 April 2024 

c 

~~~~ 
Arwhi Sinchal 
Company Stcretary 
Membership No.AS4Sl6 

Page 108 of 108


		2024-09-06T18:57:12+0530
	ARUSHI SINGHAL




